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OUR STRATEGIC PLANNING PROCESS

BUDGET – framed to ensure we responsibly 
deliver on the actions prioritised in the annual 
Operational Plan.

OPERATIONAL PLAN – a twelve-month set of 
actions and priorities determined from strategies 
contained in the Corporate Plan 2013-18.

CORPORATE PLAN 2013-2018 – a five-year 
framework that sets the strategic direction for 
the council to ensure it responds in a considered 
way to the challenges and opportunities faced 
by the region.

COMMUNITY PLAN 2022 – the long-term 
vision for the region determined with regular 
input from consultation with our thirteen 
reference groups that represent the unique 
demographic of each community.

ANNUAL REPORT – an overview of the 
progress, achievements and challenges 
throughout the financial year as council delivers 
on its strategic priorities.

Pages 1–60 contain an overview 
of the progress we’ve made on 
projects and activities from our 
Operational Plan that are guided 
by strategies in our Corporate 
Plan 2013-2018 and include some 
highlighted events and activities as 
well as an introduction to some of 
our staff.

Pages 62–68 is a report on the 
requirements and obligations 
we have under the Queensland 
Local Government Act 2009 and 
other legislation.

There are four parts to our Annual Report:

Pages 69–72 is the Community 
Financial Report—an easy to 
understand overview of our 
financial position.

Pages 73–127 are the 
comprehensive audited financial 
statements of the Central 
Highlands Regional Council.

We believe our Annual Report 
reflects the diversity of the works 
and services we provide to the 
communities of the Central 
Highlands,  fulfils our promise to 
be fair, transparent and open in 

our dealings with the community 
and provides an important 
historical record for the region.

The Annual Report is published 
on our website at www.
centralhighlands.qld.gov.au. 
Printed copies are available on 
request by telephoning  
1300 242 686.
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Our Vision
Working Today – Growing Tomorrow 

Welcome to our  
Annual Report 2014-2015

Continuous 
Improvement
We strive to build: 

• an environment that 
encourages questions 

• thinking and approaches that 
are flexible 

• ability to think beyond the 
norm in order to provide service 
and value for our ratepayers 

Respect for Diversity 
• we treat others as we wish to 

be treated 

• we are fair and consistent in 
the way we treat people 

Honesty and Integrity 
• we are ethical and honest 

with our colleagues and our 
community 

• we respect and act within 
statutes and legislation 

• we are fair, transparent and 
open in our dealings with our 
community 

• we accept accountability for 
our actions 

Leadership, Engagement 
and Fair Representation 
• we are clear about our direction 

and priorities 

• we provide opportunities for 
consultation 

• we seek to understand the 
needs of the people we serve, 
in order to make balanced 
decisions for the overall 
interests of the people of the 
Central Highlands 

• we provide timely and 
relevant information to our 
community and throughout the 
organisation 

• we listen 

Teamwork 
• we work collaboratively with 

our community and external 
partners 

• we are focussed on developing 
and maintaining positive 
working relationships right 
across the organisation 

• we work collectively on 
common goals, share ideas 
and encourage collaborative 
thinking 

We Value and Demonstrate
• we actively seek to encourage 

and acknowledge great 
teamwork that produces great 
results for our community and 
our organisation 

• when mistakes are made we 
treat them as an opportunity to 
learn and grow 

Great Customer Service 
• we seek and welcome feedback 

• we communicate clearly and 
appropriately 

• we follow through on the 
things we say we will do 

• our responses to customer’s 
needs are friendly, timely and 
professional 



Our region 
The Central Highlands region is in Central 
Queensland, Australia. 

The region encompasses an area of around  
60 000 square kilometres, making it just short 
of the size of Tasmania. 

It is home to around 30 000 people who live 
in the thirteen unique communities of Arcadia 
Valley, Bauhinia, Blackwater, Bluff, Capella, 
Comet, Dingo, Duaringa, Emerald, Rolleston, 
Sapphire Gemfields, Springsure and Tieri. 

Our region is rich in minerals and agriculture, 
thriving on irrigation sourced from water 
storage on the Nogoa and Comet rivers. 

We claim the largest sapphire-producing fields 
in the Southern Hemisphere. 

Major freight routes through the region include 
the north-south link between Charters Towers 
and northern New South Wales—identified as 
the inland transport alternative between Cairns 
and Melbourne. 

This is a vibrant region with a diverse economy 
based on: 

• A globally competitive coal mining industry. 

• Robust and resilient agriculture and 
horticultural industries including beef, grain, 
cotton, grapes, melons and citrus. 

• Dynamic small to medium-size businesses. 

• Professional and government sectors. 

• Adequate availability of commercial, 
industrial and residential land. 

• An evolving tourism market. 

• Major health and education services. 

• Significant new infrastructure and 
construction projects.
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During the past twelve months we’ve been 
continuing the quest to establish the Central 
Highlands as a region of choice. 

Working today – Growing tomorrow is our 
vision. Developing the region as a premier place 
to live, work, prosper and play is the long-term 
agenda driving many of the initiatives and 
decisions we, as leaders, undertake. 

While the downturn in the resources sector 
has become increasingly evident, we’re lucky 
that this is a uniquely diverse region; not 
reliant on mining, but holding a proud history 
based around agriculture (irrigated and dry 
land), livestock production and citrus and 
grape production. 

The last twelve months was a tough year across 
the Bowen Basin and neighbouring regions 
for many people—employees, small business 
owners, multi-national corporations and 
farmers suffering drought conditions and low 
commodity prices. 

Our community’s capacity for resilience is 
being tested, but we are confident of their 
determination to work smarter and follow 
opportunities as they present. 

One step in this direction was the adoption of 
a development incentive policy in November 
2014 to encourage economic development and 
investment confidence. 

On the horizon is a possible meatworks plant 
for the region. During the year the concept 
was developed and floated for expressions of 
interest. Certainly this project was well received 
from the cattle industry patrons during the Beef 
Week 2015 event held in Rockhampton. 

Council, like any enterprise, looked within for 
efficiency measures and conducted a service 
level review, scrutinised business process 
models and is nearing the completion of 
asset management plans—to ensure we can 
‘grow tomorrow’. 

A highlight from the year’s capital spend of 
$78 million was welcoming the Governor of 
Queensland, His Excellency the Honourable 
Paul de Jersey AC, to officially open the East 
Nogoa Water Treatment Plant—a $33 million 
dollar project to which council was the sole 
contributor from a funding point of view. 

Our achievements against the Operational Plan 
objectives at the end of the 2014-15 financial 
year show 60 completed projects with 81 
projects carried over and one project requiring 
re-evaluation for completion in the next 
financial year.

For the elected representatives it was 
another calendar complete with conferences, 
workshops, regional get-togethers and learning 
opportunities. A highlight was the Queensland 
Local Government Association Conference and 
the 2015 National General Assembly of Local 
Government held in the country’s capital. 

These events presented an opportunity for us 
to advocate strongly with various ministers on 
behalf of the region on issues such as roads, 
health services, water and wastewater, tourism 
and flood mitigation. 

Councillor Peter Maguire  
Mayor

Scott Mason 
CEO

Dealing with government at state and federal 
levels is always a challenge. For a good part 
of this last financial year we had to operate 
under the LNP state government edict of ‘do 
more with less’. Then the government changed 
in January 2015 necessitating another round 
of advocacy. 

A bright spot is the continuing relationship with 
our Japanese sister city council in Ichinoseki. 
Each year we benefit greatly from our student 
exchange program. 

The Central Highlands’ community needs to 
shift its focus now; develop tourism, embrace 
new initiatives—like the meatworks and the 
intermodal transport hub—and continue to 
support each other like the country towns 
of old. 

The Central Highlands Regional Council is in a 
great place—economically and culturally—in no 
small part to the dedication and expertise of the 
staff and the enthusiasm of the councillors. 

Scott Mason – Chief Executive OfficerCouncillor Peter Maguire – Mayor
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Our Executive Leadership Team

Chief Executive Officer 
Scott Mason

General Manager 
Commercial Services 
Michelle Webster

General Manager 
Corporate Services
Mark Lyons

General Manager 
Communities
Brad Duke

General Manager 
Infrastructure & Utilities 
(Acting-commenced April 2015)

Michael Parker

General Manager 
Infrastructure & Utilities 
(Until April 2015)

Geoff Brayford

Executive Manager 
Governance
Mary-Anne Uren

Executive Manager 
Public Affairs
Monica Sidhu

Mayor Peter Maguire

Representative allocations: 

• Nogoa River Flood Plain Board

• CHRC Local Disaster 
Management Committee

• Bowen Basin Regional Roads and 
Transport Group

• Blackwater International Coal 
Centre

• Native title negotiations

• Central Highlands Development 
Corporation 

• Central Highlands (QLD) Housing 
Company Ltd

• Central Queensland Regional 
Organisation of Councils

• Central Highlands Public 
(Community) Transport 
Feasibility Group

• Enterprise Central Highlands  
sub-committee

• Waste management panel

• Bowen Basin Regional Roads & 

Transport Group

Cr Charlie 
Brimblecombe 

Representative allocations:

• Nogoa River Flood 
Plain Board

• Local Government State 
Government Advisory 
Forum – Sapphire 
Gemfields

• CH Regional Resource 
Use Planning Project 

• Duaringa – Blackwater 
Sports Complex

• Native title negotiations 
– Blackwater 

• Fitzroy Basin Association 
(Alternate) Committee

• Enterprise Central 
Highlands sub-
committee

• Waste Management 
Panel (as proxy)

Cr Kev Cracknell

Representative allocations: 

• Area Disaster 
Management Committee 
– Blackwater/Duaringa 

• Blackwater Health 
Advisory Network 
Committee

• Blackwater Sports 
Complex 

• Native title negotiations 
– Blackwater 

• Blackwater 
Showgrounds 
Committee

• Blackwater Aquatic 
Centre steering 
committee

• Blackwater Health 

Advisory Network

Cr Paul Bell 

Representative allocations: 

• Blackwater International 
Coal Centre (alternate)

• Emerald Driver Training 
Facility

• Native Title Negotiations 
– Blackwater 

• CHRC Audit Committee 
– Chair

• Central Highlands (QLD) 
Housing Company Ltd

• GP Super Clinic 
Foundation Board

• CH 2022 
Community Planning 
Advisory Committee

• Central Highlands East 
Nogoa Water Treatment 
Plant Project Committee 
– Chair

Deputy Mayor  
Cr Gail Nixon 

Representative allocations: 

• Chair, Area Disaster 
Management 
Committee – Springsure/
Rolleston

• Deputy Chair, 
CHRC Local Disaster 
Management 
Committee

• Central Highlands QLD 
Housing Company, 
Board member

• CH Arts and 
Culture Advisory 
Committee RADF

• Springsure/Rolleston Arts 
and Cultural committee.

• Springsure Corrective 
Services WORC Camp

• Springsure Community 
Health Advisory Network

• Central Highlands 
Development 
Corporation Board 

• Rolleston 
Community Health 
Advisory Committee

• CH 2022 Community 
Planning Advisory 
Committee

• Central Queensland 
Regional Organisation 
of Councils

• Central Highlands Public 
(Community) Transport 
Feasibility Group

• Enterprise Central 
Highlands Sub-

Committee

Our Mayor & Councillors



Cr Kevin 
Pickersgill

Representative allocations: 

• Rural Services 
Committee/CH Natural 
Resource Management 
Group 

• Bauhinia Sports and 
Recreation Development 
Committee

• Blackwater Aquatic 
Centre steering 
committee

• Bowen Basin Regional 
Roads & Transport Group

Cr Gai Sypher 

Representative allocations: 

• Rural Services 
Committee/CH Natural 
Resource Management 
Group 

• Area Disaster 
Management 
Committee- Capella/Tieri

• Bridgeman Park Sports 
and Steering Committee

• Peak Downs Pioneer 
Village Committee

• Peak Downs Community 
Hall Management 
Committee

• Capella Tieri 
Middlemount 
Community Support 
Network 

• Emerald Saleyards 
Coordination Committee

• Roy Day Users Group, 
Sapphire

• CHRC Community 
Grants Committee

• CH 2022 Community 
Advisory Committee

• Gemfields Interpretive 
Trail Committee

• Regional Development 
Australia

• Central Highlands Public 
(Community) Transport 
Feasibility Group

• Waste Management 
Panel

Cr Peter 
Maundrell

Representative allocations: 

• Nogoa River Flood Plain 
Board

• Area Disaster 
Management 
Committee – Sapphire 
Gemfields

• Gemfields Miners 
Community Advisory 
Committee

• CHRC Audit Committee

• Enterprise Central 
Highlands sub-
committee

Cr Gail Godwin-
Smith 

Representative allocations: 

• Rural Services 
Committee/CH Natural 
Resource Management 
Group 

• CH Arts and Culture 
Advisory Committee/
RADF

• Fitzroy Basin Association 

• CH Regional Resource 
Use Planning Project

• Bauhinia Sports and 
Recreation Development 
Committee

• Rolleston Coal 
Community Reference 
Group 

• Australian Local 
Government Women’s 
Association QLD State 
Executive – Zone 2 
Representative 

• Rolleston Coal 
Community Benefit Fund 

• Bauhinia WORC 
Community Advisory 
Committee

• Area Disaster 
Management 
Committee – Springsure/
Rolleston

• CH2022 Community 
Advisory Committee

• Central Highlands Public 
(Community) Transport 

Feasibility Group
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STRONG 
VIBRANT 
COMMUNITIES
Strong social networks.
Respecting our heritage.
Active, healthy communities.



Build a strong sense of 
community capacity and 
pride through collaborate 
partnerships and programs.

Community Plan 2022

The Central Highlands 2022 Community Plan 
was developed through extensive community 
engagement and took effect from 1 July 2012.

The 10-year plan provides a long-term ‘road 
map’ for the Central Highlands, setting out 
goals, priorities and aspirations for our 13 
unique place communities as well as the 
whole region.

Community Reference Groups have been 
established in each area, marking a key 
milestone in the implementation phase of 
the Plan.

These groups are representative of a cross-
section of the community – industry, business, 
sport and recreation, arts, rural, seniors, youth 
and more.

Their specific aim is to engage with their 
communities to develop individual action plans 
to advance their communities and the Central 
Highlands to 2022 and beyond.

Central Highlands Regional Council is 
one of the only councils in Queensland 
taking this unique approach to building 
strategic partnerships and enhancing 
community resilience.

Regional Community Summit

The inaugural Regional Community Summit 
2015 – ‘Reaching our Peak’ was held in May 
at the Capella Cultural Centre to celebrate and 
bring together members of the 13 Community 
Reference Groups to share their ideas for the 
future and group achievements. 

The day included presentations from the 
Capella, Springsure and Dingo groups 
and displays showcasing each of the 
13 communities. 

The 51 group participants got to know each 
other in a fun ‘speed dating’ exercise, before 
convening groups to develop 23 regional 
projects as part of the ‘Taking it Regional - Big 
Ideas’ activity.

The summit also included a presentation from 
Institute for Resilient Regions Executive Director 
Professor John Cole who challenged community 
members to be creative in their approach to 
leadership and entrepreneurship.

Arts & Culture

Regional Arts Development Fund

Sixteen applicants shared in more than $68 000 
as part of the Regional Arts Development Fund. 
The funding is a partnership between state and 
local governments that invests in quality arts 
and cultural experiences across Queensland.

The dynamic and diverse line-up of 
projects included:

• Central Highlands WW1 ‘Reminiscing the 
Great War’ stories project and exhibition.

• Boots ‘n’ All Gordon Elliott Line Dancing 
Workshop.

• Sensory Circus Tribe for Circus Workshops 
in Tieri.

• Central Highlands Multicultural Festival for 
Japanese string garden workshops.

• Fascinating Felt and Feathers hat making 
workshops in partnership with Isaac 
Regional Council.

Creative Cultural Futures Strategy

A draft Creative Cultural Futures Strategy 2015-
2025 was developed with local stakeholders 
and released for community feedback. It will 
provide a vision for our arts and cultural sector; 
promote and target funding opportunities; 
and support and celebrate arts and cultural 
group partnerships between the community 
and government. 

Cultural Heritage Plan

A regional mapping overlay marking the 
location of significant regional cultural heritage 
sites was developed with assistance from the 
Queensland Department of Natural Resources 
and Mines to promote tourism around the sites 
and protect them for future generations.

Plans also progressed with the production of 
a conservation heritage management plan for 
the region.

Art Galleries

Emerald Art Gallery went through some 
major changes in 2014-15 resulting in a new 
approach to gallery programming—particularly 
in promoting the gallery as a community space 
and encouraging inter-regional partnerships 
with the Springsure and Blackwater art galleries.

A new draft collection management policy has 
enhanced the acquisition capacity of the council 
art collection.

Stand-out exhibitions and events for the year 
included:

• ANZAC exhibition: Gone But Not 
Forgotten, Emerald.

• ANZAC WW1 exhibition, Springsure

• What Next …? Drought Relief 
Photographic Exhibition

• Pattern: A Universal Phenomenon, Emerald

• Springsure Biennial Photo Competition

• Emerald Art Awards

About 12 000 people visited the Emerald and 
Springsure art galleries during the year.

Promote the heritage and 
diverse cultures of our 
communities.

Each of the 13 communities set up a display at the summit.
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Arts in August

The annual Arts in August program celebrated 
its fourth year promoting the diversity of 
the region’s thriving arts and culture sector 
by supporting local community projects and 
their development. 

More than 20 000 people enjoyed this year’s 
events and projects, which included:

• MPC Big Day Out in Sapphire.

• Gemfest (6000 people).

• Wall mural by Source Studio in the artists’ 
precinct behind the Emerald Library in 
partnership with Centacare. 

• Crazy Science performances in Blackwater, 
Emerald, Capella and Springsure. 

• Central Highlands Multicultural Festival 
(7000 people).

Events
Our community enjoyed a fantastic program of 
events this year.

HIGHLIGHTS

• Record numbers were recorded for 
ANZAC Day Centenary services held across 
the region.

• Twenty garage sales were registered for 
the Central Highlands’ first ever Garage 
Sale Trail.

• Successful Clean Up Australia Day 
events were held in Blackwater, Emerald 
and Springsure.

• A ‘Recycle Right’ education stall featured 
at the agricultural shows in Emerald, 
Springsure and Capella.

• More than 300 bottle brush trees were 
planted in Emerald for National Tree Day.

• Australia Day celebrations were held in 
Emerald, Springsure, Blackwater and Tieri.

• More than 300 people from across the 
region attended Seniors Week celebrations 
in Springsure.

Australian all-abilities playground

In 2015, we resolved to construct an Australian-
themed all abilities playground in Ichinoseki 
to signify our strong sister city bond and 
reciprocate the Japanese gardens and seminar 
house built by the former Fujisawa City Council 
in Blackwater in 1993.

The project provides an opportunity for the 
exchange of ideas, work practices and products 
between Australia and Japan, strengthening 
future international trade.

The playground will feature an Australian-
designed and manufactured 
wheelchair accessible 
Devine Liberty Swing 
– the first of its 
kind installed 
in Japan.

Sister City
We have enjoyed a prosperous and cooperative 
Sister City relationship with Ichinoseki City 
Council in Japan since 1993 encouraging 
mutual cultural understanding and goodwill 
through the ongoing exchange of education, 
culture, sport, industry, commerce and youth.

HIGHLIGHTS

Kite Day

The Kite Day tradition was established in 2011 
after a devastating earthquake in Japan and the 
Central Highlands’ major flood event. Each year 
kites are flown in both towns simultaneously 
to remember those who lost homes and loved 
ones. This year the tradition was extended to 
Ichinoseki’s second sister city in Vietnam.

Exchange program

Students and parents from the Central 
Highlands participated in the annual exchange 
program with peers in Ichinoseki that includes 
a family home stay where participants share 
customs, culture and language.

So far, 198 Ichinoseki students have visited 
the Central Highlands and 99 students and 
chaperones from the Central Highlands have 
visited Japan.

“Students and 
parents from the 
Central Highlands 

participated in the 
annual exchange 

program with peers 
in Ichinoseki...”

An Ichinoseki student enjoys Central Highlands’ hospitality.

Bety the steam train visits Emerald. Credit Simone Tessman Photography.
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Indigenous 
development
A number of programs, workshops and events 
were held to support the local indigenous 
community in partnership with BMA and 
the PCYC.

More than 1400 people participated in sports 
clinics, NAIDOC Week activities, healthy lifestyle 
programs, cultural camps and more.

Literacy and numeracy classes, run by two 
qualified volunteer staff members, continued 
every Monday, attracting around 12 regular 
attendees ranging from 5-16 years of age. 

All Abilities Community Garden

The All Abilities Community Garden project has 
taken on a life of its own.

The project started in May 2014 with just 
six people in an effort to discourage park 
vandalism, but now attracts more than 40 
young people.

Each Friday, our Indigenous Community 
Development Officer Sally Atkinson and a 
local elder hold informal get-togethers at 
the Blackwater All Abilities Park to engage 
indigenous youth in planning the garden design 
and development, with an emphasis on healthy 
eating and active leadership.

The youth have taken complete ownership of 
the project, which is helping them to develop 
land management skills relevant to their culture. 

This positive cultural program has also created 
cross-generational collaboration, with elders 
and families getting involved.

Since the program started, vandalism and 
associated costs have reduced significantly.

NAIDOC Week

Star Brisbane Broncos rugby league 
football player Michael De Vere 
visited Blackwater for NAIDOC 
Week celebrations in 2014 
as part of the Queensland 
Government’s Deadly 
Sports Program.

De Vere joined sports 
stars and coaches from 
a number of other 
sporting codes to host 
a series of sports clinics 
with more than 500 
primary and secondary 
students.

Other NAIDOC Week 
activities included a 
combined church service, 
community barbecue, a 
symbolic march, a flag-raising 
ceremony and school-based 
celebrations.

New citizens
The Central Highlands welcomed 118 new 
Australians to its community during seven 
citizenship ceremonies this year.

Of these new citizens, 29 were children and 
89 were adults.

People came from Germany, India, the 
Philippines, the United Kingdom, China, 
Denmark, South Africa, Kiribati, Sri Lanka, 
Nepal, Zimbabwe, Britain, Rhodesia, Rwanda, 
Canada, Iran and Fiji.

More than half of our new citizens were from 
the Philippines and India.

The Central Highlands welcomed 118 new Australians in 2014-15.

 The youth have taken complete ownership of the All Abilities 
community garden.

NAIDOC Week symbolic march.
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Encourage and promote 
community wellbeing, including 
healthy active lifestyles.

CO

RPORATE PLAN

1.4
STRATEGY



HIGHLIGHTS

Youth Week 2015

Events held in Blackwater included a movie 
night, bubble soccer, laser skirmish and 
‘hang-out’ sessions at the Blackwater PCYC 
Youth Space. 

Blackwater PCYC Youth Space

The PCYC Youth Space was launched 
in April 2015 to provide a vibrant, safe 
environment where young people can meet, 
connect and interact after school. It hosts 
regular open nights and fun activities, such 
as skating. It has averaged about 20 - 30 
secondary school students every night 
it’s opened. 

Active Leaders Program

This program provides positive leadership 
incentives for selected school students in 
grades 6 and 7. In 2014-15, 90 students 
participated in the program. In May 2015, 
student leaders worked alongside our parks 
and gardens crew to clean up the Robyn 
Messer Memorial Park in Blackwater. Student 
leaders from across the region gathered 
for a day of workshops, networking and 
inspirational talks at the Youth Leaders’ 
Summit in March 2015. Guest speaker 
was Winter Olympic gold medallist 
Steven Bradbury.

Youth development
Our youth development service, Youth Inc., 
works with young people, families, schools and 
community organisations to provide events 
and programs.

In 2014-15, about 4200 people participated in 
activities ranging from concerts, pool parties 
and discos to movie nights, skate park days, 
holiday programs and laser skirmish.

Volunteers
Hundreds of volunteers selflessly offer their 
commitment, support and experience to many 
of our community programs and facilities. 

We recognise and appreciate the contributions 
of all our unsung heroes, who continuously 
strengthen and enrich the Central Highlands. 
Thank you!

Some of our volunteers:

• Visitor Information Centre staff in 
Emerald, Duaringa, Springsure, Blackwater 
and Capella

• Emerald RSL WW1 Centenary Committee 

• Springsure Art Group

• Friends of the Emerald Art Gallery

• Ivy Anderson Age Home Committee

Libraries
The region’s nine library branches enjoyed a 
steady year with membership increasing by 
1017 to a total of 10 321.

There were 101 031 library visitors, 4962 
website hits and 35 Home Library Service 
clients.

The libraries’ wi-fi service was accessed by 5630 
people for a total of 112 600 hours.

Four hundred programs and events were held 
across the region, attracting 6322 participants 
and included: 

• digital literacy programs

• Crafternoon activities

• regular Kids Time sessions

• school holiday programs

• Book Week celebrations 

• free multicultural awareness program.

Our library collection increased to 91 036 items 
including books, e-books and audio books.

Cr Godwin Smith and Cr Bell with participants in the Youth Leaders’ Summit.

Visitor Information Centre volunteers: Left to Right –  
Marcia Crosse, Joy Harvey, Gwen Phillips, Aasa Kelly, Peter Grigg 
and Sally Roberts at the back.

Promote love of reading 
and lifelong learning in 
the community through 
responsive programs, services 
and collections.

“This program provides 
positive leadership 

incentives for selected 
school students in 

grades 6 and 7”

Our libraries host regular kids time activities.
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Community Facilities
Springsure Showgrounds  
Multi-purpose Clubhouse

A design for the Springsure Showgrounds 
Multi-purpose Clubhouse is near completion.

The proposed clubhouse will be located at 
the Springsure Showgrounds on Bacoo Street 
and includes public toilets, change rooms, a 
canteen, bar and commentary box.

This facility will not only provide a space for the 
local junior and senior rugby league clubs, but 
other sporting and community organisations. 

Blackwater Aquatic Centre

Council engaged a design consultancy team 
for the new Blackwater Aquatic Centre in 
late 2014. 

The design for the multi-use centre, which will 
be located in the Hunter Street Sports Precinct, 
was unveiled in April 2015.

The new facility, expected to be finished in late 
2016, will use modern, sustainable technology 
and design concepts to provide opportunities 
for swimmers of all age groups, from learners 
and recreational swimmers to competition level. 

The facility will be family friendly and a social 
hub for the community featuring: 

• 50m 10-lane competition pool, 
partially covered

• 25m six-lane, heated and enclosed 
program pool

• splash pad play area with a variety of 
water features

• multi-purpose meeting room

• lots of seating and shade areas.

Ivy Anderson Age Home

The Springsure Ivy Anderson Age Home 
Committee continued to fundraise fiercely 
throughout 2014-15, bringing the total 
amount to more than $200 000.

The eight-unit facility will provide assisted 
living for those people in the community 
requiring low care; closing an identified 
gap within local health services.

It will feature nurse’s quarters, kitchen, 
recreational area, wheelchair access and a 
large covered area and garden to be  
shared with the neighbouring independent 
living facility.

A design concept for the project was  
completed in 2014 and a development 
application submitted to council.

STAFF PROFILE 
Sally Atkinson

My name is Sally Atkinson and I’m the 
Indigenous Community Development Officer.

The thing I love most about my job is 
the people. Engaging with youth is very 
rewarding and I love being able to have a 
positive impact on people’s lives through the 
development of socially-inclusive programs. 

In saying that, the most challenging part 
of my job can also be the people! Going 
through the teething problems of developing 
and providing new services and programs, 
particularly working with disengaged youth 
and marginalised groups, is a complex role, 
but a worthwhile one. 

My favourite time of the year is NAIDOC 
Week where everyone comes together to 
celebrate. Agency people, school kids, young 
people, families and council staff all join 
forces to highlight cultural achievements in 
the local community and enjoy our diversity. 
This show of unity is a true measure of the 
event’s continued success.

The new Blackwater Aquatic Centre design.

The fi rst Springsure vs. Rolleston football game in 40 years raised just under $4000 fo
r Iv
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Provide and maintain 
accessible community services 
and facilities that meet 
the needs of our diverse 
communities and offer value 
for money for all stakeholders.
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ANZAC Day 2015 marked 100 
years since the first Australia 
and New Zealand Army Corps 
troops landed on the shores of the 
Gallipoli Peninsula.

To mark this special occasion and acknowledge 
the service of our local veterans, significant 
projects and events were held across the region.

A WW1 Centenary Committee was formed in 
partnership with the Emerald RSL to produce 
a historic exhibition of local war stories 
and memorabilia. 

The resulting collection, Gone but Not 
Forgotten, was displayed in the Emerald Art 
Gallery in April and a series of stories was 
featured in the local newspaper.

Our Arts and Cultural Officer, Karen 
Newman, assisted the regional RSL and arts 
and cultural groups to secure grants for 
centenary celebrations.

Thanks to funding from the Regional Arts 
Development Fund, a special public art piece 
designed by Bill Gannon was unveiled at 
the Emerald Town Hall during this year’s 
dawn service. A Great War collection was 
also displayed in the Bauhinia Bicentennial 
Art Gallery.

In the week leading up to ANZAC Day, the 
1956 heritage locomotive ‘Bety’ and nine 
restored carriages travelled through Emerald 
and Blackwater as it re-created the historic 
troop train journey.

During its trip, the train visited an exhibition 
by the Blackwater Arts Society and Blackwater 
Patchwork Group. 

The troop train project was inspired by 
Blackwater RSL member and Vietnam veteran 
Lester Anderson.

Other ANZAC Day celebrations included 
a Gallipoli Camp Out in Anakie, a race 
day in Emerald and a regional colouring-
in competition.

All images credit James Laws Photography.
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ANZAC 
DAY 
2015

BUILDING AND 
MAINTAINING  
QUALITY 
INFRASTRUCTURE
Well connected.  
Well serviced.  
Well planned.

HIGHLIGHT



Plan open spaces and 
streetscapes to improve civic 
pride and aesthetic appeal.

Provide sustainable solutions 
for the collection, disposal and 
recycling of waste.

Waste
Waste Reduction, Reuse and 
Recycling Plan 

The key requirement of the Queensland 
Waste Reduction and Recycling Act 2011 is an 
obligation for each council to prepare a Waste 
Reduction and Recycling Plan. The plan must 
set out actions to manage waste in a way that 
best achieves the objectives of the Act, which 
promotes waste reduction, recycling and shared 
responsibility for waste management and 
resource recovery.

Our plan was drafted in 2015. We undertook 
a stakeholder mapping exercise to finalise the 
stakeholder engagement plan and intend to 
conduct community consultation in late 2015.

Community waste education

A contamination audit conducted in 2013 
found that our kerbside recycling bins contained 
an average contamination percentage of 19.4 
per cent (well above the 12 per cent able to 
be processed).

The major items identified as contamination 
included food, plastic bags and 
building materials.

This led to the delivery of a community 
education program at the regional shows in 
2015 that focussed on Recycling Right, where 
council employees manned an interactive booth 
that encouraged visitors of all ages to show off 
their rubbish sorting skills and knowledge.

Town entrance signs
This year, town entrance signs were erected for 
Comet and at the highway entry points to the 
Sapphire Gemfields. 

The artwork on the town entrance panels is a 
collage of iconic images that represent each 
place. The images are generated through a 
community artwork workshop process. 

The town entrance program will eventually 
see every town in our region have their own 
unique entry statement to welcome residents 
and travellers.

The Recycling Right stand at the annual Springsure Show

Waste Statistics

Residential

Service
Households 
served

Container 
(types and 
sizes) 

Collection 
Frequency

Operator

Facilities 
(including 
bulking and final 
destinations) 

Residual 9612 240 litre Weekly Contractor
Emerald, Blackwater 
and Tieri landfills.

Comingled 
Recycling 

9612 240 litre Fortnightly Contractor

Consolidated at 
Blackwater and then 
transported in bulk 
to Rockhampton.

Commercial

Service
Households 
served

Container 
(types and 
sizes) 

Collection 
Frequency

Operator

Facilities 
(including 
bulking and final 
destinations) 

Residual 2089 240 litre Weekly Contractor
Emerald, Blackwater 
and Tieri landfills.

Comingled 
Recycling 

304 240 litre Fortnightly Contractor

Consolidated at 
Blackwater and then 
transported in bulk 
to Rockhampton.

We manage 18 waste management sites that include landfills, transfer stations and bulk bin sites. 
Public place waste and recycling services are provided along with special event waste services.
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FAST FACTS

Our 167-person team has the 
maintenance and capital responsibility for:

4550 km of council-owned rural 
roads and urban streets, including 
approximately 3150 km of unsealed rural 
road; 1050 km of sealed rural road; and 
350 km of urban streets.

The stewardship of 1004 km of the 
Queensland Department of Transport 
and Main Roads owned road network 
managed under the Road Maintenance 
Performance Contract.

• 35 bridges

• 388 km of kerb and channel

• 35 km of culverts and floodways

• 132 km of stormwater structures

• 115 km of footpath

• 5 workshops

Roads Natural Disaster Relief and 
Recover Arrangements 
betterment works

Rifle Range Road upgrade

The Rifle Range Road project upgraded the 
‘missing link’ of this major access road in 
Emerald. The work improved drainage and 
created greater resilience to storm and minor 
flood events so that the community has suitable 
all weather access that links the southern 
urban and rural areas to essential services. The 
project was partially funded under the Roads 
to Recovery Program. The total budget of the 
project was $2.7 million, but was delivered for 
$2.42 million. 

The Arcadia Valley road upgrade 
is a major project spanning three 
financial years. 

The project commenced in April 2014 and is on 
track for completion in December 2015. 

Expenditure for this financial year totalled 
almost $7 million, with some of this 
contributed by SANTOS under their Community 

ARCADIA 
VALLEY ROAD

Infrastructure Program ($3 million); the 
Australian Government’s Royalties for Regions 
program ($8 million); and the Transport 
Infrastructure Development Scheme (TIDS) 
($1.548 million). Council matched the $1.548 
million funding from the TIDS. 

The Arcadia Valley project was warmly 
welcomed by the surrounding community 
because it provides longer sections of all-
weather access for residents, reduced 
maintenance costs to council and improved 
transport links.

Significant roads projects completed or commenced

Project Cost in $

Arcadia Valley - pave & seal 6 963 852

Assist Rockhampton Regional Council with flood recovery from Tropical 
Cyclone Marcia

 424 536 
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Continue to plan, manage and maintain transport infrastructure to 
improve quality and safety.

HIGHLIGHT

CO

RPORATE PLAN

2.4
STRATEGY

An application for funding through the 
Queensland Reconstruction Authority to 
upgrade a number of assets that are continually 
affected by flood events was successful this 
year. As a result, we upgraded 20 of the 22 
individual drainage structures to a value of 

$5.4 million. All but two of these projects were 
completed by 30 June 2015 ensuring that 
these assets will provide reliable service to the 
community during times of storm and flood and 
will remain serviceable after an event.

We have almost completed sealing 
approximately 34 km of gravel road in the far 

south of our region.

Baranga Rd - install 3 concrete floodways  113 709 

Comet River Road - pave & seal  888 731 

NDRRA Betterment projects 5 400 000

Range Baranga Rd - pave & seal  500 092 

Regional reseals  1 156 466 

Rifle Range/Pilot Farm Roads - intersection construction  2 420 113 

Ruby/Yamala Streets - new roundabout  106 355 

Total  18 873 854 



Water
Blackwater Water Treatment 
Plant upgrade

A contract was awarded to Monadelphous 
Water Infrastructure for work to be carried 
out at the Blackwater Water Treatment Plant. 
This will include the addition of a potassium 
permanganate contact tank, upgrade to 
the chemical dosing systems, replacement 
of filter media and an upgrade of the plant 
control system.

The East Nogoa Water 
Treatment Plant was 
officially opened in May 2015 
by the Governor of Queensland, 
His Excellency the Honourable 
Paul de Jersey AC.

Funded entirely by the Central Highlands 
Regional Council, the $33 million water 
treatment plant took thirteen months 
to construct. 

The new plant draws water from the Nogoa 
River and can process up to 19.2 megalitres 
per day, the equivalent of more than seven 
Olympic-sized swimming pools.

Australian group Monadelphous Engineering 
designed and constructed the plant using more 
than 40 local contractors and suppliers.

Foreman Cody Grayson and project supervisor Ed Petts hold the -6°C ice before it was pumped through Blackwater and Bluff water mains. 
Credit: Meghan Kidd

FAST FACTS

• Potable water produced – 6542 ML 
(approx. 18 ML/d)

• Waste water treated 1909 ML

• Properties supplied with water 11 606

• 416 km of water mains maintained

Ice pigging at Blackwater

This year we completed a number of projects 

to improve the quality of water supplied 

to residents in Blackwater and Bluff. These 

measures were to combat issues associated 

with manganese levels that were over the 

aesthetic limit set in the Australian Drinking 

Water Guidelines. 

A process known as ice pigging was 

undertaken by specialist contractor Suez 

Environment to clean water mains in 

Blackwater and Bluff during May and 

June 2015. 

Ice pigging involved injecting an ice slurry into 

the mains at hydrant points and using water to 

propel it through the pipes, therefore scouring 

sediment from within the pipe network. The 

cleaning was undertaken for 126 sections of 

main, at an average length of 579 metres, 

totalling 72.9 km of mains cleaned.

EAST NOGOA 
WATER 

TREATMENT 
PLANT

More than $7 million was spent in the Central 
Highlands region with local businesses being 
involved in key areas such as surveying, 
excavation and earth moving, concreting, crane 
hire and plant and equipment hire. 

The existing Opal Street plant has been working 
at capacity for some time and the East Nogoa 
facility will ensure the water infrastructure 
needs of the Emerald community are met for 
the future.
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Plan and deliver infrastructure that aligns with the aspirations of the 
Central Highlands community.

HIGHLIGHT

CO

RPORATE PLAN

2.1
STRATEGY



Sport & recreation
More than $1.9 million was spent on capital 
works projects at aquatic facilities across the 
region including:

• Blackwater - decommission two pools at 
the current facility and design works for the 
new centre. 

• Emerald – new chlorination system and 
concourse upgrades.

• Capella – new gates for security and new 
chlorination system.

• Springsure – new concourse works to 
prevent stormwater flowing back into 
the pool.

• Rolleston – new chlorination system 
and shed.

Our sporting facilities benefitted from more 
than $500 000 funding including:

BLACKWATER – the clean-up and removal 
of old buildings and safety works at the 
Hunter Street Sports precinct and tennis court 
refurbishments.

EMERALD – to remedy fire compliance issues 
at the PCYC complex.

EMERALD – track maintenance, installation of 
a new starting gate and irrigation at Sunrise 
Rotary BMX track.

SAPPHIRE GEMFIELDS – electrical upgrade 
work at Roy Day Park. 

Capital works at regional showgrounds totalled 
$400 000 including:

• Capella – maintenance work on the stables.

• Blackwater – general fencing and an 
electrical upgrade at the amenities block.

• Emerald – construction of a new amenities 
building.

There were 24 projects undertaken throughout 
the region’s parks totalling more than  
$500 000. These ranged from shade structures, 
new and replacement play equipment, 
irrigation, fencing, fitness equipment, soft fall, 
carpark sealing and installation of barbecues.

Regional cemeteries received irrigation 
maintenance, construction of new walls, a 
new rotunda and 
connection of 
water totalling 
a spend of 
more than 
$100 000.

Parks & gardens
Our sixty-strong Parks and Gardens Team were 
kept busy maintaining, watering, mowing, 
cleaning and enhancing the many and 
varied parks, playgrounds, public buildings, 
open spaces, sports and recreational areas 
throughout the region. 

We also maintain many other areas, such as 
state government-owned land, nature strips 
and vacant land for safety, health and amenity 
reasons, particularly during summer. 

Regular repair and maintenance is undertaken 
to ensure the community has access to our 
facilities for sporting, passive or recreational 
enjoyment. More than $9 million is spent on 
the maintenance and operation of these assets 
across the region. 

Clean Up Australia Day

Clean Up Australia Day 2015 was a huge 
success with events held in Blackwater, Emerald 
and Springsure. More than 250 volunteers 
attended the Emerald event and removed 
2500 kg of litter across 18 designated clean-up 
sites. Items recovered included hub caps, traffic 
cones and a shower hose!

The Japanese Garden at Blackwater.

More than 250  
volunteers attended the 
Emerald event and removed 
2500 kg of litter
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Blackwater tennis court refurbishment.



STAFF PROFILE 
Jason Hoolihan

My name is Jason Hoolihan and I’m the Coordinator of Infrastructure for the north-western 
half of the region. Although I’ve only been with the organisation a few short months 
I’ve enjoyed seeing a tangible benefit to the community because of maintenance and 
improvement in the road network.

Apart from the distances that we cover, which are enormous as the region is just shy of the 
area of Tasmania, the most challenging part of my role is the ever-changing priorities that 
arise from the condition of the roads. Most often it’s due to the weather and seasonal use, 
such as harvesting and the tourist season.

I’m proud that in the last six months I’ve managed to help the infrastructure team develop a 
useful project management tool that tracks progress and expenditure. Since we started using 
it we are seeing actual improvements in performance and quality of the final job.
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SUPPORTING 
OUR LOCAL 
ECONOMY
Facilitate opportunities. 
Advocate for the region.



Tourism
The Sandstone Experience Cluster concept 
developed considerably during the year as the 
Central Highlands Marketing Strategy was 
finalised. The Strategy sets out the direction for 
the marketing and promotion of the region as a 
tourism destination for the next five years.

The Sandstone Experience Cluster covers 
approximately 82 000 square kilometres and 
includes at least 25 separate mountain ranges. 
It’s larger than Tasmania and gets more visitors 
than the popular Kimberley region. 

Local tourism opportunities were promoted well 
during the year including:

• 3 famils for visitor information centre staff 

• weekly tourism radio spot on 4HI

• 4 Tourism@Twilight events

• representation at Sydney Caravan Camping 
Supershow, Brisbane Caravan Camping 
Supershow and Central Queensland 
Recreation and Travel Expo

• planning and development of  
www.centralhighlands.com.au progressed

• launched Central Highlands video content 
with 18 industry partners.

Several new tourism products launched 
or progressed:

• Blackwater caravan overflow stay site

• 22-point geo-caching trail for the Sapphire 
Gemfields area

• new panels for the Sapphire Gemfields 
interpretive trail

• 11-seat bus for tour options

• development of Emerald walking trail. 

Relationships with our tourism partners 
strengthened:

• hosted Tourism and Events Queensland/
Capricorn Enterprise bloggers to promote 
the Sapphire Gemfields

• Facebook launch with Great Inland Way

• partnered with Australia’s Inland Treasure 
Trail, Queensland Touring Route and 
Outback Way

• continued our contribution to Capricorn 
Enterprise for regional destination tourism 
marketing.

2014-15 visitation rate for the Central 
Highlands Visitor Information Centre: 20 240, 
which is an increase of 13% from 2013-14.

Economic & Business 
Development
The Central Highlands Development 
Corporation facilitates a wide range of 
economic and tourism projects and initiatives 
across the region. 

2014-2015 HIGHLIGHTS

• Produced a feasibility study and launched 
an investment opportunity prospectus for a 
Central Highlands meat processing plant.

• Central Highlands Development Register—
provides a quarterly snapshot of key 
developments in the region and surrounding 
areas. As at April 2015, there was a total 
of $559.3 million worth of development in 
progress within our region.

• Business Development and Support 
Program—provides ongoing support to 
businesses, regular updates of advertised 
tenders, assists businesses to tender, 
facilitates training and initiatives for local 
business, manages the online business 
directory and organises the Business 
Excellence Awards.

Carnarvon Gorge is part of the Sandstone Experience Cluster.

• Completion of Housing Needs Analysis 
and Assessment Update and Snapshot 
of Commercial and Industrial Activity in 
the Local Government Area of the Central 
Highlands in partnership with Central 
Highlands Regional Council.

• Supported the progression Central 
Queensland Inland Port Project and an 
oilseed processing plant investment.

• Facilitated the signoff of the Qld Local 
Content Leaders Network Joint Statement 
of Commitment – Maximising Industry Local 
Content in Regional Queensland. 

• Development of Central Highlands 
Queensland website to promote liveability 
and visitor attractions: 
www.centralhighlands.com.au
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Continue to develop opportunities to market the Central Highlands 
as a great place to visit.

Support opportunities for existing and emerging 
industries and businesses to consolidate and grow.
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3.2
STRATEGY
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3.4
STRATEGY



2014 CENTRAL HIGHLANDS MULTICULTURAL FESTIVAL

We have a vision for this region to be known 
for its diversity, liveability and prosperity and 
the Central Highlands Multicultural Festival is a 
proud part of ensuring this vision is achieved.

The Central Highlands Development 
Corporation coordinates this highly successful 

annual festival that brings together communities 
to share food, music and entertainment in a 
celebration of cultural diversity.

The 11th annual event was held on Saturday 
23 August 2014 and attracted more than 
7500 people.

The 2014 Central Highlands Multicultural Festival 
attracted more than 7500 people.
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PROTECTING 
OUR PEOPLE 
AND OUR 
ENVIRONMENT
Well managed. Protected. Sustainable.



Planning & 
development
Draft Central Highlands Regional 
Council Planning Scheme

Our Strategic Planning Unit is preparing a new 
planning scheme to identify the future land 
uses and development intent for the urban 
and rural sectors of the Central Highlands 
region. The plan incorporates the interests of 
the Queensland Government for the whole 
state and is consistent with the draft Central 
Queensland Regional Plan.

The keys steps undertaken this year include:

• Preparation and integration of a single Local 
Government Infrastructure Plan. 

• Completion of the first interest check 
by the Queensland Department of State 
Infrastructure, Local Government and 
Planning.

• Public consultation and review of 
submissions.

Commercial, industrial and 
housing audits 

A Snapshot of Commercial and Industrial 
Activity in the Local Government Area of the 
Central Highlands 2015 is a five-yearly audit 
that provides an overview and analysis of 
change in the region’s commercial and industrial 
land use and business activities.

The Housing Needs Analysis and Assessment 
was updated to provide an understanding 
of the implications of a lower population 
projection in the region since the previous audit 
in 2010. 

Both publications were produced in partnership 
with the Central Highlands Development 
Corporation.

Development Incentive Policy

In December 2014, we adopted a development 
incentive policy to encourage economic 
development through investment in our region. 
An annex to the policy is the Development 
Incentive (Infrastructure Charges Increment 
Subsidy) Policy that relieves infrastructure 
charges until 30 June 2017 for development 
applications that particularly relate to 
rejuvenation of commercial centres and the 
establishment of special industry areas and 
ecotourism enterprise.

2014-2015 Building Approval 
Statistics

• Council certified approvals –  
75 Approvals – Total value - $3 394 204 

• Privately certified approvals –  
169 Approvals – Total value $29 600 867 

• Inspections completed by council  
certifier – 601

2014-2015 Plumbing Applications 
and Inspections

• Plumbing applications  111

• Form-4 lodgements  253

• Inspections (including meetings)  2288

Authorised Inspection Program

The Building, Planning, Plumbing and 
Environmental Health Units conducted an 
Authorised Inspection Program in Blackwater, 
Capella, Emerald, the Sapphire Gemfields 
and Springsure for a period of six months to 
November 2014. 

The experience from this first round of 
inspections resulted in the proposed Integrated 
Community Engagement and Communications 
Plan known as ‘Easy Check’ – Council General 
Inspection Program. 

This plan focussed on an educational campaign 
to encourage and assist people to comply 
with the legislative requirements for building, 
plumbing, planning, environmental health and 
local laws.

The total number of inspections during 
this period totalled 553: Building – 50, 
Planning – 390 and Plumbing – 113). Sites 
visited included mines, quarries, industrial 
buildings, caravan sites, parks, commercial and 
industrial buildings, residential properties and 
accommodation buildings.

2014-2015 Development Assessment Statistics

Development assessment statistics Lodged Completed

Material change of use 17 23

Reconfiguring a lot 21 18

Material change of use and reconfiguring a lot combined 1 3

Operational works (landscaping and advertising devices) 3 3

Permissible change/extend relevant period 21 27

Negotiated decision 8 4

Withdrawn/lapsed 14

Boundary dispensations 0 0

Deferred decision by council 3 2

Planning and Environment Court appeals 4 4

Totals 92 84
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Support the region’s growth through integrated, well-planned 
development.

Provide and improve development processes to support continued 
and sustained growth for future generations.
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Ranger Services 
Our Ranger Services Team has a number of 
responsibilities throughout the region including:

• management of stock routes

• animal management

• pest and weed control

• abandoned vehicles

• overgrown allotments

2014-2015 HIGHLIGHTS

The travelling stock route through the region 
benefitted from $180 000 state government 
upgrade funding. The route was well-patronised 
during the year as western Queensland property 
owners used the ‘long paddock’ because of the 
ongoing drought.

A number of travel permits were issued, mostly 
for the same three mobs as they moved into 
different parts of the region. The numbers of 
each mob varied during their stay, but averaged 
at 1000 head.

Campaigns of 1080 baiting continued 
throughout the year in an effort to control the 
wild dog population.

Rangers attended three local schools to deliver 
PetPep, a responsible pet ownership program 
aimed at primary school students.

In March 2015, two rangers attended a 
Western Queensland Regional Shire Rural Lands 
Officer Group meeting at Winton. 

Our rangers assisted Biosecurity Queensland 
staff with ground operations and surveillance 
of emerging migratory locust swarms in the 
Springsure/Rolleston area. 

We established an off-leash area in Hunter 
Street, Blackwater.

Disaster Management
FIRE MITIGATION

Our partnership with Queensland Fire & 
Emergency Services and other emergency 
management agencies through the Central 
Highlands Regional Fire Management Group 
continued with essential fire mitigation work 
throughout the year.

PROMOTION

Display stands were held at Capella, Emerald 
and Springsure shows and 350 household 
preparation packs were distributed.

GET READY 2014-15 – OCTOBER 2014

During the week-long celebration about 1000 
household preparation kits were distributed 
accounting for more than 22 000 public 
education pamphlets and brochures. 

Nearly 300 people attended the Bauhinia 
Rock N Roll Comedy and Rolleston Rock N 
Roll Comedy shows in October receiving 
information kits and enjoying the opportunity 
to chat with emergency services personnel.

There was also an excellent turn out to the 
Emergency Services Market Day.

DISASTER MANAGEMENT PLANNING

Our Emergency Management Coordinator 
was involved in the Queensland Government 
sponsored development of the Emergency 
Management Assurance Framework.

DISASTER OPERATIONS

We were extremely lucky to miss any 
devastating natural events with only minor 
damage sustained from Tropical Cyclone Marcia. 
As a result were able to provide support to 
Banana Shire Council with a highly skilled team 
to assist in their disaster coordination centre and 
a large contingent of civil operations staff and 
plant sent to Rockhampton Regional Council.

COMMUNICATION

The Local Disaster Coordination Centre is 
tested and ready for operation with satellite 
communications, priority hard-wired land phone 
lines, independent broadband internet, and an 
opt-in SMS alert system managed by council.

DISASTER MANAGEMENT EXERCISES

A full simulation exercise was conducted for the 
Local Disaster Coordination Centre to prepare 
staff and test the capabilities of the Guardian 
Control Centre software.

The Local Disaster Management Group was 
activated in February 2015 in response to 
Tropical Cyclone Marcia.

FLOOD WARNING AND ALERT SYSTEMS

The Central Highlands community will benefit 
from network upgrades to several early warning 
systems during the year, with council funding 
early warning and mass notification systems for 
the Sapphire and Rubyvale communities.

We have enhanced the region’s monitoring and 
early warning capabilities with the installation 
of the thirtieth gauge. There is now a 
comprehensive network of 50 gauging stations, 
20 operated by the Bureau of Meterology.

RANGER SERVICES STATISTICS

Dogs registered as at  
30 June 2015

4021

Animals impounded 493

Animals euthanased 22%

Animals rehomed 33%

Animals returned to owners 45%

Dog attacks 120

Barking dog complaints 86

Other complaints 1713

CHRC staff assisting the Banana Shire Council disaster recovery 
centre. From left to right: Mary Ryan, Fran Rofe, Dylan Stanton, 
Natasha Todd, Michelle Bell and Debbie Gibson

“The travelling stock 
route through the 
region benefitted 

from $180 000 state 
government upgrade 

funding.“

Rangers Jaime-Lee Chalmers and Dave Osten.

Water Rats is a training weekend for SES Volunteers at Fairbairn Dam.
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Develop and implement strategies to improve, promote and adopt 
sustainable environmental practices...

Develop and deliver initiatives to mitigate, prevent, prepare for, 
respond to and recover from disasters.
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Environment

Reef Guardian Council

In September 2014, we celebrated a new 
partnership with the Great Barrier Reef Marine 
Park Authority to protect Queensland’s Great 
Barrier Reef through the Reef Guardian 
Council program.

Reef Guardian Councils have an important 
role in planning for sustainable population 
growth, approving environmentally sound 
developments, and preparing the community 
for climate change impacts.

Pest Management Plan

The inaugural Regional Pest Management 
Plan steering committee meeting was held 
in October 2014 with representatives from 
Livingstone, Rockhampton, Gladstone, Isaac, 
Banana and Central Highlands Regional 
councils, Fitzroy Basin Association, Central 
Highlands Regional Resource Use Planning 

Cooperative, Capricorn Pest Management 
Group and Queensland Transport and 
Main Roads.

Draft goals and objectives were established to 
facilitate the development of an overarching 
Regional Pest Management Plan. 

Fitzroy Partnership for River 
Health (FPRH) Drinking 
Water Reports 

The first drinking water report card produced by 
the FPRH was released in November 2014.

This new web-based reporting tool informs 
local residents about how their drinking water 
is influenced by river water quality and the local 
water treatment process. 

Our drinking water received an excellent ‘A’ 
grade, while the Ecosystem Health Result for 
the Fitzroy Basin, which includes our region’s 
major river systems, received a ‘B’ grade due 
to the lower than average rainfall and reduced 
river flows.

Flying fox management

In August, we adopted a flying fox roost 
management strategy and associated public 
information collateral to help us manage the 
flying fox dispersal activities at Duaringa.

Environmental Health
Our Environmental Health Officers are 
responsible for many aspects of community 
health including monitoring of food 
establishments, personal appearance services 
(hairdressers, beauty therapy, body piercing, 
tattooists), environmentally relevant activities, 
caravan parks and camping grounds, shared 
facility accommodation, environmental 
nuisances, litter control and control of public 
health risks, such as mosquitoes and vermin.

Our year

Food

• there were 205 registered premises

• we carried out 66 inspections

• 3 complaints about food premises were 
investigated

• we issued 80 temporary caterers permits.

Water

162 days were spent water sampling and 1572 
samples were taken. 

Complaints

We received in excess of 200 complaints 
relating to environmental nuisance such as 
untidy allotments, smoke, fumes, odours, noise, 
and soil pollution.

The Central Highlands’ Mayor Cr Peter Maguire (3rd from left) toasts the ‘A’ grade drinking water results with FPRH representatives and 
Coordinator Environment and Waste, Geoff Atherfold (4th from left)

Ensuring caterers maintain food hygiene sta
ndard

s.

STAFF PROFILE 
Michelle Bell

My name is Michelle Bell. As well as 
being an Administration Assistant 
for the Infrastructure and Utilities 
Department, I’m also the State Emergency 
Local Controller.

I’ve been involved in volunteer emergency 
services for more than 20 years; driven 
by a passion for helping my community, 
being in places when needed and using 
my skills and knowledge to help others. 

I love the camaraderie that comes with 
being an emergency services volunteer 
and the interesting people I meet. I 
especially love working with volunteers. 
They turn up because they want to, 
not just to pick up a pay cheque. SES 
volunteers really are ‘orange angels’ in 
time of need.

Often I wish the community understood 
that SES volunteers are not paid and we 
do everything for our community in our 
own time. When a disaster happens we 
leave our own families to go and help 
others—all for the satisfaction of just 
being there to help. 

We have wonderful facilities, vehicles and 
equipment available here in the Central 
Highlands, thanks in the most part to the 
council, and I’m confident we’re well able 
to respond and recover from any disaster 
we all may be unlucky to encounter.
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Since the last devastating 
Queensland flood event, we have 
worked diligently to establish a 
flood mitigation scheme to protect 
our community.

The initial Floodplain Management Plan 
proposed several recommendations, one of 
which was to build levees on both sides of the 
Nogoa River in Emerald.

The subsequent Emerald Flood Protection 
Scheme Feasibility Study report carried out 
by specialist engineers AECOM was adopted 
in February 2015, thereby recognising that a 
flood levee system was a viable flood mitigation 
option for the township of Emerald. 

The Study proposed a number of preferred 
flood levee alignments, descriptions of levee 
treatment options and flood modelling data 
post levee construction.

In March 2015, we contracted a community 
engagement specialist to provide information 

to the community about the recommendations 
from the Study and other flood mitigation 
options, such as cleaning the Nogoa River, 
and to seek views, concerns and suggestions 
that landholders and stakeholders may have in 
relation to the suggested levee alignments.

Between March and June 2015 there were 
more than 920 engagement opportunities 
that included one-on-one meetings, briefing 
sessions, councillor workshops, feedback form 
submissions and visitors to a pop-up interpretive 
space in the local shopping centre.

Key general findings from the consultation 
included: there is a strong support for the levee, 
there is concern about impact on the ratepayer, 
and there is concern for a fair and timely 
process for land acquisitions.

In late June 2015, council adopted seven 
resolutions in relation to the Emerald flood 
mitigation options, including that a staged 
procurement process for the full design 
of the preferred levee alignment option 
be undertaken.

EMERALD 
FLOOD 
MITIGATION 
SCHEME

HIGHLIGHT
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PROACTIVE 
RESPONSIBLE 
LEADERSHIP
Strong leadership.  
Genuine community engagement.



Corporate 
Communications
Corporate Communications was consolidated 
early in 2015 with the appointment of 
a Communications Coordinator and a 
Communications Officer to bring the team to its 
full complement of three.

The team’s focus is to build solid relationships 
with our internal service areas to encourage 
proactive management of information to the 
community about our organisation and the 
activities happening around the region.

Our year

The new council website and intranet project 
commenced with a supplier chosen by tender 
for the content management system. The 
new website is expected to be online by 
February 2016.

Our social media presence continued to grow 
through the use of Facebook and Twitter. 

Average Facebook posts per month: 37

Number of media releases issued per month: 9

Average monthly visitors to www.
centralhighlands.qld.gov.au: 6738

TOP TEN HOT TOPICS FOR 2014-15:

• New East Nogoa Water Treatment Plant

• Blackwater Aquatic Centre

• proposed meat works

• Blackwater water treatment

• council reform

• Emerald flood mitigation 

• a visit from Bety the steam train

• responsible pet ownership

• sister city relationship with Japan

• ANZAC Day 100th Anniversary

Technology
Microsoft Lync

Our Information Services Team rolled out a 
new unified communications system across the 
organisation in early 2015.

More than just a phone, Microsoft Lync provides 
a single client experience for presence sensing, 
meetings, instant messaging, screen sharing, 
voice and video. 

The program integrates with other Microsoft 
products and uses the internet, which means 
staff can work remotely or offsite with 
greater ease. 

Lync also has the capability to talk to other 
councils and companies with the same system.

The project involved replacing more than 300 
council desktop phones with wireless headsets 
or ear pieces.

The Corporate Communications Team from left: Hayden Thomson, 
Andrea Ferris and Kara Paradies

Advocacy

We continued to lobby government 
throughout the year around our 10-point 
Plan for the long-term prosperity and 
liveability of our region.

The 10-Point Plan

1. Upgrading local roads

2. Improving state highways

3. New Blackwater Hospital

4. Reintroduction of 40% subsidy 
for sewerage water and water 
treatment capital works

5. Master plans for sport and 
recreation precincts

6. Flood mitigation measures

7. New SES facility for Blackwater

8. Civic projects

9. Economic development projects

10. Tourism support

LOVE Central Highlands

The colourful Love Central 
Highlands campaign was 
launched during the year to 
promote local events and 
businesses.

CALDCOM Food Safety 
Boards

Our festival food and 
festival site safety materials 
for culturally and linguistically 
diverse communities has proved so successful 
and popular that they were requested to be 
used by the multicultural City of Moreland 
in Melbourne.

Meeting around the region

During the year we hit the road and took the 
general council meeting to the regional towns. 
The council meeting is held and afterwards 
councillors put on a community barbecue and 
chat with locals. 

A council meeting was held in Blackwater in 
September 2014, Springsure in November 2014 
and Capella in February 2015.

ECM transition

Technology One Enterprise Content 
Management or ECM enables the efficient 
capture, storage, use and management of 
information contained within its business 
documents from any device, anywhere and 
anytime. 

Up until this year, we have combined ECM 
with several internal shared drives for record 
keeping purposes. In June, we decided to make 
ECM the primary location for our electronic 
documents. 

The comprehensive transition project has 
involved a series of workshops with each 
council department as well as ECM training for 
all staff members.
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Encourage the community 
become more informed 
and involved.
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STAFF PROFILE 
Dylan Stanton

My name is Dylan Stanton and I’m a Systems Administrator in the Information Services Team.

I love information systems and networks because it´s something that’s constantly growing 
and improving. Designing and troubleshooting networks is my favourite part of the role. 
While some people can stand back and say: ‘I built that fence’, I can simply say ‘I built that 
network!’ Even if I can’t physically see or touch fifty per cent of what I build, there is still 
great satisfaction knowing it exists and understanding how it works. Providing network 
connections to sites not only benefits council, but rewards me by being able to assist people 
to improve their work with connectivity to council systems—making their life that little 
bit easier.

There are vast career avenues in information technology and system administrators 
are usually tasked with a bit of everything; from installing, supporting and maintaining 
servers or network infrastructure, to planning for and responding to service outages and 
software problems. I find myself venturing down many different paths on a day-to-day 
basis. While this can be quite challenging, it adds excitement to my role and broadens my 
overall knowledge.

I obtained my diploma of project management this year which enables me to add more value 
to projects by applying, not only my technical skills, but my new project skills. Already I have 
seen the benefits of this training by approaching projects with a different perspective.
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STRONG 
GOVERNANCE
Confidence. Accountability. Stability.



Commercial Services
Central Highlands Regional Council owns and 
operates three businesses: the Emerald Airport, 
Shepton Quarry and the Emerald Saleyards.

The general economic decline within the region 
has provided a challenge for all our commercial 
businesses during the last twelve months.

Emerald Airport

OUR YEAR

• The airport returned significant surplus 
results in regard to their operations despite 
the downturn in the mining sector.

• Work commenced on an upgrade to the 
long-term carpark, a security upgrade to 
access gates to airside and relocation of 
some rental cars from a temporary parking 
area to the short-term carpark.

• Contract security resources were engaged as 
back-up support for airport operations.

• Our Commercial Services Department 
was restructured and two new positions 
created: Manager Airport and Commercial 
Accountant.

• Airport passenger numbers declined during 
the year by about 10% to around  
234 000.

• Alliance Airlines opened up 
their charter flights to regular 
passenger transport seats 
that provided an extra 
choice of carrier for 
the public.

• A business plan 
and asset plan were 
developed for the 
Emerald Airport.

Emerald Saleyards

OUR YEAR

• The Emerald Saleyards returned a significant 
operational surplus despite the regional 
drought conditions. 

• A new disabled toilet was constructed at 
the yards and the construction of steel 
cattle holding yards to replace the wooden 
ones continued.

• A business plan and asset plan were 
developed for the Emerald Saleyards.

• Saleyards throughput continued to be 
strong during the year.

Shepton Quarry

OUR YEAR

• A new Quarry Manager was appointed 
bringing more than 20 years’ experience in 
extractive industries.

• Operational improvements resulted in better 
internal support and supply for our own 
road infrastructure programs. 

• A number of improvements to crushing 
plant operations were made to improve 
efficiency including the multiskilling of 
quarry operators.

• Diversification of quarry operations beyond 
the Capella pit were implemented and 
the Deep Creek project provided 130 000 
tonnes of road base for our Arcadia Valley 
Road project.

• The regional mining resources downturn had 
significant impact on the quarry operations. 

• The state government reduced spending 
on road infrastructure and regional flood 
restoration works on road were finalised. 

Governance
OUR YEAR

• Extensive work was undertaken to finalise 
a native title/cultural heritage compliance 
system with training to be rolled out 
throughout the organisation during the 
latter part of 2015.

• Establishment of an Integrity Officer within 
the Governance Team. The role is focussed 
on compliance, investigation and internal 
audit functions.

Fraud and Misconduct 
(Queensland Audit Office  
2014-2015)

We are establishing and implementing a fraud 
risk management framework in accordance 
with the recommendations of the Queensland 
Audit Office 2014-2015, and embedding AS 
8001-2008 Fraud and Corruption Control 
standard, in our policies and procedures.

We are committed to: 

• A zero–tolerance approach to fraud 
and corruption. 

• Corruption and fraud control and 
management as an integral component of 
our corporate governance.

• Transparent and accountable processes 
consistent with sound business practices and 
organisational standards of compliance. 

• Preventing fraud and corruption 
and investigating and actioning all 
suspected incidents.

• Integrating a fraud and corruption 
prevention framework to minimise the 
impact and reduce the risk of fraud and 
corruption within the work environment.
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Commercial activities are managed well and provide benefits to 
our community.
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STAFF PROFILE 
Lila Fry

My name is Lila Fry and I’m the Safety Supervisor for Workplace Health and Safety.

There are many things I like about my role, but I particularly like that no two days are ever 
the same. One minute I can be working with the roads guys and the next with IT or parks 
and gardens. 

I think the National Safe Work Month message ‘Be safe be healthy because …’ really 
captures the safety culture. For me, safety is all about looking out for myself and others. 
Everyone should be able to come to work and go home in the same manner they arrived – 
free from injury or illness. Our team’s role is to educate, assist and advise staff to ensure they 
comply with safe systems of work. 

There are definitely some challenges; like trying to stay abreast of changes within the 
industry that impact on the way we do business and our systems. Another major challenge 
is the size of our council area and the dispersal of our facilities. Adding that on top of 
working with all the different departments and it can be quite overwhelming. That’s why it’s 
important to educate people so everyone has the information and knowledge required to 
work safely.

I’d have to say one of my greatest achievements to date is the implementation of our online 
learning platform. This tool, which has evolved over time, is being used in many different 
ways and has been embraced as a way to disseminate information and provide training 
and inductions. It’s used every month by all employees to complete their mandatory safety 
training and it’s really improved communication across our organisation.
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A WORKPLACE 
OF EXCELLENCE
A leading culture. Living our values. 
A great place to work.



Our people
STAFF NUMBERS FOR 2014/15 FINANCIAL YEAR

Permanent Full Time 345

Contract Full Time 28

Contract Part Time 0

Apprentices Full Time 2

Permanent Part Time 18

Casuals 30

Temporary Full Time 11

Temporary Part Time 0

Temporary Contract 0

Full Time Trainees 1

School Based Trainees 0

TOTAL EMPLOYEES 435

INTERNAL VERSUS EXTERNAL

Total internal employees 213

Total external employees 222

TOTAL EMPLOYEES 435

Termination Numbers 01/07/14 - 30/06/15

CEO Office 10

Commercial Services 11

Communities 19

Corporate Services 7

Infrastructure & Utilities 61

Total Terminations 108

Recruitment Numbers 01/07/14 - 30/06/15

CEO Office 5

Commercial Services 7

Communities 18

Corporate Services 10

Infrastructure & Utilities 19

Total recruitments 59

Employee Turnover 55%

Gender Balance Male Female

Executive (ELT) 4 3

Executive (MMT) 9 4

Councillors & mayor 6 3

All other employees (not included above) 271 144

TOTAL 290 154

RENUMERATION

Salary Range Number of Contracted Senior Employees

125,000 - 175,000 2

175,000 - 225,000 4

225,000 + 1

FYE 2014/15

No of Employees

Males Females
Age 15 
– 24yrs

25-35 
yrs

36-45 
yrs

46-55 
yrs

56-65 
yrs

65+ 
yrs

CEO 4 14 3 1 7 6 1 0

Commercial 
Services

18 5 2 8 5 4 4 0

Communities 66 84 9 30 20 54 33 4

Corporate Services 15 34 5 10 12 18 4 0

Infrastructure & 
Utilities

181 14 17 26 41 54 53 4
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Adopt practices and systems that support a skilled, motivated and 
community focussed workforce.
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Safety & wellbeing
OUR YEAR

• There was a 97% completion rate for our 
Take 5 safety training modules. Less than 
.5% of these were completed on paper, 
the rest were completed online through 
E-Learning. 

• Two stickers were developed for council 
vehicles targeting safe driving asking the 
public to report any unsafe behaviour and for 
all heavy vehicles advising: ‘if you can’t see 
the truck mirrors, the driver can’t see you’.

• Almost half of our workforce took advantage 
of the annual flu vaccination program.

• Online volunteer and contractor inductions 
were developed and introduced in early 2015.

• In June 2015, a Work Health and Safety 
Management Plan and monthly action plans 
(MAPs) were adopted. The Plan will provide 
overall actions to reduce workplace injury 
and disease and ensure that our employees, 
contractors, volunteers and visitors are free 
from hazards and risks to their wellbeing. 
The MAPs are fundamental actions to be 
conducted each month.

• Regular hazard inspections were conducted 
in all work areas.

• An internal report; Asbestos: A Best 
Practice Approach for Central Highlands 
Regional Council was presented at our 
overarching health and safety meeting 
in May. The report looks at a 
strategic direction for 
the management of 
asbestos within the 
workplace to 
align with state 
and national  
strategies.

Community Survey
Our fourth biennial community survey 
was completed in this year by the Central 
Queensland University. The survey assists us to 
examine community perceptions of the council 
and living in the region and assess satisfaction 
and wellbeing.

Overall, the findings of this report showed a 
high level of contentment among residents with 
nearly all respondents declaring that they enjoy 
living in the region. The report is published on 
our website.

Customer Service 
This year, we achieved various milestones in 
the successful implementation of two major 
customer service projects:

MICROSOFT LYNC

Our telephone systems were replaced with a 
single unified communications platform called 
Microsoft Lync.

This has taken the organisation from having 
standard phone functions, to a more 
robust solution enabling presence/status 
awareness, instant messaging, audio and 
video conferencing capability, Online meeting 
functionality; all of which allow for better 
communication and collaboration with both 
colleagues and our customers. 

All traditional desk phones were replaced by 
wireless headsets, providing better ergonomics 
and enable mobility around the office.

TOUCHPOINT 

We launched a new contact centre phone 
system – TouchPoint.

TouchPoint works alongside Microsoft Lync and 
extends call management functionality for large 

volumes of calls, while providing an excellent 
customer experience.

TouchPoint enables us to accurately monitor 
and report on a range of call statistics including 
call volume, nature of call, call resolution, as 
well as a range of statistics based on individual 
customer service representatives.

CUSTOMER REQUESTS RECEIVED IN 
2014-15

Topic

Water 2800

Development/compliance 2121

Local laws 1480

Roads 858

Rates 794

Parks and gardens 521

Waste management 514

Animal management 380

Facilities 239

Pest management 218

Blackwater - general 206

Emerald - general 178

Sewerage 169

Stock route 104

CEO office 63

Capella - general 30

Springsure - general 23

Fleet 7

TOTAL 10705

Training & 
development
We have continued to adopt practices and 
systems that support a skilled, motivated and 
community focused workforce. 

Throughout the past year we have actively 
supported staff succession, development and 
retention through the successful completion of:

• tailored corporate inductions and best 
practice training 

• formal professional and personal goal 
setting and action planning 

• industry leading training and development 
courses and corporate seminars

• trade/site specific skills training and 
development 

• leadership development program

• traineeship and apprenticeship programs

• mandatory online training modules 

We were recognised for: ‘becoming one of 
Queensland’s leading examples of councils 
implementing a modern approach to staff 
training’ with the successful uptake of an 
industry leading online training environment for 
our staff.

Councillors training with LGAQ.

Customer service officers Latetia Moloney and Skye Scott.
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Continue to create and develop a positive and future-focussed culture 
that demonstrates and supports council’s values.

Provide consistent high levels of 
customer service...

Provide responsive and efficient 
systems to enable the delivery 
of council services.

CO

RPORATE PLAN

7.3
STRATEGY

CO

RPORATE PLAN

7.4
STRATEGY

CO

RPORATE PLAN

7.5
STRATEGY

http://www.centralhighlands.qld.gov.au/documents/381737/2623411/CQUniversity_CHRC_CommunitySurvey2014_FINALREPORT_REVISED_March2015.pdf


STAFF PROFILE 
The Human Resources and Payroll Team

Every day we aspire to provide support and assistance to the organisation and its people. We 
love what we do and the relationships we have established.

The process of assisting the Executive Leadership Team with the restructure (ensuring 
all HR and industrial relations requirements were met) was one of the most difficult and 
confronting things we have faced in the last year.

It would not have been possible without the team pulling together and supporting each 
other through this very stressful and demanding project. 

There are three traits you need in order to do well in our team: compassion, knowledge and 
confidentiality (and a wicked sense of humour).

Some days are challenging—that’s the nature of the job. But we kicked some goals last year, 
and there’s still a lot of work to do. We believe we’re heading in the right direction and are 
looking forward to the challenges that face us in the coming year.

The HR & Payroll Team from left to right: Jen Rohan, Natasha Todd, Lana Barnes, Debra Davies, Laura Richards,  
Trish Wheeler, Tanya Rouse.

LONG SERVICE

Seventy-one employees reached a long service milestone of 10 years or more during 2014-15.  
Of those, four have been with the council for more than 30 years. 
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COUNCIL 
PERFORMANCE
Legislative Disclosure Requirements.
Community Financial Report.
Finance Report.
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Legislative Disclosure Requirements

Local Government Act 2009

Identifying beneficial enterprises (s41) No beneficial enterprises conducted this year.

Identifying significant business activities (s45) Refer to page 119 in this report

SENIOR MANAGEMENT RENUMERATION (S201)

Remuneration Packages Paid to Senior Management (s201 LGA 09)

Remuneration Range Number of Contracted Senior Employees

$100,000 – $200,000 2

$200,000 – $300,000 4

$300,000 – $400,000 1

Local Government Regulation 2012

PARTICULAR RESOLUTIONS (S185)

Expenses reimbursement policy (s250)
No resolutions were made to amend the 
expenses reimbursement policy.

Amount set for each different type of non-
current physical asset. (s206)

No resolutions made.

Councillors (s186)

COUNCILLOR REMUNERATION (LGR 2012 S186) 

COUNCILLOR REMUNERATION 2014/2015

Name of Councillor Allowances
Vehicle 

Allowance
Superannuation

TOTAL 
REMUNERATION

  $ $ $ $

Mayor Peter Maguire  117,503.65 vehicle supplied   14,100.00  131,603.65 

Cr. Gail Nixon  73,439.91 vehicle supplied   8,812.60  82,252.51 

Cr. Paul Bell  62,423.47 Pool vehicle  7,490.92  69,914.39 

Cr. Charles Brimblecombe  62,423.47 vehicle supplied   7,490.92  69,914.39 

Cr. Gail Godwin-Smith  62,423.47 vehicle supplied   7,490.92  69,914.39 

Cr. Gai Sypher  62,423.47 Pool vehicle   7,490.92  69,914.39 

Cr. Kev Cracknell  62,423.47  1,840.30  7,490.92  71,754.69 

Cr. Peter Maundrell  62,423.47 Pool vehicle   7,490.92  69,914.39 

Cr. Kevin Pickergill  62,423.47  8,610.05  7,490.92  78,524.44 

TOTAL 627,907.85 10,450.35 75,349.04 713,707.24

COUNCILLOR EXPENSES & FACILITIES (LGR 2012 S186) 

OTHER COUNCILLOR EXPENSES 2014/2015

Accommodation 
& Meal Costs 

Seminar, 
Conference 

& Course 
Fees

Travel Costs 
(Conferences 
& Seminars)

Mobile 
Devices 

& Phone 
Charges

TOTAL 
OTHER 

EXPENSES

$ $ $ $ $

Mayor Peter 
Maguire

 5,224.36  8,112.17  6,586.82  1,671.78  21,595.13 

Cr. Gail Nixon  7,529.49  9,740.91  2,861.12  1,083.69  21,215.21 

Cr. Paul Bell  3,285.17  11,077.72  4,621.55  707.38  19,691.82 

Cr. Charles 
Brimblecombe

 2,017.66  9,650.63  1,005.62  390.87  13,064.78 

Cr. Gail 
Godwin-Smith

 5,146.23  10,900.91  1,633.55  435.50  18,116.19 

Cr. Gai Sypher  4,326.56  10,500.00  2,049.57  763.33  17,639.46 

Cr. Kev 
Cracknell

 1,856.87  6,391.82  -    1,236.79  9,485.48 

Cr. Peter 
Maundrell

 314.27  700.00  81.82  1,974.01  3,070.10 

Cr. Kevin 
Pickergill

 2,807.52  1,136.37  -    648.32  4,592.21 

TOTAL 32,508.13 68,210.53 18,840.05 8,911.67 128,470.38

COUNCILLOR MEETING ATTENDANCE 2014-15 (S 186C)

Mayor Peter Maguire 21

Cr Gail Nixon 21

Cr Paul Bell 18

Cr Charlie Brimblecombe 23

Cr Gail Godwin-Smith 22

Cr Kev Cracknell 24

Cr Gai Sypher 21

Cr Peter Maundrell 24

Cr Kevin Pickersgill 22

TOTAL MEETINGS HELD 24
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ADMINISTRATIVE ACTION COMPLAINTS (S187)

Complaints in accordance with Section 186(f) of the Local Government Regulation 2012 

Complaints about the conduct or performance of councillors for which no further action 
was taken under section 176C(2) of the Act

0

Complaints referred to the department’s chief executive under section 176C(3)(a)(i) of the 
Act

0

Complaints referred to the mayor under section 176C(3)(a)(ii) or (b)(i) of the Act 1

Complaints referred to the department’s chief executive under section 176C(4)(a) of the 
Act

1

Complaints assessed by the chief executive officer as being about corrupt conduct under 
the Crime and Corruption Act

1

Complaints heard by a regional conduct review panel 0

Complaints heard by the tribunal 0

Complaints to which section 176C(6) of the Act applied 0

Complaints in accordance with Section 176C of the Local Government Act 2009  
(revised 2015)

Regional Conduct Review Panel orders and recommendations 0

Tribunal Orders and recommendations 0

Mayor or departments chief executive orders reprimanding a councillor on inappropriate 
conduct

1

Complaint Orders/Recommendations summary reported in accordance with Section 
186(e) of the Local Government Regulation 2012.

The name of each councillor 
that was subject to an order 
under section 180 and 181

Description of misconduct or 
inappropriate conduct

Summary of order or 
recommendation

Councillor Kevin Cracknell

Fail to comply with Central 
Highlands Regional Council 
process (Code of Conduct for 
Councillors)

(a) an order reprimanding 
the councillor for the 
inappropriate conduct

(b) an order that any repeat 
of the inappropriate conduct 
be referred to the regional 
conduct review panel as 
misconduct.

OVERSEAS TRAVEL (S188) 

Trip to Japan – Sister City cultural student exchange

Council Officer Travel & Accommodation Cost

Fran Rofe – chaperone $2906.41

Hayden Thomson - chaperone $2906.41 

Total $5812.82

GRANTS TO COMMUNITY ORGANISATIONS (S189) 

Organisation Project Amount

Bauhinia State School P&C Clean water preserved $ 5000

Blackwater PCYC Boxing Club $ 4299

Blackwater Tiny Tots Plants & Mud are lots of FUN $ 3500

Capella & District Show Society Poultry cages $ 5000

Emerald Archery Club Inc. Storage container $ 4840

Emerald Eagles Football Club Inc.
New floor coverings for canteen/
clubhouse

$ 4350

Emerald Gymnastics & Trampoline Club Purchase double mini tramp $ 4052

Emerald PCYC
Upgrade scoring devices for PCYC 
basketball courts

$ 5000

Lochington Recreation Club Capital asset maintenance $ 5000

QCWA - Capella Branch New chairs for QCWA Capella Hall $ 3450

Rolleston State School P&C Assoc.
Expansion of Rolleston community 
oval

$ 5000

Rotary Club of Emerald Upgrade kitchen facilities $ 2288

Springsure Junior Cricket Inc.
Skill development - bowling 
machine

$ 3950

Springsure Stingers Swim Club Shelving $ 779

Springsure Tennis Club Inc. Grandstand seating (portable) $ 3870

Bluff-Blackwater Amateur Race Club Inc.
Air-conditioning for jockey room & 
office

$4839

Capella Pioneer Village Inc.
CQ Cinematic & Photographic 
Exhibit Stage 4

$5000 

Comet Cutting Club Inc. Cutting timer & mechanical cow $5000

Comet Sporting & Agricultural Show 
Society

Canteen food storage $3600 

CTM Links - Tieri Movie nights $1023 

Dingo Race Club Inc. Purchase of tables & chairs $4797.80 

Emerald Jockey Club Inc. Irrigation upgrade $5000 

Emerald State School P&C Assoc. Sports field & seating $4900 

Gemfields Community Support Assoc. Inc. Energy efficiency measures $5000 

Lions Club of Springsure Storage shed $5000 

Springsure Gymnastics & Cheerleading 
Club

Safety mats $4,541.82 

Springsure Show Society Cattle yard safety upgrade $5,000 

Springsure Working Horse Springsure 2015 Campdraft $5,000 

TOTAL  $119,079.62 
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RADF GRANTS

RADF 2014-15

RSL Emerald WW1 
Centenary Committee

Researching and writing the unique stories in 
the Central Queensland News during the First 
World War.

$6000

Community Engagement 
Through Music

Providing a contemporary music concert and two 
music workshops to enhance the wellbeing of CHRC 
young people.

$3126

Blackwater Art Society
Blackwater Art Society annual visual art workshop 
with Metka Skrobar.

$1297

Central Highlands 
Multicultural Festival

A series of workshops to create a string garden art 
installation at the Central Highlands Multicultural 
Festival using Kokedama.

$5148

Boots ‘n’ All
To bring acclaimed choreographer Gordon Elliott to 
Emerald to a dance workshop with local dancers.

$3220

Fascinating Felt and 
Feathers - Hatmobile 
Workshops

Two two-day hat making workshops in Springsure 
and Emerald. 

$5000

Creative Cultural 
Experiences - Bauhinia 
Social Group

A cultural tour of Springsure Gallery, Rainworth Fort 
and a cluster of small arts workshops.

$1000

ArTour Performances
To bring performance art to Springsure and 
Rolleston communities.

$5000

Springsure Hospital 
Museum - ANZAC 
Heritage Display

Engaging Central Queensland Museum Officer Dr 
Melanie Piddocke to display Great War collection.

$8075

Australian Miners Historic 
Centre Association

Make and learn to play musical instruments, 
culminating in combined performance with artists 
during the Gemfields Folk Festival.

$7000

CHRC Oral Histories of 
Our South West Corner

Recording histories of Bauhinia and Acadia 
Valley residents.

$2000

Springsure Arts and 
Cultural Services 
Committee

ArTour performances and arts workshops regionally 
partially Capella, Blackwater and Emerald.

$10 000

CTM Links-Tieri
Sensory Circus a circus school teaching students 
basic circus skills for Tieri.

$2959

Charters Towers 
Patchwork and 
Embroidery Retreat

Professional development workshops harnessing 
knowledge and skills for local Central 
Highlands groups.

$768

CHRC RADF Training
Professional development workshops for RADF 
committee and community groups.

$1893

Total $58 702.52

COMMERCIAL BUSINESS UNIT (S190C)

Council has no commercial business units.

JOINT GOVERNMENT ACTIVITY (S190D) 

Expenditure on a service, facility or activity 
for which special rates were levied during the 
financial year.

Organisation Description Expenditure

BHP Roads $831 747

Rio Tinto Roads $246 117

Anglo 
American

Roads 
and public 
amenities

$162 319

SPECIAL RATES AND CHARGES 

Council provided the following concession 
for rates and charges for the 2014-15 
financial year.

a. Pensioners

 A 50% remission is granted to pensioners 
that are legally liable to pay rates providing 
that an owner of the premises meets 
council’s definition of a pensioner and the 
premises for which they are claiming a 
rebate is their principal place of residence. 
This is in addition to the 20% that is given 
by the Queensland Government. The 
remission does not apply to special rates, 
special levies and water consumption.

b. Entities whose objectives do not include 
making a profit

 Concessions equivalent to 100% of 
general rates may be allowed to certain 
eligible entities whose objects do not 
include making a profit. All rebated rates 
are initially levied and a rebate provided 
automatically when rates are levied so that 
each organisation can assess the level of 
council rebate provided. Eligible entities 
include: community groups, churches, other 
community organisations and sporting clubs.

c. Other concessions

 Mining Claims – upon application council 
may consider a refund of the net general 
rate for a mining claim overlapping a 
residential tenure.

 Quarries – concessions may be available to 
ratepayers within quarry categories relating 
to development approval, development 
contributions and actual vs approved level of 
production.

d. Other rebates

 Consideration may be given by council to 
grant a class concession in the event that 
all or part of the local government area 
is declared a natural disaster area by the 
Queensland Government and/or where an 
extreme event occurred that affected all or 
part of the property.

INVITATIONS TO CHANGE 
TENDERS (190E) 

There were no invitations to change tenders 
this year under Section 228 (7) of the local 
government regulation.

LIST OF REGISTERS (S190F) 

• Electoral gifts

• Interests of councillors and relatives of 
councillors

• Interests of senior managers

• Delegate of powers to mayor and Chief 
Executive Officer

• Roads

• Delegations of power by the Chief Executive 
Officer

• Enterprises

• Local laws

• Town Planning – existing uses, subdivision 
approvals, consent approvals, permitted 
developments

INTERNAL AUDIT (SEC 190(H)

Audit Committee

Our governance framework complements the 
relationship between internal audit and the 
wider organisation, increasing the effectiveness 
and value of our internal audit function. 

The committee is appointed by and reports to 
the council to provide an independent oversight 
and review function covering:



Community Financial Report

The Community Financial Report contains a 
summary and analysis of the Central Highlands 
Regional Council’s financial performance and 
position for the financial year. This report 
focuses on the four key financial statements 
that include:

• Statement of Comprehensive Income

• Statement of Financial Position

• Statement of Changes in Equity

• Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of Comprehensive 
Income

The Statement of Comprehensive Income 
measures how the council performed in relation 
to income and expenses during the year.

This result shown below does not necessarily 
represent surplus funds available for general 
use. Some revenue recorded is non-monetary. 
For example, contributed infrastructure assets 
such as roads, sewerage mains and water 
mains constructed by developers in new land 
subdivisions. 

Other revenue is constrained for use on specific 
future activities. For example, for contributions 
provided by developers or grants used to 
maintain or expand the region’s infrastructure.

Other revenue is used to provide improved 
capital assets such as road or water 
infrastructure or other community assets.

2014/15 Result $

Total Revenue 134,998,249

Less Total Expenses 116,666,910

Net Result 18,331,339

Total Revenue

Where our money comes from

Total income of $135 million was recognised 
during the twelve months ending 30 June 2015. 

The Total Revenue graph shows that 58% of 
the revenue was generated from rates and 23% 
was received as grants and subsidies.

Other sources of income are as shown below.

Total Revenue

Net Rates and Utility Charges

Sales Revenue

Fees and Charges

Interest on Investments

Grants and Subsidies

Other
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• the integrity of key financial documents

• the efficiency, objectivity and effectiveness 
of the internal audit function

• external audit and financial reporting

• internal controls, risk management, fraud 
prevention and security

• legislative and policy compliance 

• corporate governance.

Minutes of each audit committee meeting 
are tabled for review by the council following 
each meeting.

Audit Committee membership

The Audit Committee consists of two 
councillors, Cr Paul Bell and Cr Peter Maundrell, 
and two external members, Mr Hayden Wright 
(Committee Chair) and Mr Geoff Hirst.

Audit Committee meetings

The Audit Committee met four times during 
2014-2015. The Chief Executive Officer and the 
Executive Leadership Team as well as external 
audit representatives were invited to attend 
meetings as observers. Council officers were 
scheduled, as required, to present a range 
of reports and to respond to requests for 
information or advice on particular matters of 
relevance to the committee’s terms of reference.

A formal agenda was prepared for each 
committee meeting and included, as a 
minimum:

• progress towards completion of the Internal 
Audit Plan 

• reports on completed internal and external 
audit activities 

• progress toward implementation of internal 
and external audit recommended actions for 
improvement.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible 
to report to the council and the Executive 
Manager, Governance provided the secretariat 
for the committee.

Evaluating our activities and controls

During 2014-15, we continued to maintain an 
efficient and effective internal audit function, 
as required under the Local Government Act 
2009. The internal audit program provides 
an independent and professional service to 
examine and evaluate the risks and controls 
associated with our activities, operations, 
processes and systems.

By reviewing our risks, internal controls, 
efficiency, effectiveness, governance, 
performance and compliance, internal audit can 
provide assurance that we are discharging our 
responsibilities effectively and efficiently.

The general direction of our internal audit 
activities over the medium-term is documented 
in a three-year Strategic Internal Audit Plan, 
while the specific internal audit activities to be 
performed in the current year are outlined in an 
annual internal audit plan.

Focusing on organisational 
preparedness

The 2014-15 Internal Audit Plan included a total 
of 65 days of internal audit activity across four 
major review areas around the themes of debt 
collection, information technology governance, 
developer contributions and recoverable and 
private works.

Maintaining professional standards

We have complied fully with state government 
legislation relating to the activities and reporting 
of its internal audit function. Our internal audit 
function is delivered by Pacifica Chartered 
Accountants that have extensive experience 
in local government business systems 
and auditing.

COMPETITIVE NEUTRALITY (S190 I,J) 

There were no investigation notices given in 
the financial year under S49 for competitive 
neutrality complaints.



Total Expenses

Where our money is spent

Council incurs both operating and capital 
expenditure in providing services to the 
community. Capital expenditure is added to 
the carrying value of the assets as it maintains, 
improves or expands the asset base. 

The graph below shows the components of 
operating expenditure only.

The level of expenditure is monitored constantly 
throughout the year. Detailed estimates are 
prepared at the beginning of each financial year 
and performance is measured against these 
estimates by regular budget reviews to ensure 
funds are used as efficiently as possible.

While the operating costs amounted to $117 
million, $62 million was also spent on capital 
projects throughout the year.

Statement of Financial Position

The statement of financial position measures 
what the council owns and what it owes at the 
end of the financial year. The result of these two 
components determines the net wealth. At the 
end of the financial year this figure was  
$1.4 billion.

2014/15 Result  $M

Assets (What we Own) 1,515

Liabilities (What we Owe)  99

Equity (Community Wealth) 1,416

ASSETS

Collective property, plant and equipment make 
up 89% of the total asset base. The bulk of 
these assets are in the form of infrastructure 
assets such as roads, drainage, water and 
sewerage assets. Each year, significant 
expenditure is focused on maintaining and 
upgrading these infrastructure assets.

LIABILITIES

The bulk of the liabilities are in the form 
of loans, provisions or other employee 
entitlements, which collectively represent 89% 
of the total liabilities.

Loans are used to finance certain capital 
projects to ensure that future residents also 
contribute to their fair share of the costs 
of constructing these long life assets. The 
outstanding debt at year end was approximately 
$69 million.

Provisions include future expenses relating to 
employee entitlements, such as long service 
leave owing to employees, as well as amounts 
set aside for future rehabilitation of refuse and 
quarry sites.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

The Statement of Changes in Equity measures 
the change in net wealth from year to year 
and considers such items as retained earnings, 
revaluation of the asset base and reserves held 
for future capital works. 

A portion of the community’s wealth is cash 
backed by an appropriate level of reserves held 
to plan for future projects. 

With good planning this can place less reliance 
on loan borrowings and provides flexibility to 
ensure the management of any unforeseen 
financial shocks or adverse changes in business.

Total Expenses

Employee and expenses

Materials and Services

Finance Costs

Depreciation

Other

Statement of Cash Flow

This statement identifies how money is received and spent during the year. The final balance shows 
the cash that is available at year end.

2014/15 Cash Flows $

Opening Balance 1 July 2014 112,113,908

Cash Received 163,851,406

Cash Spent 169,434,965

Closing Balance 30 June 2015 106,530,349

Other Cash Investments Held 20,759,480

Total Cash Assets 127,289,829

The total cash assets as at 30 June 2015 was $127 million. 

It is important to note that a large portion of this amount is restricted for specific purposes, such as 
future capital works. The increase in the cash balance over the financial year reflects an increase in 
reserves put aside for future works. Looking forward, the short and long term cash flows indicate 
that sufficient cash is available to meet recurring activities and capital expenditure.

Sustainability

Each year the long term forecasting is renewed to ensure a strong financial position is maintained 
to meet the future obligations and demands of the community.

The 2014–2015 financial year ended with council in a strong financial position that provides a 
base to maintain a level of long-term sustainability. This is supported by an analysis of the local 
government sustainability indicators detailed below.

Operating  
Surplus Ratio

Asset 
Sustainability 

Ratio

Net financial 
liabilities ratio

Target Between 0% and10% Greater than 90% Not Greater than 60%

30 June 2015 (Actuals) 11.82% 93.48% -52.58%

30 June 2016 9.50% 240.30% -25.50%

30 June 2017 6.10% 160.40% -9.20%

30 June 2018 4.80% 114.30% 6.40%

30 June 2019 7.10% 70.60% 0.50%

30 June 2020 6.730% 95.50% 1.90%

30 June 2021 5.40% 75.80% -1.80%

30 June 2022 4.50% 90.40% -6.00%

30 June 2023 4.50% 103.70% -11.70%

30 June 2024 5.70% 88.30% -18.30%
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Definitions and explanation:

OPERATING SURPLUS RATIO –measures the 
operating position to ensure that revenues 
cover operational expenses and provide funding 
sources for capital purposes. The target range 
for this measure is between 0% and 10%. In 
other words, there should be a positive result. 
Central Highlands Regional Council retains a 
positive result throughout each of the future 
ten years. 

ASSET SUSTAINABILITY RATIO –measures the 
percentage of spending on works that replace 
existing assets. In other words it measures the 
need to maintain and replace existing assets is 
balanced with growth demands.

The industry benchmark is to achieve a result of 
at least 90% and Central Highlands Regional 
Council’s average over the next ten years is well 
above this target.

NET FINANCIAL LIABILITIES RATIO –is 
an indicator of the extent to which the net 
financial liabilities can be serviced by operating 
revenues. The benchmark established for the 
local government sector is a maximum of 60% 
and results higher than this indicate that the 
flexibility to use debt to fund future projects 
may be restricted. 

Central Highlands Regional Council’s result 
is well within guidelines and gives it a 
level of flexibility for the future funding of 
community projects.

The financial statements and the sustainability 
ratios indicate that Central Highlands Regional 
Council has concluded the financial year in 
a strong financial position and has sufficient 
money to cover its present and future 
obligations into the foreseeable future. 

Finance Report
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CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGIONAL COUNCIL

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2015

2015 2014
Note $ $

Income
Revenue

Recurrent revenue
Rates and levies 3 (a) 78,330,436 77,030,139
Sale of goods and major services 3 (b) 10,254,747 16,093,426
Fees and charges 2,960,446 4,299,576
Rental and levies 1,133,413 1,410,022
Interest received 4,307,097 4,459,167
Sales of contract and recoverable works 4,694,321 8,468,560
Other recurrent income 1,674,074 1,090,121
Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations 4 (a) 11,838,361 14,486,028
Proceeds from sales of land developed for resale 760,157 1,609,016
Total operating revenue 115,953,052 128,946,055

Capital revenue
Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations 4 (b) 19,009,432 19,619,044

19,009,432 19,619,044
Total revenue 134,962,484 148,565,099

Capital income 5 35,765 -
Total income 134,998,249 148,565,099

Expenses
Recurrent expenses

Employee benefits 7 (36,494,618) (39,676,634)
Materials and services 8 (37,959,079) (56,054,776)
Current cost of developed land sold (396,872) (926,676)
Finance costs 9 (3,282,005) (3,082,313)
Depreciation (24,117,836) (23,718,699)
Total operating expenses (102,250,410) (123,459,098)

Capital expenses 10 (14,416,500) (2,091,929)
Total expenses (116,666,910) (125,551,027)

Net result 18,331,339 23,014,072
Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to net result
Increase in asset revaluation surplus 25 21,341,662 143,612,209

Total other comprehensive income 21,341,662 143,612,209

Total comprehensive income for the period 39,673,001 166,626,281

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.
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CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGIONAL COUNCIL

Statement of Financial Position
As at  30 June 2015

2015 2014
Note $ $

Current Assets
Cash assets and cash equivalents 13 106,530,349 112,113,908
Cash Investments 17 20,759,480 -
Trade and other receivables 14 (a) 24,183,400 25,819,768
Inventories 15 8,911,898 9,014,432

160,385,127 146,948,108
Non-current Assets

Trade and other receivables 14 (b) - 7,334
Equity investments 18 27,135 26,315
Property, plant and equipment 19 1,355,130,583 1,304,838,606

1,355,157,719 1,304,872,255
TOTAL ASSETS 1,515,542,846 1,451,820,363

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 21 15,522,939 11,675,322
Provisions 22 2,897,467 3,080,310
Borrowings 23 3,316,569 2,684,176
Other 24 113,364 7,273

21,850,339 17,447,081
Non-current Liabilities

Trade and other payables 21 7,810 7,338
Provisions 22 12,280,571 6,330,387
Borrowings 23 65,278,667 51,583,098

77,567,048 57,920,823
TOTAL LIABILITIES 99,417,387 75,367,904

NET   COMMUNITY   ASSETS 1,416,125,459 1,376,452,459

Community Equity
Asset revaluation surplus 25 485,938,150 464,596,488
Retained surplus (deficiency) 26 810,623,159 801,841,525
Reserves 27 119,564,150 110,014,446

TOTAL   COMMUNITY   EQUITY 1,416,125,459 1,376,452,459

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.
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CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGIONAL COUNCIL

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2015

Total Retained surplus Reserves   Asset revaluation
(deficit) surplus

Note Note 26 Note 27 Note 25
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Balance at beginning of period 1,376,452,459 1,209,826,178 801,841,525 775,088,277 110,014,446 113,753,622 464,596,488 320,984,279

Net result 18,331,339 23,014,072 18,331,339 23,014,072
Other comprehensive income for the period

Revaluations:
Property, plant & equipment 19 24,927,840 144,802,202 - 24,927,840 144,802,202

Impairments:
Property, plant & equipment 19 - (814,882) - (814,882)

Change in value of future of
rehabilitation costs (3,586,178) (375,111) (3,586,178) (375,111)

Total comprehensive income for period 39,673,000 166,626,281 18,331,339 23,014,072 - - 21,341,662 143,612,209

Transfers (to) from retained earnings
and recurrent reserves 26 - - (835,763) 5,548,018 835,763 (5,548,018)

Transfers (to) from retained earnings
        and capital reserves 26 - - (8,713,942) (1,808,842) 8,713,942 1,808,842

- -
Balance at end of period 1,416,125,459 1,376,452,459 810,623,159 801,841,525 119,564,150 110,014,446 485,938,150 464,596,488

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.
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CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGIONAL COUNCIL

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2015

2015 2014
Note $ $

Cash flows from operating activities :
Receipts

Receipts from customers 111,244,402 119,663,615
Operating grants, subsidies and contributions 14,269,956 16,695,769
Interest received 4,225,668 4,349,769
Proceeds from sales of land developed for resale 760,157 1,609,016

Payments
Payments to suppliers and employees (83,201,023) (105,289,891)
Interest expense (2,901,809) (3,018,061)

Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating activities 33 44,397,351 34,010,217

Cash flows from investing activities:
Commonwealth government grants 1,582,333 4,402,274
State Government subsidies & grants 13,360,575 2,237,541
Other Non-Government Subsidies 3,818 3,068,282
Capital contributions 902,313 859,204
Payments for property, plant and equipment (59,899,795) (41,829,467)
Payments for equity investments (820) 439
Net transfer (to) from cash investments 17 (20,759,480) -
Proceeds from sale of equity investments 155,944 (158,144)
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment 6 334,840 1,347,838
Net movement in loans to community organisations 11,400 3,832

Net cash inflow (outflow) from investing activities (64,308,872) (30,068,201)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from borrowings 23 17,000,000 -
Repayment of borrowings 23 (2,672,038) (2,555,786)

Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing activities 14,327,962 (2,555,786)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents held (5,583,559) 1,386,230
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 112,113,908 110,727,678

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year 13 106,530,349 112,113,908

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.
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CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2015

1 Significant accounting policies

1. 1 Basis of preparation
These general purpose financial statements are for the period 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015
and have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Local Government Act
2009 and the Local Government Regulation 2012. Consequently, these financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with all Australian Accounting Standards, Australian
Accounting Interpretations and other authoritative pronouncements issued by the Australian
Accounting Standards Board.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except
for the following:

 - financial assets and liabilities, certain classes of property, plant and equipment which are
measured at fair value;

 - assets held for sale which are measured at fair value less cost of disposal.

Recurrent/capital classification
Revenue and expenditure are presented as "recurrent" or "capital" in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income on the following basis:

Capital Revenue includes grants and subsidies received which are tied to specific projects
for the replacement or upgrade of existing non-current assets and/or investment in new
assets. It also includes non-cash contributions which are usually infrastructure assets
received from developers.

The following transactions are classified as wither "Capital Income" or "Capital Expenses"
depending on whether they result in accounting gains or losses:

 - disposal of non-current assets;

 - discount rate adjustments to restoration provisions;

 - revaluations of property, plant and equipment.

All other revenue and expenses have been classified as "recurrent."

1. 2 Statement of compliance
The Council is a not-for-profit entity and the Australian Accounting Standards include
requirements for not-for-profit entities which are inconsistent with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), to the extent these inconsistencies are applied, these financial
statements do not comply with IFRS.  The main impacts are the offsetting of revaluation
and impairment gains and losses within a class of assets, and the timing of the recognition
of non-reciprocal grant revenue.

1. 3 Constitution
The Central Highlands Regional Council is constituted under the Queensland Local
Government Act 2009 and is domiciled in Australia.

1. 4 Date of authorisation
The financial statements are authorised for issue on the date it was submitted to the Auditor-
General for final signature.  This is the date the management certificate is signed.

1. 5 Currency
The Council uses the Australian dollar as its functional currency and its presentation
currency.
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CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2015

1. 6 Adoption of new and revised Accounting Standards
In the current year, Council adopted all of the new and revised Standards and
Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB), that are
relevant to its operations and effective for the current reporting period.  The adoption of the
new and revised Standards and Interpretations has not resulted in any material changes to
Council's accounting policies.

Central Highlands Regional Council has not applied any Australian Accounting Standards
and interpretations that have been issued but are not yet effective. Council applies standards
and interpretations in accordance with their respective commencement dates.

At the date of authorisation of the financial report, the new new and amended Australian
Accounting Standards with future commencement dates, are not likely to have a material
impact on the financial statements. Although not material, the following statements may
have an impact and are sumamrised below:

AASB 9, which replaces AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement , is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and
must be applied retrospectively. The main impact of AASB 9 is to change the
requirements for the classification, measurement and disclosures associated with financial
assets and Council will be required to measure its financial assets at fair value.

Under the new requirements the four current categories of financial assets stipulated in
AASB 139 will be replaced with two measurement categories: fair value and amortised
cost and financial assets will only be able to be measured at amortised cost where very
specific conditions are met.

Due to its recent release, Council is still reviewing the way that revenue is measured and
recognised to identify whether AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers will
have a material impact. To date no impact has been identified. AASB 15 is effective from
1 January 2017 and will replace AASB 118 Revenue, AASB 111 Construction Contracts
and a number of interpretations. It contains a comprehensive and robust framework for the
recognition, measurement and disclosure of revenue from contracts with customers.

From 1 July 2016 AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures  will apply to Council. This
means that council will disclose more information about related parties and transactions
with those related parties. Council is currently preparing for this change by identifying
related parties. Related parties will inclue the Mayor, councillors and some council staff.
In addition the close family members of those prople and any organisations that they
control or are associated with will be classified as related parties.

In summary, at the date of authorisation of the financial statements, the following Standards
and Interpretations, which may impact Council, were in issue, but were not yet effective:

Effective for
annual report

periods
beginning on are

after:

AASB 9 Financial Instruments (December 2009) 1 January 2018

AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2017

AASB 2014-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation 1 January 2016

AASB 2015-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Extending Related Party
Disclosures to Not-for-Profit Public Sector Entities  [AASB 10, AASB 124 & AASB 1049] 1 July 2016
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CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2015

1. 7 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
In the application of Council's accounting policies, management is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources.  The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.  Actual
results may differ from these estimates.  The estimates and ongoing assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis.  Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised and in future periods as relevant.

Judgements, estimates and assumptions that have a potential significant effect are outlined
in the following financial statement notes:

Valuation and depreciation of property, plant and equipment - note 1.15 and note 20.
Impairment of property, plant and equipment - note 1.16 and note 19.
Provisions - note 1.19 and 1.21 and note 22.
Valuation of finance leases - note 1.17.
Contingencies - note 30.

1. 8 Revenue
(a) Rates and levies

Where rate monies are received prior to the commencement of the rating/levying period, the
amount is recognised as revenue in the period in which they are received, otherwise rates
are recognised at the commencement of rating period.

(b) Grants and subsidies
Grants, subsidies and contributions that are non-reciprocal in nature are recognised as
revenue in the year in which Council obtains control over them.  An equivalent amount is
transferred from retained earnings to the relevant reserve until the funds are expended.
Unspent non-reciprocal capital grants are placed in the Constrained grants, subsidies and
contributions reserve.
Council has not spent all recurrent grants received in the year and therefore a reserve has
been established for this purpose named Recurrent (Constrained) Projects Reserve.

Where grants are received that are reciprocal in nature, revenue is recognised as the various
performance obligations under the funding agreement are fulfilled. Council does not
currently have any reciprocal grants.

(c) Non-cash contributions
Non-cash contributions with a value in excess of the recognition thresholds, are recognised
as revenue and as non-current assets.  Non-cash contributions below the thresholds are
recorded as revenue and expenses.
Physical assets contributed to Council by developers in the form of road works, stormwater,
water and wastewater infrastructure and park equipment are recognised as revenue when
the development becomes "on maintenance" (i.e. the Council obtains control of the assets
and becomes liable for any ongoing maintenance) and there is sufficient data in the form of
drawings and plans to determine the approximate specifications and values of such assets.
All non-cash contributions are recognised at the fair value of the contribution received on
the date of acquisition

(d) Cash contributions
Developers also pay infrastructure charges for trunk infrastructure, such as pumping
stations, treatment works, mains, sewers and water pollution control works. These
infrastructure charges are not within the scope of AASB Interpretation 18 because there is
no performance obligation associated with them. Consequently, the infrastructure charges
are recognised as income when received.

Page 8

CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2015

1. 8 Revenue (continued)

(e) Interest and dividends
Interest received from term deposits is accrued over the term of the investment.  Dividends
are recognised once they are received.

(f) Sales revenue
Sale of goods is recognised when the  significant risks and rewards of ownership are
transferred to the buyer, generally when the customer has taken undisputed delivery of the
goods.

The council generates revenues from a number of services including Airport, Quarry,
Saleyards and contracts for road and earthworks. Revenue from contracts and recoverable
works generally comprises a recoupment of material costs together with an hourly charge
for use of equipment and employees. Contract revenue and associated costs are recognised
by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the reporting date.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable in relation to
that activity. Where consideration is received for the service in advance it is included in
other liabilities and is recognised as revenue in the period when the service is performed.

(g) Fees and Charges
Fees and charges are recognised upon unconditional entitlement to the funds.  Generally
this is upon lodgement of the relevant applications or documents, issuing of the
infringement notice or when the service is provided.

1. 9 Financial assets and liabilities
Council recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its Statement of Financial
Position when, and only when, Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.
Central Highlands Regional Council  has categorised and measured the financial assets and
financial liabilities held at balance date as follows:

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents (note 1.10).
Receivables -  measured at amortised cost less any impairment (note 1.11).
Cash Investments (note 1.14).
Equity Investments -  measured at cost  (note 18).

Financial liabilities
Payables - measured at amortised cost (note 1.18).
Borrowings - measured at amortised cost (note 1.20).

Financial assets and financial liabilities are presented separately from each other and
offsetting has not been applied.

Central Highlands Regional Council  does not recognise financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value in the Statement of Financial Position.

All other disclosures relating to the measurement and financial risk management of
financial instruments are included in note 36.

1. 10 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, all cash and cheques receipted but not
banked at the year end, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term,
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and bank overdrafts.
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CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2015

1. 11 Receivables
Trade receivables are recognised at the amounts due at the time of sale or service delivery
i.e. the agreed purchase price / contract price.  Settlement of these amounts is required
within 30 days from invoice date.

The collectability of receivables is assessed periodically and if there is objective evidence
that Council will not be able to collect all amounts due, the carrying amount is reduced for
impairment.  The loss is recognised in finance costs.  The amount of the impairment is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated cash
flows discounted at the effective interest rate.

All known bad debts were written-off at 30 June.  Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off in the same period are recognised as finance costs in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.  If an amount is recovered in a subsequent period it is recognised
as revenue.

Because Council is empowered under the provisions of the Local Government Act 2009 to
sell an owner's property to recover outstanding rate debts, Council does not impair any rate
receivables.

Loans and advances are recognised in the same way as other receivables. Terms are usually
a maximum of five years with interest charged at commercial rates. Security is not normally
obtained.

1. 12 Inventories
Stores and raw materials held for resale are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable
value and include, where applicable, direct material, direct labour and an appropriate
portion of variable and fixed overheads.  Costs are assigned on the basis of weighted
average cost.

Inventories held for distribution (internal consumption) are:
  • goods to be supplied at no, or nominal, charge, and
  • goods to be used for the provision of services at no, or nominal, charge.
Inventory for distribution is valued at cost, adjusted when applicable for any loss of service
potential.

Land acquired by Council with the intention of reselling it (with or without further
development) is classified as inventory. This land is valued at the lower of cost or net
realisable value. As an inventory item, this land held for resale is treated as a current asset.
Proceeds from the sale of this land will be recognised as sales revenue on the signing of a
valid unconditional contract of sale.

1. 13 Other financial assets
Other financial assets are recognised at cost.
At present Council does not have any other financial assets.

1. 14 Investments
Term deposits in excess of three months are reported as investments, with deposits of less
than three months being reported as cash equivalents.

1. 15 Property, plant and equipment
Each class of property, plant and equipment is stated at cost or fair value less, where
applicable, any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss.  Items of plant
and equipment and infrastructure assets and buildings with a total value of less than
$10,000 are treated as an expense in the year of acquisition.  Where an item of capital
expenditure  relates to a network asset and is has a future economic benefit then it will be
recognised as a asset regardless of the $10,000 threshold. Network assets are defined as
assets they are interconnected and rely on each other to provide a service. All other items of
property, plant and equipment are capitalised if their cost exceeds the $10,000 threshold
and provide a future economic benefit.

The classes of property plant and equipment recognised by the council are reported in note
19.
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CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2015

1. 15 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
(a) Acquisition of assets

Acquisitions of assets are initially recorded at cost.  Cost is determined as the fair value of
the assets given as consideration plus costs incidental to the acquisition, including freight
in, architect's fees and engineering design fees and all other establishment costs.

Property, plant and equipment received in the form of physical contributions, are
recognised as assets and revenues at fair value by Council valuation where that value
exceeds the recognition thresholds for the respective asset class.  Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell the asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date.

(b) Capital and operating expenditure
Direct labour and materials and an appropriate proportion of overheads incurred in the
acquisition or construction of assets are treated as capital expenditure. Assets under
construction are not depreciated until they are completed and commissioned, at which time
they are reclassified from work in progress to the appropriate property, plant and equipment
class.

Routine operating maintenance, repair costs and minor renewals to maintain the operational
capacity and useful life of the non-current asset is expensed as incurred, while expenditure
that relates to replacement of a major component of an asset to maintain its service
potential is capitalised.

Expenditure incurred in accordance with Natural Disaster Relief and Recovery
Arrangements (NDRRA) on road assets is analysed to determine whether the expenditure is
capital in nature. The analysis of the expenditure requires Council engineers to review the
nature and extent of expenditure on a given asset. For example, expenditure that patches a
road is generally maintenance in nature, whereas a kerb to kerb rebuild is treated as capital.
Material expenditure that extends the useful life or renews the service potential of the asset
is capitalised.

(c) Valuation
Land and improvements, buildings, major plant and all infrastructure assets are measured
on the revaluation basis, at fair value, in accordance with AASB 116 Property, Plant &
Equipment. Other plant and equipment and work in progress are measured at cost.

Non-current physical assets measured at fair value are revalue, where required, so that the
carrying amount of each class of asset does not materially differ from its fair value at the
reporting date. This is achieved by engaging independent, professionally qualified valuers
to determine the fair value for each class of property, plant and equipment assets at least
once every 3 to 5 years. This process involves the valuer physically sighting a
representative sample of Council assets across all asset classes and making their own
assessments of the condition of the assets at the date of inspection.

In the intervening years, Council uses internal engineers to assess the condition and cost
assumptions associated with all property, plant and equipment assets, the results of which
are considered in combination with the table of Indices sourced from the independent
valuation firm, Australian Pacific Valuers and Asset Management. Together these are used
to form the basis of a management valuation for infrastructure asset classes in each of the
intervening years.

In the intervening years, management may also engage the independent valuation firm,
Australian Pacific Valuers and Asset Management, to perform a "desktop" valuation. A
desktop valuation involves management providing updated information to the valuer
regarding additions, deletions and changes in assumptions such as useful life and condition
rating. The valuer then determines suitable indices which are applied to each of the asset
classes.
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CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2015

1. 15 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
(c) Valuation (continued)

An analysis performed by management has indicated that, on average, the variance between
an indexed asset value and the valuation by an independent valuer when performed is not
significant and the indices used by Council are sound. Further details in relation to valuers,
the methods of valuation and key assumptions used are disclosed in Note 20.

Any revaluation increment arising on the revaluation of an asset is credited to the
appropriate class of the asset revaluation surplus, except to the extent it reverses a
revaluation decrement for the class previously recognised as an expense.  A decrease in the
carrying amount on revaluation is charged as an expense to the extent it exceeds the
balance, if any, in the revaluation surplus of that asset class.

On revaluation, accumulated depreciation is restated proportionately with the change in the
carrying amount of the asset and any change in the estimate of remaining useful life.

Separately identified components of assets are measured on the same basis as the assets to
which they relate.

(d) Capital work in progress
The cost of property, plant and equipment being constructed by the Council includes the
cost of purchased services, materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of labour
overheads.

(e) Depreciation
Land is not depreciated as it has an unlimited useful life.  Depreciation on Furniture and
Fittings, Heritage and Cultural and Plant and Equipment assets is calculated on a straight-
line basis so as to write-off the net cost of each depreciable asset, less its estimated residual
value, progressively over its estimated useful life to the Council.

Management believe that the straight-line basis appropriately reflects the pattern of
consumption of these assets. All Council Infrastructure assets and Buildings and Site
Improvements are depreciated using the consumption based methodology, based on the
condition of the asset. Depreciation is calculated at the same rate each year but if the
condition of these assets improves or deteriorates then the depreciation will adjust
accordingly. As the condition is adjusted the allocated valuation pattern changes which
revises the remaining useful live and written down value of these assets.
Assets are depreciated from the date of acquisition or, in respect of internally constructed
assets, from the time an asset is commissioned ready for use.

Where assets have separately identifiable components that are subject to regular
replacement, these components are assigned useful lives distinct from the asset to which
they relate.  Any expenditure that increases the originally assessed capacity or service
potential of an asset is capitalised and the new depreciable amount is depreciated over the
remaining useful life of the asset to the Council.
Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual values (where applicable to the
asset class) of property, plant and equipment assets, are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and adjusted where necessary to reflect any changes in the pattern of
consumption, physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence, or
management intentions. The condition assessments performed as part of the annual
valuation process for assets measured at depreciated current replacement cost are used to
estimate the useful lives of these assets at each reporting date.

Details of the range of estimated useful lives for each class of asset are shown in note 19.
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CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2015

1. 15 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(f) Land under roads
Land under roads acquired before 30 June 2008 is recognised as a non-current asset where
the Council holds title or a financial lease over the asset. The Central Highlands Regional
Council  currently does not have any such land holdings.

Land under the road network within the Council area that has been dedicated and opened
for public use under the Land Act 1994 or the Land Title Act 1994 is not controlled by
council but is controlled by the state pursuant to the relevant legislation.

1. 16 Impairment of non current assets
Each non-current physical and intangible asset and group of assets is assessed for indicators
of impairment annually.  If an indicator of possible impairment exists, the Council
determines the asset's recoverable amount.  Any amount by which the asset's carrying
amount exceeds the recoverable amount is recorded as an impairment loss.  The recoverable
amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income,
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount.  When the asset is measured at a revalued
amount, the impairment loss is offset against the asset revaluation surplus of the relevant
class to the extent available.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.  A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation surplus increase.

1. 17 Leases
Leases of plant and equipment under which the Council as lessee/lessor assumes/transfers
substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership of the asset, but not the
legal ownership, are classified as finance leases.  Other leases, where substantially all the
risks and benefits remain with the lessor, are classified as operating leases.

Finance leases:
The council has no finance leases.

Operating leases:
Payments made under operating leases are expensed in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased property.

1. 18 Payables
Trade creditors are recognised upon receipt of the goods or services ordered and are
measured at the agreed purchase/contract price net of applicable discounts other than
contingent discounts.  Amounts owing are unsecured and are generally settled on 30 day
terms.

1. 19 Liabilities - employee benefits
(a) Salaries and wages

A liability for salaries and wages is recognised and measured as the amount unpaid at the
reporting date at current pay rates in respect of employees' services up to that date.  This
liability represents an accrued expense and is included in note 21 as a payable.
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CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2015

1. 19 Liabilities - employee benefits (continued)

(b) Annual leave
A liability for annual leave is recognised. Amounts expected to be settled within 12 months
(the current portion) are calculated on current wage and salary levels and includes related
employee on-costs. Amounts not expected to be settled within 12 months (the non-current
portion) are calculated on projected future wage and salary levels and related employee on-
costs, and are discounted to present values. This liability represents an accrued expense and
is reported in Note 21 as a payable.

As Council does not have an unconditional right to defer this liability beyond 12 months
annual leave is classified as a current liability.

(c) Superannuation
The superannuation expense for the reporting period is the amount of the contribution the
local government makes to the superannuation plan which provides benefits to its
employees.
Details of those arrangements are set out in note 31.

(d) Long service leave
A liability for long service leave is measured as the present value of the estimated future
cash outflows to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting
date. The value of the liability is calculated using current pay rates and projected future
increases in those rates and includes related employee on-costs. The estimates are adjusted
for the probability of the employee remaining in the Council's employment or other
associated employment which would result in the Council being required to meet the
liability.  Adjustments are then made to allow for the proportion of the benefit earned to
date, and the result is discounted to present value. The interest rates attaching to
Commonwealth Government guaranteed securities at the reporting date are used to discount
the estimated future cash outflows to their present value.
This liability is reported in note 22 as a provision.

Where employees have met the prerequisite length of service and council does not have an
unconditional right to defer the liability beyond 12 months, long service leave is classified
as a current liability. Otherwise it is classified as non-current.

Borrowings
1. 20 Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction

costs. Subsequent to initial recognition these liabilities are measured at amortised cost.

In accordance with the Local Government Regulation 2012 council adopts an annual debt
policy that sets out council's planned borrowings for the next nine years.  Council's current
policy is to only borrow for capital projects and for a term no longer than the expected life
of the asset.  Council also aims to comply with the Queensland Treasury Corporation's
borrowing guidelines and ensure that sustainability indicators remain within acceptable
levels at all times.

All borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.  No borrowing
costs are capitalised on qualifying assets.

1. 21 Restoration provision
A provision is made for the cost of restoration in respect of refuse dumps and quarries
where it is probable the Council will be liable, or required, to incur such a cost on the
cessation of use of these facilities. The provision is measured at the expected cost of the
work required, discounted to current day values using the interest rates attaching to
Commonwealth Government guaranteed securities with a maturity date corresponding to
the anticipated date of the restoration.
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CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2015

1. 21 Restoration provision (continued)
The following accounting treatments apply depending on whether the site is on Council
controlled land or on land which is not controlled by Council:

Restoration on land not controlled by Council
Where the restoration site is on State reserves or private land which the council does not
control, the cost of the provisions for restoration of these sites has to be treated as an
expense in the year the provision is first recognised.  Changes in the provision due to either
time, discount rate or expected future cost are treated as an expense or income in the
reporting period in which they arise.

Restoration on land controlled by Council
Restoration sites that are situated on Council controlled land are classified as land and
improvement assets. The provision for restoration is, therefore, included in the cost of the
land and amortised over the expected useful life. Changes in the provision not arising from
the passing of time are added to or deducted from the asset revaluation surplus for land. If
there is no available revaluation surplus, increases in the provision are treated as an expense
and recovered out of future decreases (if any).

Changes to the provision resulting from the passing of time (the unwinding of the discount)
are treated as a finance cost.

The council has the following restoration provisions:
(a) Refuse sites

Refuse sites are situated on Council controlled land. The provision represents the present
value of the anticipated future costs associated with the closure of the refuse sites,
decontamination and monitoring of historical residues and leaching on these sites.

The calculation of this provision requires assumptions such as application of environmental
legislation, site closure dates, available technologies and engineering cost estimates. These
uncertainties may result in future actual expenditure differing from amounts currently
provided. Because of the long-term nature of the liability, the most significant uncertainty
in estimating the provision is the costs that will be incurred.

The provision recognised for refuse sites is reviewed at least annually and updated based on
the facts and circumstances available at the time.

(b) Quarry sites
Quarry sites are not situated on Council controlled land. The provision represents the
present value of the anticipated future costs associated with the closure of the quarry site,
reclamation and rehabilitation of the site.

The calculation of this provision requires assumptions such as application of environmental
legislation, site closure dates, available technologies and engineering cost estimates. These
uncertainties may result in future actual expenditure differing from amounts currently
provided. Because of the long-term nature of the liability, the most significant uncertainty
in estimating the provision is the costs that will be incurred. The provision recognised for
quarry sites rehabilitation is reviewed at least annually and updated based on the facts and
circumstances available at the time.

Management estimates that the restoration will be progressive and commence in 2017 and
conclude in 2091.

1. 22 Asset revaluation surplus
The asset revaluation surplus comprises adjustments relating to changes in value of
property, plant and equipment that do not result from the use of those assets.  Net
incremental changes in the carrying value of classes of non-current assets since their initial
recognition are accumulated in the asset revaluation surplus.

Increases and decreases on revaluation are offset within a class of assets.
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CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2015

1. 22 Asset revaluation surplus (continued)
Where a class of assets is decreased on revaluation, that decrease is offset first against the
amount remaining in the asset revaluation surplus in respect of that class.  Any excess is
treated as an expense.

When an asset is disposed of, the amount reported in surplus in respect of that asset is
retained in the asset revaluation surplus and not transferred to retained surplus.

1. 23 Reserves held for funding future capital expenditure
Council maintains a system of cash backed reserves (refer note 13) which represent funds,
from revenue sources, that are accumulated to meet anticipated future capital asset funding
requirements.  In each case the amount relates to a perceived future requirement which is
not currently a liability.

These reserves operate as follows:

Future capital asset sustainability  reserve
Where the council has accumulated unspent cash arising from the funding of depreciation,
(i.e. revenues have been received to fund the write down in the capital assets value
through use (depreciation)), but this cash has not been reinvested in capital assets at the
reporting date; the council restricts the future use of this cash to capital asset purchases
only, to ensure the maintenance its capital capacity to deliver future services. (future
sustainability). The amounts reported in this reserve at balance date correspond to the
amount of cash (reported within cash and cash equivalents) that is held for this purpose.
Should the asset management plans indicate a shortfall in funding, additional funding can
be transferred from the retained surplus account. The timing of future expenditure from
this reserve is based on the council's 10 year asset management plans.

Unspent loan cash reserve
This reserve consists of the proceeds of loan borrowings unspent from a prior financial
year for future capital works.

Constrained grants and subsidy contributions reserve
The amounts reported in this reserve at balance date correspond to the amount of cash
(reported within cash and cash equivalents) which has been received in respect of capital
works where the required capital works have not yet been carried out. Where non-
reciprocal grants, subsidies and contributions are received for specific capital projects,
amounts equivalent to the capital grants received are transferred from retained surplus to
the constrained works reserve. When the grant monies are expended on the respective
projects, an equivalent amount is transferred out of the constrained works reserve to
retained surplus. The Council does not reallocate amounts in this reserve to any other
reserve or for any other purpose.

Grants, subsidies and contributions reimbursed reserve
This reserve is credited with grants, subsidies and contributions of monetary revenue
received during the reported period which the council has identified as being a
reimbursement of capital funds expended in a prior period.

Land and improvements reserve
This reserve consists of funds set aside from the development and sale of land. These
funds will generally be used to fund development works of new land developments prior
to their sale and for other strategic works determined as a priority for Council (generally
of a capital nature).
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CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2015

1. 23 Reserves held for funding future capital expenditure (continued)

Aged housing reserve
This reserve consists of funds set aside for the future operation  and replacement of
retirement facilities across the Council area. Generally surplus proceeds from the
operation of these facilities will be added to this reserve on a annual basis.

Plant and equipment reserve
This reserve consists of funds set aside for the future replacement of Council's plant fleet.

Tieri Township reserve
This reserve consists of the proceeds of special rates, general rates and utility charges
(waste, water and sewer) collected, that remain unspent from year to year. These funds
could be used for operating or capital expense purposes depending on the source of funds.

Water  reserve
This reserve consists of funds set aside for  the future replacement of water related assets
across the Council area. Generally any surplus generated by the water business, after
allowing for operating and capital expenses, will be added to this reserve on an annual
basis.

Sewerage reserve
This reserve consists of funds set aside for  the future replacement of sewer related assets
across the Council area. Generally any surplus generated by the sewer business, after
allowing for operating and capital expenses, will be added to this reserve on an annual
basis.

Facilities (Business Units) reserve
This reserve consists of funds set aside for the future replacement of Quarry, Aerodrome
and Saleyards related assets. It also relates to funds set aside for future works on strategic
road links to the Shepton Quarry. Generally, any surplus generated by the business units
of Saleyards, Aerodrome and Quarry, after allowing for operating and capital expenses
and a return on capital/dividend payment to Council, will be added to this reserve on an
annual basis. These funds could be used for operating or capital expense purposes.

Carry over capital projects reserve
This reserve consists of funds set aside from capital works projects not completed in a
previous financial year and remain unallocated. These funds will be used to fund future
capital works.

Future Fund reserve
This reserve consists of funds set aside for future strategic capital works that are
determined a priority by Council. Generally, 20% of general rates collected from the 12
coal mining categories will be added to this reserve on an annual basis.

Special rates reserve
This reserve consists of the proceeds of special rates collected that remain unspent from
one year to the next. These funds could be used for operating or capital expense purposes
depending on the source of funds. This reserve relates to specific roads near the following
mines: Gregory Mine, Kestral Mine, Capcoal and Oaky Creek.
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CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2015

1. 23 Reserves held for funding future recurrent expenditure:

Council also maintains a system of cash backed reserves which represent funds that are
accumulated within the Council to meet anticipated future recurrent or operating
expenditure needs.  In each case the amount relates to a perceived future requirement which
is not currently a liability.

These reserves operate as follows:

Recurrent projects (Constrained) reserve
This reserve holds operational grants and contributions that were unspent at balance date.

Prepaid grants reserve
This reserve holds any prepaid Financial Assistance Grants paid to Council and advance
payments from QLDRA for NDRRA Emergent Works submissions.

Elections  reserve
This reserve consists of funds set aside to offset the future costs of conducting general and
bi-elections.

Special Projects  reserve
This reserve consists of funds generated from the collection of general rates from non-
owner occupier properties and set aside for future special operating projects that are
determined a priority by Council.

1. 24 National competition policy
The Council has reviewed its activities and has identified 6 activities that are business
activities.  Details of these activities can be found in note 37.

1. 25 Rounding and comparatives
The financial statements have been rounded to the nearest $1.
Comparative information has been restated where necessary to be consistent with
disclosures in the current reporting period.

1. 26 Trust funds held for outside parties
Funds held in the trust account on behalf of outside parties may include those funds from
the sale of land for arrears in rates, deposits for the contracted sale of land, security deposits
lodged to guarantee performance and unclaimed monies (e.g. wages) paid into the trust
account by the Council.  The Council performs only a custodian role in respect of these
monies and because the monies cannot be used for Council purposes, they are not
considered revenue nor brought to account in the financial statements.

For details see note 32.

1. 27 Taxation
Income of local authorities and public authorities is exempt from Commonwealth taxation
except for Fringe Benefits Tax and Goods and Services Tax (‘GST’).  The net amount of
GST recoverable from the ATO or payable to the ATO is shown as an asset or liability
respectively.

The Council pays payroll tax to the Queensland Government on certain activities.
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2 Analysis of Results by Function
(a)   Components of council functions
The activities relating to the Council's components reported on in Note 2 (b) are as follows :

Executive Management
As well as providing organisational leadership and oversight, the Executive Management function has
responsibility for corporate communication, community planning and engagement, public affairs, governance,
risk management and internal audit. The Mayor, Councillors and Chief Executive Officer are also included in
the Executive Management function. The objective of this function is to be open and accountable and deliver
community driven outcomes.

Corporate Services
The main function of Corporate Services is to provide finance, treasury, procurement, information technology
and human resource management services across all of Council. Council's asset management services also come
under the responsibility of this function. The objective of the Corporate Services function is to provide accurate
and timely financial information to enable Council to make sound informed decisions and meet all statutory
requirements.

Communities
The primary goals and activities of the Communities function are:
- Providing well managed and maintained community facilities to ensure the effective delivery of cultural,
health, welfare, environment and recreational services to the community. This is achieved by carrying out
activities related to (but not limited to): Libraries, Halls and Community Centres, environmental licences and
approvals, public parks and gardens and youth and aged housing; and
- Facilitating the Shire's growth and prosperity through well planned and quality developments, achieved by
carrying out activities relating to regional planning and development approval processes.

Infrastructure and Utilities
The Infrastructure function is responsible for the maintenance and construction of Council's Road Network
infrastructure. The primary objective of this function is to ensure that the Region is serviced by a high quality
and effective road network.

Corporate Revenue & Expenses
This function has responsibility for the recognition of rates, corporate revenue, recoveries and corporate
expenses that are not allocated to other specific function of Council. The goal of this function is to provide
oversight of Council's corporate revenue and expenses.

Commercial Services Office
The commercial Services Office represents the activities relating to the executive oversight for Council's
Business Units - Aerodrome, Quarries, and Saleyards. This function also oversees and manages Council's Land
Development activities. The objective of this function is to ensure Council's business units are operating
efficiently and effectively.

Saleyards
The Saleyards function is responsible for the provision and maintenance of saleyard facilities. The primary
objective is to support local producers by providing efficient facilities to enable them to sell their livestock.

Aerodrome
This function is responsible for the operation and maintenance of Council's airport facilities across the region.
The main goal of this function is to ensure the community is serviced with commercial air travel facilities and to
enhance the regions accessibility and development potential.

Quarries
The primary objective of this function is to provide high quality products for road, civil and site works. This
function is responsible for the general operation and business support function of Council's quarry sites.

Waste Management
This function is responsible for the provision of Council's waste collection, recycling service and refuse tip
facilities. The main goal of this function is to protect and support the community and natural environment by
continually pursing waste reduction, recovery and recycling initiatives.

Sewerage
This Sewerage function is responsible for the provision of Council's sewerage connection, collection, disposal
and treatment services. The objective of this function is to support a healthy and safe community through
sustainable sewerage services.

Water
This function is responsible for the provision of Council's water supply including quality measurement,
connection and treatment services. The objective of this function is to support a healthy and safe community
through sustainable water services.
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2    A
nalysis of results by function

(b)  Incom
e and expenses defined betw

een recurring and capital, and assets are attributed to the follow
ing program

s:
G

ross program
 incom

e
Total

G
ross program

 expenses
Total

O
perating

N
et

R
ecurrent revenue

C
apital revenue

incom
e

expenses
surplus/(deficit)

result
G

rants
O

ther
G

rants
O

ther
from

 recurrent
for period

operations
2015

2015
2015

2015
2015

2015
2015

2015
2015

2015
2015

$
$

$
$

$
$

$
$

$
$

$

Executive M
anagem

ent
197,988

83,301
-

-
281,289

(5,500,114)
-

(5,500,114)
(5,218,825)

(5,218,825)
153,876,314

C
orporate Services

10,000
4,684,379

-
39,046

4,733,425
(5,333,955)

(309,327)
(5,643,282)

(639,576)
(909,857)

24,399,933
C

om
m

unities
377,351

2,775,798
75,594

163,339
3,392,082

(18,597,106)
(1,819,619)

(20,416,725)
(15,443,957)

(17,024,643)
223,369,090

Infrastructure and U
tilities

3,116,482
7,928,834

17,911,686
313,269

29,270,271
(36,433,468)

(6,469,393)
(42,902,861)

(25,388,152)
(13,632,590)

746,516,771
C

orporate R
evenue &

 Expenses
6,047,489

50,013,981
-

-
56,061,470

1,717,842
-

1,717,842
57,779,312

57,779,312
-

C
om

m
ercial  Services O

ffice
-

761,860
-

-
761,860

(905,523)
-

(905,523)
(143,663)

(143,663)
6,602,350

Saleyards
-

993,617
-

-
993,617

(854,271)
(170,758)

(1,025,029)
139,346

(31,412)
8,009,397

A
erodrom

e
-

7,921,160
-

-
7,921,160

(5,135,023)
(91,046)

(5,226,069)
2,786,137

2,695,091
43,885,633

Q
uarries

-
1,339,970

-
(3,281)

1,336,689
(3,051,865)

(5,337,587)
(8,389,452)

(1,711,895)
(7,052,763)

11,434,876
W

aste M
anagem

ent
-

6,964,199
-

-
6,964,199

(5,298,274)
-

(5,298,274)
1,665,925

1,665,925
4,880,185

Sew
erage

-
7,291,795

-
233,020

7,524,815
(6,308,870)

(168,947)
(6,477,817)

982,925
1,046,998

113,279,880
W

ater
-

15,444,848
108,000

204,524
15,757,372

(16,549,783)
(49,823)

(16,599,606)
(1,104,935)

(842,234)
179,288,416

Total
9,749,310

106,203,742
18,095,280

949,917
134,998,249

(102,250,410)
(14,416,500)

(116,666,910)
13,702,642

18,331,339
1,515,542,845

For the year ended 30 June 2014:
G

ross program
 incom

e
Total

G
ross program

 expenses
Total

O
perating

N
et

R
ecurrent revenue

C
apital revenue

incom
e

expenses
surplus/(deficit)

result
G

rants
O

ther
G

rants
O

ther
from

 recurrent
for period

operations
2014

2014
2014

2014
2014

2014
2014

2014
2014

2014
2014

$
$

$
$

$
$

$
$

$
$

$

Executive M
anagem

ent
406,043

44,004
-

-
450,047

(5,747,728)
-

(5,747,728)
(5,297,681)

(5,297,681)
140,201,322

C
orporate Services

52,315
4,144,075

-
-

4,196,390
(6,753,190)

(202,510)
(6,955,700)

(2,556,800)
(2,759,310)

26,118,283
C

om
m

unities
198,587

3,401,900
223,504

61,846
3,885,837

(20,137,620)
(430,627)

(20,568,247)
(16,537,133)

(16,682,410)
221,954,262

Infrastructure and U
tilities

10,961,382
8,460,150

5,620,378
12,205,777

37,247,687
(51,587,267)

(532,999)
(52,120,266)

(32,165,734)
(14,872,579)

727,097,910
C

orporate R
evenue &

 Expenses
2,859,201

50,751,210
-

-
53,610,411

1,912,000
-

1,912,000
55,522,411

55,522,411
-

C
om

m
ercial  Services O

ffice
-

1,619,078
-

-
1,619,078

(1,731,554)
-

(1,731,554)
(112,476)

(112,476)
6,780,435

Saleyards
-

975,161
-

-
975,161

(886,218)
(118)

(886,336)
88,943

88,825
7,436,670

A
erodrom

e
-

9,047,996
795,934

-
9,843,930

(5,334,632)
(792,815)

(6,127,447)
3,713,364

3,716,483
41,979,609

Q
uarries

-
6,070,269

-
-

6,070,269
(6,342,509)

(53,238)
(6,395,747)

(272,240)
(325,478)

14,455,918
W

aste M
anagem

ent
2,500

7,473,828
-

-
7,476,328

(5,110,676)
(2,457)

(5,113,133)
2,365,652

2,363,195
4,590,930

Sew
erage

-
7,423,145

-
303,288

7,726,433
(6,242,734)

-
(6,242,734)

1,180,411
1,483,699

111,568,843
W

ater
7,500

15,047,711
-

408,317
15,463,528

(15,496,971)
(77,165)

(15,574,136)
(441,760)

(110,608)
149,636,181

Total
14,487,528

114,458,527
6,639,816

12,979,228
148,565,099

(123,459,098)
(2,091,929)

(125,551,027)
5,486,957

23,014,072
1,451,820,363

Program
s

Program
s

A
ssets

R
ecurrent

C
apital

A
ssets

R
ecurrent

C
apital

P
a

g
e

 2
0

CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2015

2015 2014

Note $ $
3 Revenue analysis

(a)    Rates and levies
General rates 57,570,743 56,767,370
Special rates 1,278,986 1,552,368
Water 5,428,661 5,390,474
Water consumption, rental and sundries 10,417,490 9,670,182
Sewerage 8,277,691 8,668,778
Waste management 6,349,623 6,349,372
Rates and utility charge revenue 89,323,194 88,398,544
Less:  Discounts (10,380,374) (10,808,519)
Less:  Pensioner remissions (612,384) (559,886)

Net rates and utility charges 78,330,436 77,030,139

(b)    Sale of goods and major services
Quarry materials 1,339,970 6,070,269
Airport charges 7,921,160 9,047,996
Saleyard services 993,617 975,161

10,254,747 16,093,426

4 Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations
(a)      Recurrent - grants, subsidies, contributions

   and donations are analysed as follows:
General purpose grants 8,927,236 4,277,147
Commonwealth subsidies and grants - 70,000
State Government subsidies & grants 822,074 10,043,160
Donations 43,150 2,000
Contributions 2,045,901 93,721

Total recurrent revenue 11,838,361 14,486,028

(b)     Capital - grants, subsidies, and contributions
   are analysed as follows:

(i)   Monetary revenue designated for capital funding purposes:
Commonwealth government grants 1,582,333 4,402,274
State Government subsidies & grants 16,512,947 2,237,541
Other Non-Government Subsidies 3,818 3,068,282
Contributions 910,334 872,222

19,009,432 10,580,319
(ii)  Non-monetary revenue received is analysed as follows:

Developer assets contributed by developers at fair value - 9,038,725
- 9,038,725

Total capital revenue 19,009,432 19,619,044

(c)  Conditions over contributions
Non-reciprocal grants and contributions which were recognised as revenues during the
reporting period and which were obtained on the condition that they be expended in a
general specified manner (eg.headworks) by the contributor but had not been expended
at the reporting date:

Contributions for Infrastructure 910,334 872,222
910,334 872,222

5 Capital income
Gain on sale of capital assets 6 35,765 -

35,765 -

6 Gain (loss) on the disposal of capital assets
      Proceeds from the sale of plant and equipment 334,840 1,347,838

Less: Book value of plant and equipment sold (299,075) (1,550,348)
35,765 (202,510)

Total gain (loss) on the disposal of capital assets 5 & 10 35,765 (202,510)
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CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2015

2015 2014

Note $ $

7 Employee benefits
Total staff wages and salaries 28,852,955 29,937,004
Councillor's remuneration 638,358 614,123
Annual, sick and long service leave entitlements 4,738,297 5,700,165
Superannuation 31 3,566,232 3,699,917

37,795,842 39,951,209
Other employee related expenses 2,988,800 2,824,737

40,784,642 42,775,946
Less :    Capitalised employee expenses (4,290,024) (3,099,312)

36,494,618 39,676,634

Councillor remuneration represents salary, and other allowances paid in respect of
carrying out their duties.

Total Council employees at  June 2015: 2015 2014
Actual     FTE Actual     FTE

Elected members         9               9         9               9
Administration staff     225           206     234           218
Depot and outdoors staff      231           225      261           251

Total full time equivalent employees      465           440       504           478

2015 2014

Note $ $
8 Materials and services

Audit of annual financial statements by the Auditor-General of Queensland 135,640 139,000
Internal Auditor Office 157,292 185,933
Administration Supplies, Insurance and Subscriptions 3,628,619 3,430,679
Consultants and Contractors and Other External services 12,541,815 20,967,926
Electricity, Water and Telephone 4,023,233 3,701,295
External Works Materials and Services 1,703,841 4,135,281
Grants, Precepts, Sponsorships and Donations 1,503,571 1,232,178
Land Development Selling and Operational Expenses 45,177 48,414
Legal Fees 312,790 620,275
Other Materials and Services 301,222 442,630
Airport Operational Material and Services 2,437,810 2,648,497
Quarry Production and Operational Material and Services 3,661,935 3,760,135
Saleyards Operational Materials and Services 311,967 368,634
Waste Management and Disposal 3,244,754 4,108,021
Rentals - Operating leases 106,598 125,351
Repairs, Maintenance and Program Operational expenses 3,842,815 10,140,527

37,959,079 56,054,776

9 Finance costs
Finance costs charged by the Queensland Treasury Corporation 2,901,809 3,018,061
Bank charges 212,056 214,864
Impairment of receivables and bad debts written off (37,080) (341,157)
Refuse sites - change in PV over time 200,951 188,147
Quarry sites - change in PV over time 4,269 2,398

3,282,005 3,082,313

10 Capital expenses
Loss on the sale of capital assets 6 - 202,510
Loss on write-off of capital assets 11 7,607,799 1,836,182
Loss on impairment of capital assets 12 3,142,000 -
Loss on assets previously recognised incorrectly 35 1,471,114 -
Increase in rehabilitation provision for future costs, on land not
controlled by council, due to a change in discount rate 61,314 12,907
Change arising from revision of the future restoration expenditure 2,134,273 40,330
Total capital expenses 14,416,500 2,091,929
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2015

2015 2014

Note $ $

11 Loss on write-off of capital assets are as follows:
Buildings 185,994 -
Road and bridge network 7,155,179 -
Works in progress 266,626 1,836,182

10 7,607,799 1,836,182
12 Loss on impairments

Loss on impairment of property plant and equipment: 19
Site improvements - 410,712
Road and bridge network - 309,731
Water - 20,857
Airport - 73,582
Plant and equipment (Quarry Crushing Plant) 3,142,000 -

Total impairment losses 3,142,000 814,882
Less impairment losses offset against the asset revaluation surplus - (814,882)
Impairment losses treated as an expense 3,142,000 -

13 Cash assets and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and on hand 98,435 3,372,814
Deposits at call 106,431,914 78,255,352
Term deposits - 30,485,742
Total cash and cash equivalents per cash flow statement 106,530,349 112,113,908
Cash Investments held 17 20,759,480
Total cash assets 127,289,829 112,113,908

Councils cash and cash equivalents are subject to a number of internal and external restrictions that limit amounts available for
discretionary or future use. These include:

Externally imposed expenditure restrictions at the reporting date relate to the following assets:
    Unspent government grants and subsidies 27 (iii) 11,759,631 3,966,073

    Unspent developer contributions 27 (iii) 18,661,029 28,658,297

Internally imposed expenditure restrictions at the reporting date relate to the

following assets:

    Funds set aside by council and held in reserves for future projects 89,143,490 77,390,077

    Total unspent restricted cash held in reserves 27 119,564,150 110,014,447

14 Trade and other receivables
(a)  Current

Rateable revenue and utility charges 6,414,916 6,882,459
Water charges yet to be levied 6,561,859 5,664,037
Accrued capital grants and contributions 3,173,409 13,018
Accrued government operating grants and subsidies - 2,431,596
Bonds and Retentions paid 2,200 158,144
Accrued interest 451,503 370,074
GST recoverable 680,206 925,577
Other debtors 6,669,377 9,399,816
Less:  Impairment provision (172,822) (436,955)

23,780,648 25,407,766
Prepayments 402,752 407,936
Loans and advances to community organisations - 4,066

24,183,400 25,819,768

(b)  Non-current
Loans and advances to community organisations - 7,334

- 7,334
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CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2015

2015 2014

Note $ $
14 Trade and other receivables (continued)

Interest is charged on outstanding rates at a rate of 11% per annum. No interest is
charged on other debtors. There is no concentration of credit risk for rates and utility
charges, fees and other debtors receivable.

Loans and advances relate to loans made to various community bodies and are subject to
negotiated interest rates. The credit risk on these loans is considered low.

Movement in accumulated impairment losses (trade and other receivables) is
as follows:

Opening balance 436,954 1,744,918
Impairment adjustment in period (264,132) (1,307,964)
Closing balance 172,822 436,954

15 Inventories
Current

Inventories held for sale:
Capella Cultural Stock - 9,240
Shepton Quarry Stock 1,088,818 1,397,016
Deep Creek Quarry Stock 463,095 -
Saleyards Stock 12,689 -

1,564,602 1,406,256
Inventories for internal use:

Stores and materials 811,349 827,741
811,349 827,741

Valued at cost, adjusted when applicable for any loss of service potential.

Land purchased for development and sale 16 6,535,947 6,780,435
8,911,898 9,014,432

16 Land purchased for development and sale
Balance at the beginning of financial year 6,780,435 8,051,727
Development costs net of refund of development costs 152,384 (344,616)
Less:  Cost of developed land sold (396,872) (926,676)
Balance at end of the financial year 6,535,947 6,780,435

Land purchased for development and sale is valued at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

17 Cash investments
Fixed term held with other institutions realisable between three and twelve months 20,759,480 -

20,759,480 -
Term deposits at fixed rates are held with the National Australia Bank (AA-). Maturity is
182 days and the deposits bear interest at 3.51%.

18 Equity investments
Share investment in Emerald Co-operative Society Ltd 27,135 26,315

27,135 26,315
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19   Property, plant and equipm
ent

N
ote

B
asis of m

easurem
ent

Fair V
alue

Fair V
alue

Fair V
alue

C
ost

C
ost

Fair V
alue

Fair V
alue

Fair V
alue

C
ost

Fair V
alue

C
ost

2015
2015

2015
2015

2015
2015

2015
2015

2015
2015

2015
2015

A
sset  V

alues
$

$
$

$
$

$
$

$
$

$
$

$

O
pening gross value as at 1 July 2014

58,298,500
49,937,499

165,911,875
64,836,176

4,342,631
772,555,025

194,252,147
151,581,384

195,578
44,623,562

17,077,375
1,523,611,752

M
inor correction to opening balance

(1,558,487)
(2,372,460)

(881,861)
1,003,247

(165,600)
(199,465)

(4,174,626)

A
dditions at cost

-
-

-
-

62,001,963
62,001,963

Internal transfers from
 w

ork in progress
168,850

2,262,746
3,657,128

2,216,933
274,070

20,790,704
32,221,368

17,791
-

2,099,760
(63,709,350)

-

D
isposals

6
-

-
-

(1,079,075)
-

-
-

-
-

-
(1,079,075)

W
rite-offs

10
-

-
(222,912)

-
-

(7,819,365)
-

-
-

-
(266,626)

(8,308,903)

Internal Transfers betw
een asset classes

-
1,558,487

2,392,574
(4,150,526)

-
-

-
-

-
199,465

-
-

R
evaluation adjustm

ent to other com
prehensive incom

e.
(refer the A

R
S*)

25
(108,850)

(518,768)
(6,296,260)

-
-

14,860,637
3,986,018

3,865,459
-

820,901
-

16,609,137

C
losing gross value as at 30 June 2015

58,358,500
51,681,477

163,069,945
60,941,647

4,616,701
801,390,248

230,459,533
155,299,034

195,578
47,544,223

15,103,362
1,588,660,248

A
ccum

ulated depreciation and im
pairm

ent

O
pening balance as at 1 July 2014

-
4,632,856

21,373,779
21,130,970

2,386,452
67,708,441

53,387,637
43,660,116

12,307
4,480,590

-
218,773,148

M
inor correction to opening balance

(1,162,466)
(985,864)

(467,467)
62,007

(41,303)
(108,419)

(2,703,512)

D
epreciation provided in period

-
877,457

1,951,946
5,157,581

437,180
9,291,351

2,806,005
2,811,731

2,074
782,511

-
24,117,836

D
epreciation on disposals

6
-

-
-

(780,000)
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

(780,000)

D
epreciation on w

rite-offs
(36,918)

(664,186)
(701,104)

Internal Transfers betw
een asset classes

-
1,043,847

691,081
(1,818,074)

-
-

-
-

83,146
-

-
R

evaluation adjustm
ent to other com

prehensive incom
e.

(refer the A
R

S*)
25

-
588,936

(12,308,129)
-

-
1,510,406

948,179
1,263,665

-
(321,760)

-
(8,318,703)

Im
pairm

ent adjustm
ent to capital loss

25
-

-
-

3,142,000
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

3,142,000

A
ccum

ulated depreciation as at 30 June 2015
-

5,980,630
10,685,895

26,365,010
2,823,632

77,908,019
57,141,821

47,694,209
14,381

4,916,068
-

233,529,665

Total w
ritten dow

n value as at 30 June 2015
58,358,500

45,700,847
152,384,050

34,576,637
1,793,069

723,482,229
173,317,712

107,604,825
181,197

42,628,155
15,103,362

1,355,130,583

R
esidual value

9,141,247
461,670

462,340,107
55,730,955

32,001,846
6,311,338

565,987,163

R
ange of estim

ated useful life in years
N

ot depreciated
15 - 65

15 - 150
3 - 20

3 - 20
6 - 100

10 - 100
10 - 100

7 - 100
6 - 100

A
ddition of renew

al assets
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
17,312,547

17,312,547

A
ddition of other assets

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

44,689,416
44,689,416

Total additions in period
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
62,001,963

62,001,963
* A

R
S denotes - A

sset R
evaluation Surplus

R
oad and bridge

netw
ork

Land
Site im

provem
ents

B
uildings

Plant and
equipm

ent
O

ffice Furniture
and Fittings

W
orks in progress

Total
W

ater
Sew

erage
H

eritage &
C

ultural
A

irport

P
a

g
e
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19  Property, plant and equipm
ent - prior year

B
asis of m

easurem
ent

Fair V
alue

Fair V
alue

Fair V
alue

C
ost

C
ost

Fair V
alue

Fair V
alue

Fair V
alue

C
ost

Fair V
alue

C
ost

2014
2014

2014
2014

2014
2014

2014
2014

2014
2014

2014
2014

A
sset  V

alues
$

$
$

$
$

$
$

$
$

$
$

$
O

pening gross value as at 1 July 2013
58,082,799

38,937,093
156,644,205

60,130,862
3,071,568

655,460,209
184,497,330

140,516,072
195,578

34,099,056
47,792,924

1,379,427,696

A
dditions at cost

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

41,829,467
41,829,467

C
ontributed assets at valuation

-
-

-
-

-
9,038,725

-
-

-
-

-
9,038,725

Internal transfers from
 w

ork in progress
76,617

12,311,802
11,199,340

8,272,899
1,271,063

24,669,578
3,499,732

293,816
-

9,113,987
(70,708,834)

-

D
isposals

6
-

-
-

(3,567,585)
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

(3,567,585)

W
rite-offs

10
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
(1,836,182)

(1,836,182)

R
evaluation adjustm

ent to other com
prehensive incom

e.
(refer the A

R
S*)

25
139,084

(1,311,396)
(1,931,670)

-
-

83,386,513
6,255,085

10,771,496
-

1,410,519
-

98,719,631

C
losing gross value as at 30 June 2014

58,298,500
49,937,499

165,911,875
64,836,176

4,342,631
772,555,025

194,252,147
151,581,384

195,578
44,623,562

17,077,375
1,523,611,752

A
ccum

ulated depreciation and im
pairm

ent

O
pening balance as at 1 July 2013

-
5,561,637

20,138,758
17,520,547

1,876,126
98,511,425

55,906,653
38,004,810

10,233
4,809,186

-
242,339,375

D
epreciation provided in period

-
613,441

1,255,417
5,627,660

510,326
9,770,513

2,925,074
2,331,645

2,074
682,549

-
23,718,699

D
epreciation on disposals

6
-

-
-

(2,017,237)
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

(2,017,237)

R
evaluation adjustm

ent to other com
prehensive incom

e.
(refer the A

R
S*)

25
-

(1,952,934)
(20,396)

-
-

(40,883,228)
(5,464,947)

3,323,661
-

(1,084,727)
-

(46,082,571)

Im
pairm

ent adjustm
ent to other com

prehensive incom
e.

(A
R

S*)
25

-
410,712

-
-

-
309,731

20,857
-

-
73,582

-
814,882

A
ccum

ulated depreciation as at 30 June 2014
-

4,632,856
21,373,779

21,130,970
2,386,452

67,708,441
53,387,637

43,660,116
12,307

4,480,590
-

218,773,148

Total w
ritten dow

n value as at 30 June 2014
58,298,500

45,304,643
144,538,096

43,705,206
1,956,179

704,846,584
140,864,510

107,921,268
183,271

40,142,972
17,077,375

1,304,838,604

R
esidual value

6,878,514
79,052,640

9,725,426
434,263

441,099,126
18,718,204

17,235,417
12,739,552

585,883,142

R
ange of estim

ated useful life in years
N

ot depreciated
15 - 65

15 - 150
3 - 20

3 - 20
6 - 100

10 - 100
10 - 100

7 - 100
6 - 100

A
ddition of renew

al assets
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
6,858,277

6,858,277

A
ddition of other assets

-
-

-
-

-
9,038,725

-
-

-
-

34,971,190
44,009,916

Total additions in period
-

-
-

-
-

9,038,725
-

-
-

-
41,829,467

50,868,193

* A
R

S denotes - A
sset R

evaluation Surplus

N
ote

Land
Site im

provem
ents

B
uildings

Plant and
equipm

ent
O

ffice Furniture
and Fittings

R
oad and bridge

netw
ork

W
ater

W
orks in progress

Total
Sew

erage
H

eritage &
C

ultural
A

irport

P
a

g
e

 2
6
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20 Fair value measurements

(a)  Recognised fair value measurements

Property, plant and equipment
- Land
- Site improvements
- Buildings
- Road, drainage and bridge network
- Water Infrastructure
- Sewerage Infrastructure
- Airport

Note
(Significant other observable

inputs)
(Significant unobservable inputs)

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2,014

$ $ $ $ $ $

Recurring fair value measurements

Property, plant and equipment 20

- Land 58,358,500 58,298,500 - - 58,358,500 58,298,500
- Site improvements - 4,791,590 45,700,847 40,513,054 45,700,847 45,304,644
- Buildings 9,215,000 14,967,235 143,169,048 129,570,861 152,384,048 144,538,096
- Road, drainage and bridge network - 723,482,229 704,846,584 723,482,229 704,846,584
- Water Infrastructure - 173,317,712 140,864,510 173,317,712 140,864,510
- Sewerage Infrastructure - 107,604,825 107,921,268 107,604,825 107,921,268
- Airport - 8,767,162 42,628,155 31,375,810 42,628,155 40,142,972

67,573,500 86,824,487 1,235,902,816 1,155,092,087 1,303,476,316 1,241,916,574

Council measures and recognises the following assets at fair value on a recurring basis

Council does not measure any liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis.

Council has assets and liabilities which are not measured at fair value, but for which fair values are disclosed in other notes.

Council borrowings are measured at amortised cost with interest recognised in profit or loss when incurred.  The fair value of borrowings disclosed in note 24
is provided by the Queensland Treasury Corporation and represents the contractual undiscounted cash flows at balance date (level 2).

The carrying amounts of trade receivables and trade payables are assumed to approximate their fair values due to their short-term nature (Level 2).

In accordance with AASB 13 fair value measurements are categorised on the following basis:

      -  Fair value based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1)

There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year. Except Site Improvement Assets there were no changes made between Level 2 and 3.

Council's policy is to recognise transfers in and out of the fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period.

Total

      -  Fair value based on inputs that are directly or indirectly observable for the asset or liability (level 2)

      -  Fair value based on unobservable inputs for the asset and liability (level 3)

The following table categorises fair value measurements as either level 2 or level 3  in accordance with AASB 13. Council does not have any assets or
liabilities measured at fair value which meet the criteria for categorisation as level 1.

The fair values of the assets are determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable data, where it is available, and minimise the use
of entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an asset are observable, the asset is included in level 2. If one or more of the
significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the asset is included in level 3. This is the case for Council infrastructure assets, which are of a
specialist nature for which there is no active market for similar or identical assets.  These assets are valued using a combination of observable and
unobservable inputs.

The table presents the Council's assets and liabilities measured and recognised at fair value at 30 June 2015.

Level 2 Level 3
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20 Fair value measurements - continued

(b) Valuation techniques used to derive fair values for level 2 and level 3 valuations

Specific valuation techniques used to value Council assets comprise:

Property, plant and equipment

Site Improvements (including Airport Site Improvement assets) (level 3)

The Valuer Generals 2015 property report identified coal mining towns such as Blackwater, Capella, Bluff and Teri as experiencing the largest reduction in
land and residential values over the last two years. While away from the coal-related areas, in towns like Duaringa, Dingo, Bauhinia, Bogantungan, Willows
and The Gemfields, values remain static. For the 2015 desktop valuation due to insufficient market evidence across all towns a percentage change cannot be
accurately determined and therefore the values have remained unchanged from the 2014 desktop valuation.

The fair value of Site Improvements were also were determined by a team of independent valuers from APV Values and Asset Management, effective 30 June
2015. A Desktop revaluation is preformed to all site improvements assets as of 30 June 2015 and where there is a market for Council site improvements
assets, fair value has been derived from the sales prices of comparable properties after adjusting for differences in key attributes such as property size. The
most significant inputs into this valuation approach were price per square metre.

Where Council site improvements are of a specialist nature and there is no active market for the assets, fair value has been determined on the basis of
replacement with a new asset having similar service potential including allowances for preliminaries and professional fees. The gross current values have been
derived from reference to market data for recent projects and costing guides issued by the Australian Institute of Quantity Surveyors, Rawlinson's (Australian
Construction Handbook). Where a depth in market can be identified, the net current value of a site improvements asset is the difference between the market
value of the asset as a whole (including land) and the market value of the land component. Where there is no depth of market, the net current value of a site
improvements asset is the gross current value less accumulated depreciation to reflect the consumed or expired service potential of the asset.

In determining the level of accumulated depreciation the asset has been disaggregated into significant components which exhibit useful lives. Allowance has
been made for the typical asset life cycle and renewal treatments of each component, residual value at the time the asset is considered to be no longer available
for use and the condition of the asset. Condition was assessed taking into account both physical characteristics as well as holistic factors such as functionality,
capability, utilisation and obsolescence.

While the unit rates based on square metres can be supported the estimates of  average useful life, pattern of consumption and asset condition that are used to
calculate accumulated depreciation comprise unobservable inputs (level 3). Where these other inputs are significant to the valuation the overall valuation has
been classified as level 3. The following table provides a summary of the unobservable inputs and an assessment of the sensitivity of these to the fair value
measurement:

Council adopted AASB13 Fair Value Measurement this financial year and has reviewed each valuation to ensure compliance with the requirements of the new
standard. There have been no changes in valuation techniques as a result of this review.

Land classified as held not for sale and council owned during the reporting period and fair value of the land was determined using the sales comparison
approach.

Land (Level 2)

Land fair values were determined by a team of independent values from APV Valuers and Asset Management, effective 30 June 2015. A Desktop revaluation
is preformed to land assets as of 30 June 2015 and Level 2 valuation inputs were used to value land in freehold title as well as land used for special purposes,
which is restricted in use under current zoning rules. Sales prices of comparable land sites in close proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes such
as property size. The most significant inputs into this valuation approach are price per square metre.

Land classified as held for sale during the reporting period was measured at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell at the time of
reclassification.  The fair value of the land was determined using the sales comparison approach described in the preceding paragraph.
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Infrastructure assets (level 3)

The Buildings (Cost Approach) shows positive movement of 2% with the inclusion of several new assets including six youth housing units and three new
amenities blocks at Bridgeman Park, Comet Community Hall and The Japanese Garden added to the register for 2015. The following table provides a
summary of the unobservable inputs and an assessment of the sensitivity of these to the fair value measurement:

Current replacement cost:

All road network infrastructure assets were valued using level 3 valuation inputs using the cost approach. The approach estimated the replacement cost for
each asset by componentising the assets into significant parts with different useful lives and taking into account a range of factors.

The fair value of all Infrastructure assets were also determined by an indexation provided by APV Valuers and Asset Management, effective 30 June 2015. All
Council infrastructure assets were fair valued using written down current replacement cost (CRC). This valuation comprises the asset's current replacement
cost (CRC) less accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost to reflect the already consumed or expired future economic benefits of the asset.
Council first determined the gross cost of replacing the full service potential of the asset and then adjusted this amount to take account of the expired service
potential of the asset.

CRC was measured by reference to the lowest cost at which the gross future economic benefits of the asset could currently be obtained in the normal course of
business. Where existing assets were over designed, had excess capacity, or were redundant an adjustment was made so that the resulting valuation reflected
the cost of replacing the existing economic benefits based on an efficient set of modern equivalent assets to achieve the required level of service output within
the council's planning horizon.

The unit rates (labour and materials) and quantities applied to determine the CRC of an asset or asset component were based on a "Greenfield" assumption
meaning that the CRC was determined as the full cost of replacement with a new asset including components that may not need to be replaced, such as
earthworks. The DRC was determined using methods relevant to the asset class as described under individual asset categories below.

Specific valuation techniques used to value Council infrastructure assets comprise:

  1(a)  Road and bridge network  - calculation of current replacement cost

Roads (including Airport Road assets)

Fair value measurements - continued

Buildings (including Airport Building assets) (level 2 and 3)

The fair value of Buildings were also were determined by a team of independent valuers from APV Valuers and Asset Management, effective 30 June 2015. A
Desktop revaluation is preformed to all building assets as of 30 June 2015 and where there is a market for Council building assets, fair value has been derived
from the sales prices of comparable properties after adjusting for differences in key attributes such as property size. The most significant inputs into this
valuation approach were price per square metre.

The buildings has experienced a further decrease in value since 2014 which is the reduction in values of residential properties due to the mining industry slow
down in the region.

In determining the level of accumulated depreciation the asset has been disaggregated into significant components which exhibit useful lives. Allowance has
been made for the typical asset life cycle and renewal treatments of each component, residual value at the time the asset is considered to be no longer available
for use and the condition of the asset. Condition was assessed taking into account both physical characteristics as well as holistic factors such as functionality,
capability, utilisation and obsolescence.

While the unit rates based on square metres can be supported by market evidence (level 2), the estimates of residual value, useful life and asset condition that
are used to calculate accumulated depreciation comprise unobservable inputs (level 3). Where these other inputs are significant to the valuation the overall
valuation has been classified as level 3. The following table provides a summary of the unobservable inputs and an assessment of the sensitivity of these to the
fair value measurement:
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20

6

Estimated useful lives and residual values are disclosed in note 19.

At intervention point. No longer providing an acceptable level of service. If remedial
action is not taken immediately the asset will need to be closed or decommissioned.

Theoretical end of life.

3

4

Accumulated depreciation:

In determining the level of accumulated depreciation, remaining useful lives were determined based on condition assessments according to the following
table:

0

1

New or Very Good Condition - Very high level of remaining service potential.

Not new but in Very Good condition with no indicators of any future obsolescence and
providing a high level of remaining service potential.

Aged and in good condition provide an adequate level of remaining service
potential. No signs of immediate or short term obsolescence.

Providing an adequate level of remaining service potential but some concerns over
the ability of the asset to continue to provide an adequate level of service in the short to
medium term. May be signs of obsolescence in short to mid-term.

Indicators that will need to renew, upgrade or scrap in near future. Should be reflected
by inclusion in the Capital Works Plan to renew or replace in short-term. Very low
level of remaining service potential.

Condition rating

5

Accumulated depreciation:

In determining the level of accumulated depreciation, roads were disaggregated into significant components which exhibited different useful lives and residual
values.

Council engineering team headed by the asset management engineer carried out a 100% detail audit throughout the road network of the council in 13/14
financial year . During this process our engineers drove road by road and collected data and updated the GIS MapInfo system onsite. The audit was carried out
mainly to assess the road conditions of formation, pavement and surface on a visual inspection and assessment. Also roads were segmentation based on
formation type, pavement type and surface type for both rural and urban roads. The urban roads were segmented for each intersection and rural roads were
segmented for a maximum of 5km. After the segmentation and updating the current condition the database was submitted for revaluations. Thereafter council
engaged a contractor for a detail hierarchy driven level of service assessment in selected areas to further monitor the conditions. These data collectively was
used for the following valuation assumptions which has a direct impact on the accumulated depreciation.

Bridges
Current replacement cost:

The fair value of all Bridge assets were also determined by an indexation provided by APV Valuers and Asset Management, effective 30 June 2015. A full
version of valuation was carried out in the 13/14 Financial year where each bridge is assessed individually, with the valuation varying according to the
material type used for construction, the deck area, condition and size. Construction estimates were determined on a similar basis to roads. The Bridges assets
were effected with 2% increase by the indexation provided by APV Valuers as of 30 June 2015

2

Council categorises its road infrastructure into urban and rural roads and the further sub-categorises these into sealed and unsealed roads.  Urban roads are
managed  in segments of  less than 500m, while rural roads  are managed  in maximum of 5km segments. All road segments are then componentised into
formation,  pavement and seal  (where  applicable). Council assumes that environmental   factors  such  as soil  type, climate and topography are consistent
across each segment. Council also assumes a segment is designed and constructed to the same standard and uses a consistent amount of labour and materials

CRC was calculated  by reference  to asset linear and area specifications,  estimated labour  and material  inputs,  services costs,  and overhead allocations.
Council assumes that pavements are constructed  to depths of between 300mm to 400mm for high traffic areas and 150mm to 300mm depth for lower traffic
locations based on road hierarchy.  Council also assumes that  all raw materials can be sourced from the local Council Quarry with an average haulage rate of
20 cents per tonne depending  on the location of the segment being valued. For internal construction  estimates, material and services prices were based on
existing supplier contract rates or supplier price lists  and labour wage rates were based on Council's Enterprise Bargaining Agreement  (EBA). All direct costs
were allocated  to assets at standard usage  quantities  according to recently completed similar projects. Where construction is outsourced, CRC was based on
the average of completed  similar   projects over the last few years.

The last comprehensive valuation of road infrastructure was undertaken effective 01 July 2013.  CRC at 30 June 2015 was determined by indexation provided
by APV Valuers and Asset Management. There was a 2% average increase across the Roads Infrastructure assets as of 30 June 2015

Fair value measurements - continued
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Significant Unobservable Input

Number of labour hours

Standard material usage quantities

Condition rating (Useful Life)

Remaining useful life

Residual Value The higher the residual value, the higher the fair value

There was an average 2% increase across the Water and Sewer asset classes due to indexation effected as of 30 June 2015.

Drainage

2(a) Water, Sewerage and Other Infrastructure – Calculation of written down current replacement cost

The higher the usage quantities, the higher the fair value

The higher the condition rating, the higher the fair value

The higher the useful life, the higher the fair value

Estimated useful lives and residual values are disclosed in note 19.

The higher the labour hours, the higher the fair value

Accumulated depreciation:

Current replacement cost:

The fair value of all Drainage assets were also determined by an indexation provided by APV Valuers and Asset Management, effective 30 June 2015. A full
version of valuation was carried out in the 13/14 Financial year where each drainage assets were assessed individually. Similar to roads, drainage assets are
managed in segments of 200m; pits, pipes and channels being the major components.

Consistent with roads, Council assumes that environmental factors such as soil type, climate and topography are consistent across each segment and that a
segment is designed and constructed to the same standard and uses a consistent amount of labour and materials. Where drainage assets are located
underground and physical inspection is not possible, the age, size and type of construction material, together with current and planned maintenance records
are used to determine the fair value at reporting date. Construction estimates were determined on a similar basis to roads.                       The Drainage assets
were effected with 2.5% increase by the indexation provided by APV Valuers as of 30 June 2015

1(b) Roads, drainage and Bridge network – Sensitivity of valuation to unobservable inputs

As detailed above Council's roads, drainage and bridge network has been valued using written down current replacement cost.  This method utilises a number
of inputs that require judgement and are therefore classed as unobservable.  While these judgements are made with the greatest care, and based upon years of
experience, different judgements could result in a different valuation.  The table below summarises the effect that changes in the most significant
unobservable inputs would have on the valuation:

Relationship of Unobservable Inputs to Fair Value

Waste landfill cells assets are valued as a part of Site Improvement Facilities assets. Fair values were determined by reference to landfill  cell area and volume
specifications, estimated labour  and material  inputs,  services costs,  and overhead allocations. Material and services costs were determined by reference to
existing  supplier contracts and labour  costs by reference to Council's  EBA

Accumulated depreciation was determined through assessment of the remaining air space for each landfill cell, which was also used to determine percentage
cell capacity used in the year.

Water and sewerage infrastructure
Current replacement cost:

Water and  sewerage infrastructure fair values were determined by an indexation provided by APV Valuers and Asset Management, effective 30 June 2015.
CRC was calculated   based  on expected replacement costs.    In all cases the assets were disaggregated to component level to ensure  a reliable  measure of
cost and  service capacity and deterioration of estimated remaining  life.

Fair value measurements - continued

Accumulated depreciation:

In determining the level of accumulated depreciation, drainage assets were disaggregated into significant components which exhibited different useful lives.

Estimates of expired service potential and remaining useful lives were determined on a straight line basis based on industry standard practices and past
experience, supported by maintenance programs.

Waste Landfill Cells (Other Infrastructure)

Current replacement cost:
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 Council used the following valuation assumptions during the revaluation which has the direct impact on the accumulated depreciation.

4

Indicators that will need to renew, upgrade or scrap in near future.
Should be reflected by inclusion in the Capital Works Plan to
renew or replace in short-term. Very low level of remaining
service potential.

5

At intervention point. No longer providing an acceptable level of
service. If remedial action is not taken immediately the asset will
need to be closed or decommissioned.

6
Theoretical end of life.

Fair value measurements - continued

Where site inspections were not conducted (i.e. for passive assets and active assets for which no site inspections were undertaken), the remaining useful life
was calculated on an age basis after taking into consideration current and planned maintenance records.

3

Providing an adequate level of remaining service potential but
some concerns over the ability of the asset to continue to provide
an adequate level of service in the short to medium term. May be
signs of obsolescence in short to mid-term.

Accumulated depreciation:

In determining accumulated depreciation, assets were either subject to a site inspection or an assessment to determine remaining useful life. Where site
inspections were conducted (i.e. for active assets), the assets were allocated a condition assessment, which was used to estimate remaining useful life as tabled
on the following page:

Condition rating

0
 New or Very Good Condition - Very high level of remaining
service potential.

During the year there were a number of new projects completed where the actual cost was recorded and the impact of depreciation at year end was negligible.
While these could be classified as valued at level 2 given the low proportion of the total portfolio that these represented and the likelihood that in future
valuations they would most likely be valued at level 3 we have adopted a policy that all road and water network infrastructure assets are deemed to be valued
at level 3.

1

Not new but in Very Good condition with no indicators of any
future obsolescence and providing a high level of remaining
service potential.

2

Aged and in good condition provide an adequate level of
remaining service potential. No signs of immediate or short term
obsolescence.

Factors taken into account in determining replacement costs included:

-         Asset Condition - The nature of road and water network infrastructure is that there is a very large number of assets which comprise the network and as a
result it is not physically possible to inspect every asset for the purposes of completing a valuation. As a consequence reliance is placed on the accuracy of
data held in the asset management system and its associated internal controls. This includes regular planned inspections and updates to the system following
maintenance activities and renewal treatments. Likewise, especially for water network infrastructure, a large portion of the portfolio is located underground
and may only be inspected on an irregular basis.

-        To provide assurance over the accuracy of this information and taking into account the cost - benefit of undertaking physical inspections the valuation

- Relationship between asset condition rating scale and the level of service potential  – Under the cost approach the estimated cost to replace the asset is

- The condition rating scales - Based on the past experience of the valuation firm and industry guides and were then updated to take into account the
experience and understanding of council’s own engineers, asset management and finance staff. the results of the valuation were further evaluated by
confirmation against council’s own understanding of the assets and the level of remaining service potential.
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2(b) Water and Sewerage Infrastructure – Sensitivity of valuation to unobservable inputs

Significant Unobservable Input

Number of labour hours

Standard material usage quantities

Condition rating (Useful Life)

Remaining useful life

Residual Value

(iv) Valuation processes

The higher the residual value, the higher the fair value

Council's valuation policies and procedures are determined after assessment and consideration of information provided by personnel within Council with
appropriate skills and experience specific to a particular asset.  They are reviewed annually taking into consideration an analysis of movements in fair value
and other relevant information.  Council's current policy for the valuation of property, plant and equipment (recurring fair value measurements) is set out in
note 1.16. Non-recurring fair value measurements are made at the point of reclassification by a registered valuer.

The higher the useful life, the higher the fair value

 (iii) Changes in Fair Value Measurements using significant unobservable inputs (level 3)

The changes in level 3 assets with recurring fair value measurement are detailed in Note 19 (Property, Plant and Equipment).

The method used to value councils' water and sewerage assets utilises a number of inputs that require judgement and are therefore classed as unobservable.
While these judgements are made with the greatest care, and based upon years of experience, different judgements could result in a different valuation.  The
table below summarises the effect that changes in the most significant unobservable inputs would have on the valuation:

Relationship of Unobservable Inputs to Fair Value

The higher the labour hours, the higher the fair value

The higher the usage quantities, the higher the fair value

The higher the condition rating, the higher the fair value

Fair value measurements - continued

There have been no transfers between level 1,2 or 3 measurements during the year.
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2015 2014

Note $ $

21 Trade and other payables
Current

Accruals 6,188,512 5,858,891
Creditors 4,289,850 637,669
Employee related accruals 622,391 533,033
Annual leave 1.19(b) 4,005,546 4,207,491
Other entitlements 416,640 438,238

15,522,939 11,675,322
Non Current

Other entitlement 7,810 7,338
7,810 7,338

Employee benefit expenses are calculated at current pay levels and adjusted for inflation
and likely future changes in salary level.

The non-current portion of annual leave and long service leave is then discounted to the
present value. Further details on employee entitlements are reported in Note 1.19

22 Provisions
Current

Long service leave 1.19(d) 2,813,376 3,080,310
Property restoration:

(i)   Refuse sites 84,091 -
2,897,467 3,080,310

Non-Current
Long service leave 503,228 455,938
Property restoration:

(i)   Refuse sites 9,459,877 5,756,839
(ii)  Quarry sites 2,317,466 117,610

12,280,571 6,330,387

Details of movements in provisions:
Long service leave

Balance at the beginning of financial year 3,536,249 2,988,928
Amount provided for in the period 422,659 1,026,930
Amount paid in the period (642,304) (479,609)
Balance at end of the financial year 3,316,604 3,536,249

(i)   Refuse sites
Balance at the beginning of financial year 5,756,839 5,193,581
Increase in provision - due to change in time 200,951 188,147
Increase in provision - change in discount rate 372,919 123,565
Increase (decrease) in estimate of future cost 3,213,259 251,546
Balance at end of the financial year 9,543,968 5,756,839

Current portion 84,091 -
Non-current portion 9,459,877 5,756,839

9,543,968 5,756,839
This is the present value of the estimated future cost of restoring the refuse sites under
the State Government environmental regulations at the end of its useful life.
The first site where restoration is expected to commence is Duaringa in 2016.

Cash funds committed to meet this liability at the reporting date are: 977,940 688,348
(ii)  Quarry sites

Balance at the beginning of financial year 117,610 61,974
Increase in provision - due to change in time 4,269 2,398
Increase (decrease) in provision - change in discount rate 61,314 12,907
Increase (decrease) in estimate of future cost 2,134,273 40,331
Balance at end of the financial year 2,317,466 117,610
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2015 2014

Note $ $
22 Provisions (continued)

(ii)  Quarry sites (continued)
Current portion - -
Non-current portion 2,317,466 117,610

2,317,466 117,610

This is the present value of the estimated future cost of restoring the quarry sites under
the State Government environmental regulations at the end of its useful life.
Restoration will be progressive and is expected to commence in 2017 and conclude in
2091.

Cash funds committed to meet this liability at the reporting date are: 10,498 6,229

23 Borrowings
(a)     Bank overdraft

The council does not have a bank overdraft facility.

(b)     Unsecured borrowings
Unsecured borrowings are provided by the Queensland Treasury Corporation.
All borrowings are in $A denominated amounts and carried at amortised cost, interest being
expensed as it accrues.  No interest has been capitalised during the current or comparative
reporting period.  Expected final repayment dates vary from 30 June 2017 to 9 May 2035.

 There have been no defaults or breaches of the loan agreement during the period.
Principal and interest repayments are made quarterly in arrears.

Details of borrowings at balance date are:
Current

Queensland Treasury Corporation 3,316,569 2,684,176

Non Current
Queensland Treasury Corporation 65,278,667 51,583,098

Details of movements in borrowings:
Queensland Treasury Corporation

Balance at the beginning of financial year 54,267,274 56,823,061
Loans raised 17,000,000
Principal repayments (2,672,038) (2,555,787)
Balance at end of the financial year 68,595,236 54,267,274

Classified as :
Current 3,316,569 2,684,176
Non-current 65,278,667 51,583,098

68,595,236 54,267,274

The QTC loan market value at the reporting date was $75,571,098
This represents the value of the debt if Council repaid it at that date. As it is the
intention of Council to hold the debt for its term, no provision is required to be made in
these accounts.
No assets have been pledged as security by the council for any liabilities.
Borrowings are all in $A and are underwritten by the Queensland State Government.

24 Other Liabilities
Current

Unearned Revenue 113,364 7,273
113,364 7,273
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2015 2014

Note $ $
25 (i)  Asset revaluation surplus

Movements in the asset revaluation surplus were as follows:
Balance at the beginning of financial year 464,596,488 320,984,279

(a)  Adjustments to property, plant and equipment through revaluations: 19
Land (108,850) 139,084
Site improvements (1,107,704) 641,538
Buildings 6,011,869 (1,911,274)
Road and bridge network 13,350,231 124,269,741
Water 3,037,839 11,720,032
Sewerage 2,601,794 7,447,835
Airport 1,142,661 2,495,246

24,927,840 144,802,202
(b)  Adjustments to property, plant and equipment through impairments:

Site improvements - (410,712)
Road and bridge network - (309,731)
Water - (20,857)
Airport - (73,582)

- (814,882)
Change in value of future rehabilitation costs charged to the surplus (3,586,178) (375,111)
Balance at end of the financial year 485,938,150 464,596,488

(ii)  Asset revaluation surplus analysis
The closing balance of the asset revaluation surplus is comprised of the
following asset categories:

Land 46,014,298 46,123,148
Site improvements 16,789,453 21,483,335
Buildings 38,336,881 32,325,012
Road and bridge network 254,489,042 241,138,811
Water 67,210,921 64,173,082
Sewerage 59,533,230 56,931,436
Airport 3,564,325 2,421,664

485,938,150 464,596,488

26 Retained surplus
Movement in retained surplus

Balance at the beginning of financial year 801,841,525 775,088,277
Net result 18,331,339 23,014,072

820,172,864 798,102,349
Transfers (to)/ from capital reserves for future capital project funding, or from
reserves funds that have been expended:

Constrained grants and subsidy contributions reserve 2,003,711 3,033,329
Transfer from (to) the future capital asset sustainability  reserve - (3,437,540)
Grants, subsidies and contributions reimbursed reserve - (89,546)
Future capital asset sustainability  reserve (2,471,915) (2,794,988)
Unspent loan cash  reserve - 468,034
Land and improvements reserve - (682,340)
Aged housing reserve 264,195 1,040,742
Plant and equipment reserve - 478,862
Future fund reserve (4,711,254) (9,583,623)
Water  reserve 273,242 1,363,772
Sewerage reserve (1,375,925) (1,180,411)
Facilities (business units) reserve (8,208,028) 3,799,689
Carry over capital projects reserve 4,191,932 7,290,079
Tieri Township reserve 788,860 (1,535,883)
Special rates reserve 531,240 20,982

(8,713,942) (1,808,842)
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Note $ $
26 Retained surplus (continued)

Transfers (to) recurrent reserves for future project funding, or from reserves funds
that have been expended:

Recurrent projects (Constrained)  reserve 42,754 786,184
Prepaid grants  reserve - 5,877,893
Elections reserve (20,000) (20,000)
Special Projects   reserve (858,517) (1,096,059)

(835,763) 5,548,018

Balance at end of the financial year 810,623,159 801,841,525

27 Reserves
(a)  Restricted capital reserves

(i)   Future capital asset sustainability  reserve

Balance at the beginning of financial year 24,179,063 17,946,535
Funded depreciation on capital assets in period 23,251,001 23,693,374
Additional sustainability funding from retained earnings - 3,437,540
Less: Funds utilised in the period (20,579,086) (20,898,386)
Balance at end of the financial year 26,850,978 24,179,063

(ii)  Unspent loan cash reserve
This cash forms part of council's capital value as the balance represents loan cash
drawn down but unspent at balance date. The cash is restricted to specific project
funding.

Balance at the beginning of financial year - 468,034
Loan funds drawn down in period. 17,000,000
Loan cash expended in period. (17,000,000) (468,034)
Balance at end of the financial year - -

(iii) Constrained grants and subsidy contributions reserve
Balance at the beginning of financial year 32,624,370 35,657,699
Transfer from retained earnings non reciprocal grants, subsidies and contributions
received and allocated to specific capital projects 17,972,340 10,490,773
Transfer to retained earnings funds expended (20,176,050) (13,524,102)
Balance at end of the financial year 30,420,660 32,624,370

Total restricted capital reserves 57,271,638 56,803,433

(b)  Other reserves
(1)  Summary of capital reserves held for funding future projects:

(i)     Grants, subsidies and contributions reimbursed reserve - -
(ii)    Land and improvements reserve 959,808 959,808
(iii)   Aged housing reserve 235,167 499,362
(iv)   Plant and equipment reserve 513,078 513,078
(v)    Future fund reserve 14,294,877 9,583,623
(vi)   Water  reserve 2,775,068 3,048,310
(vii)  Sewerage reserve 4,701,561 3,325,636
(viii) Facilities (business units) reserve 18,668,802 10,460,774
(ix)   Carry over capital projects reserve 15,360,106 19,552,039
(x)    Tieri Township reserve 747,023 1,535,883
(xi)   Special rates reserve 592,380 1,123,621

58,847,870 50,602,134
(2)  Summary of recurrent reserves held for funding future projects:

(i)     Recurrent projects (Constrained) reserve 230,066 272,820
(ii)    Prepaid grants reserve - -
(iii)   Elections  reserve 60,000 40,000
(iv)   Special Projects  reserve 3,154,576 2,296,059

3,444,642 2,608,879

Total other reserves 62,292,512 53,211,013

Total reserves 119,564,150 110,014,446
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CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2015

2015 2014

Note $ $
27 Reserves (continued)

Movements in capital reserves are analysed as follows:
(i)     Grants, subsidies and contributions reimbursed reserve

Balance at the beginning of financial year - -
Transfer from retained earnings grants, subsidies and contributions received in the
period which are a reimbursement 1,037,093 89,546
Reallocation of funds to other capital reserves (1,037,093) (89,546)
Balance at end of the financial year - -

(ii)    Land and improvements reserve
Balance at the beginning of financial year 959,808 277,468
Transfer from retained earnings for future expenditure - 786,281
Transfer to retained earnings funds expended - (103,941)
Balance at end of the financial year 959,808 959,808

(iii)   Aged housing reserve
Balance at the beginning of financial year 499,362 1,540,104
Transfer from retained earnings for future expenditure - 592,212
Transfer to retained earnings funds expended (264,195) (1,632,954)
Balance at end of the financial year 235,167 499,362

(iv)   Plant and equipment reserve
Balance at the beginning of financial year 513,078 902,394
Transfer from the grants, subsidies and contributions reimbursed reserve - 89,546
Transfer from retained earnings for future expenditure - 680,000
Transfer to retained earnings funds expended - (1,158,862)
Balance at end of the financial year 513,078 513,078

(v)    Future fund reserve
Balance at the beginning of financial year 9,583,623 -
Transfer from retained earnings for future expenditure 5,000,000 10,000,000
Transfer to retained earnings funds expended (288,746) (416,377)
Balance at end of the financial year 14,294,877 9,583,623

(vi)   Water  reserve
Balance at the beginning of financial year 3,048,310 4,412,082
Transfer to retained earnings funds expended (273,242) (1,363,772)
Balance at end of the financial year 2,775,068 3,048,310

(vii)  Sewerage reserve
Balance at the beginning of financial year 3,325,636 2,145,225
Transfer from retained earnings for future expenditure 1,716,234 1,180,411
Transfer to retained earnings funds expended (340,309) -
Balance at end of the financial year 4,701,561 3,325,636

(viii) Facilities (business units) reserve
Balance at the beginning of financial year 10,460,774 14,260,463
Transfer from retained earnings for future expenditure 8,480,469 4,267,578
Transfer to retained earnings funds expended (272,441) (8,067,267)
Balance at end of the financial year 18,668,802 10,460,774

(ix)   Carry over capital projects reserve
Balance at the beginning of financial year 19,552,039 26,842,118
Transfer from retained earnings for future expenditure 3,789,715 1,834,181
Transfer to retained earnings funds expended (7,981,648) (9,124,260)
Balance at end of the financial year 15,360,106 19,552,039
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2015 2014

Note $ $
27 Reserves (continued)

(x)    Tieri Township reserve
Balance at the beginning of financial year 1,535,883 -
Transfer from retained earnings for future expenditure 6,541,557 2,556,760
Transfer to retained earnings funds expended (7,330,417) (1,020,877)
Balance at end of the financial year 747,023 1,535,883

(xi)   Special rates reserve
Balance at the beginning of financial year 1,123,621 1,144,603
Transfer from retained earnings for future expenditure 2,624,912 1,625,965
Transfer to retained earnings funds expended (3,156,153) (1,646,947)
Balance at end of the financial year 592,380 1,123,621

Movements in recurrent reserves are analysed as follows:
(i)     Recurrent projects (Constrained) reserve

Balance at the beginning of financial year 272,820 1,059,004
Transfer from retained earnings for future expenditure 190,620 77,340
Transfer to retained earnings funds expended (233,374) (863,524)
Balance at end of the financial year 230,066 272,820

(ii)    Prepaid grants reserve
Balance at the beginning of financial year - 5,877,893
Transfer from retained earnings for future expenditure - -
Transfer to retained earnings funds expended - (5,877,893)
Balance at end of the financial year - -

(iii)   Elections  reserve
Balance at the beginning of financial year 40,000 20,000
Transfer from retained earnings for future expenditure 20,000 20,000
Balance at end of the financial year 60,000 40,000

(iv)   Special Projects  reserve
Balance at the beginning of financial year 2,296,059 1,200,000
Transfer from retained earnings for future expenditure 1,300,000 1,200,000
Transfer to retained earnings funds expended (441,483) (103,941)
Balance at end of the financial year 3,154,576 2,296,059

28 Commitments for expenditure
Contractual Commitments

Contractual commitments at balance date but not recognised
in the financial statements are as follows:

Waste & recycling contracts over 5 years 10,646,806 14,528,122
10,646,806 14,528,122

Capital Commitments
Commitment for the construction of the following assets contracted for at the
reporting date but not recognised as liabilities are as follows:

Plant and Equipment and Furniture and Fittings 718,257 -
Airport 109,041 -
Buildings and Site Improvements 117,732 283,810
Infrastructure 2,696,712 24,370,715

3,641,742 24,654,525
These expenditures are payable :

Within one year 3,641,742 22,886,633
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - 1,767,892
Later than 5 years - -

3,641,742 24,654,525
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CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2015

2015 2014

Note $ $
29 Events after balance date

There are no events after balance date that Council is aware of that require disclosure.

30 Contingent liabilities
Details and estimates of maximum amounts of contingent liabilities are as follows:

Potential Claims from Developer
The Council is currently monitoring potential claims which may arise, from
 a developer and the developer's subcontractor, for the payment of additional works
relating to development approvals obtained during the period 2008 to 2010.
Council has sought legal advice on this matter and due to the uncertainity of the
potential liability no value has been attributed to these claims in the financial statements.

Native Title
The Council has identified a number of parcels of land which may be subject to Native
Title claims in the future. Council's Native Title liability cannot be
quantified due to uncertainty about the number and effect of compensable
acts, both in the past and in the future. Council currently has no contingent
liability claims pending in relation to Native Title.

Community Housing Assets
The Council has a number of Community Housing properties which are either managed
directly by Council or managed under the Department of Housing and Public Work's
Long Term Community Housing program (LTCHP). For those properties managed
under the LTCHP there are Capital Assistance agreements in place which outline the
equity ownership of these properties between Council and
the Department. Council reports all Community Housing properties in the balance
sheet at fair value with no adjustment for the equity ownership proportion pertaining to
the Department. At 30 June 2015, the fair value of Community
Housing assets is $19,972,617 and the Department has an estimated equity ownership
in these assets amounting to: 10,754,488 10,398,060

Local Government Workcare
The Central Highlands Regional Council is a member of the Queensland local
government workers compensation self-insurance scheme, Local Government
Workcare. Under this scheme the Council has provided a bank guarantee
to cover bad debts which may remain should the self insurance licence
be cancelled and there was insufficient funds available to cover outstanding
liabilities. Only the Queensland Government's workers compensation authority
may call on any part of the guarantee should the above circumstances arise.
The Council's maximum exposure to the bank guarantee is: 847,238 1,027,512

Local Government Mutual
The Council is a member of the local government mutual liability self-insurance
 pool, LGM Queensland. In the event of the pool being wound up or it is unable
to meet its debts as they fall due, the trust deed and rules provide that any
accumulated deficit will be met by the individual pool members in the same
proportion as their contribution is to the total pool contributions in respect to
 any year that a deficit arises.
As at 30 June 2014 the financial statements reported an accumulated surplus and
it is not anticipated any liability will arise.
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2015 2014

Note $ $
31 Superannuation

The Council contributes to the Local Government Superannuation Scheme (Qld) (the
scheme).  The scheme is a Multi-employer Plan as defined in the Australian Accounting
Standard AASB119 Employee Benefits.

The Queensland Local Government Superannuation Board, the trustee of the scheme,
advised that the local government superannuation scheme was a complying
superannuation scheme for the purpose of the Commonwealth Superannuation Industry
(Supervision) legislation.

The scheme has three elements referred to as:
 The City Defined Benefits Fund (CDBF) which covers former members of the City
Super Defined Benefits Fund
 The Regional Defined Benefits Fund (Regional DBF) which covers defined benefit
fund members working for regional local governments; and
The Accumulation Benefits Fund (ABF)

The ABF is a defined contribution scheme as defined in AASB 119.  Council has no
liability to or interest in the ABF other than the payment of the statutory contributions as
required by the Local Government Act 2009.

Council does not have any employees who are members of the CDBF and, therefore, is
not exposed to the obligations, assets or costs associated with this fund.

The Regional DBF is a defined benefit plan as defined in AASB119.  The Council is not
able to account for the Regional DBF as a defined benefit plan in accordance with
AASB119 because the scheme is unable to account to the Council for its proportionate
share of the defined benefit obligation, plan assets and costs. The funding policy
adopted in respect of the Regional DBF is directed at ensuring that the benefits accruing
to members and beneficiaries are fully funded as they fall due.

To ensure the ongoing solvency of the Regional DBF, the scheme's trustee can vary the
rate of contributions from relevant local government employers subject to advice from
the scheme's actuary. As at the reporting date, no changes had been made to prescribed
employer contributions which remain at 12% of employee assets and there are no known
requirements to change the rate of contributions.

Any amount by which the fund is over or under funded would only affect future benefits
and contributions to the Regional DBF, and is not an asset or liability of the Council.
Accordingly there is no recognition in the financial statements of any over or under
funding of the scheme.

As at the reporting date, the assets of the scheme are sufficient to meet the vested
benefits.

The most recent actuarial assessment of the scheme was undertaken as at 1 July 2012.
The actuary indicated that “the Regional DBF is currently in a satisfactory but modest
financial position  and remains vulnerable to adverse short and medium term
experience."

Following the previous actuarial assessment in 2009, councils were advised by the
trustee of the scheme, following advice from the scheme’s actuary, that additional
contributions may be imposed in the future at a level necessary to protect the
entitlements of Regional DBF members.  In the 2012 actuarial report the actuary has
recommended no change to the employer contribution levels at this time.

Under the Local Government Act 2009 the trustee of the scheme has the power to levy
additional contributions on councils which have employees in the Regional DBF when
the actuary advises such additional contributions are payable - normally when the assets
of the DBF are insufficient to meet members' benefits.

There are currently 71 councils contributing to the Regional DBF plan and any changes
in contribution rates would apply equally to all 71 councils. Central Highlands Regioanl
Council made less than 4% of the total contributions to the plan in the 2014-15 financial
year.

The next actuarial investigation will be conducted as at 1 July 2015.

The amount of superannuation contributions paid by Central Highlands Regional Council
to the scheme in this period for the benefit of employees was: 3,566,232 3,699,917
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CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2015

2015 2014

Note $ $

32 Trust funds
Trust funds held for outside parties:

Monies collected or held on behalf of other entities yet
to be paid out to or on behalf of those entities 369,816 550,691
Security deposits 786,601 844,366

1,156,417 1,395,057

The Central Highlands Regional Council  performs only a custodial role in respect of
these monies, and because the monies cannot be used for Council purposes, they are not
brought to account in these financial statements.

33 Reconciliation of net result for the year to net cash
inflow (outflow) from operating activities

Net result 18,331,339 23,014,072

Non-cash operating items:
Impairment of receivables and bad debts written off 9 (37,080) (341,157)
Depreciation and amortisation 19 24,117,836 23,718,699
Current cost of developed land sold 16 396,872 926,676
Change in restoration provisions expensed to finance costs 205,220 190,545

24,682,848 24,494,763

Investing and development activities:
Capital grants, subsidies and contributions 4 (19,009,432) (19,619,044)
Capital income 5 (35,765) -
Capital expenses 10 14,416,500 2,091,929
Payment for land for sale and development costs in the period (152,384) 344,616

(4,781,081) (17,182,499)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities :
(Increase) decrease in receivables 4,668,647 4,111,713
(Increase) decrease in inventories (excluding land) (141,952) (683,143)
Increase (decrease) in payables 1,751,104 (179,283)
Increase (decrease) in provisions (219,645) 547,321
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities 106,091 (112,727)

6,164,245 3,683,881

Net cash inflow from operating activities 44,397,351 34,010,217

34 Controlled Entities
The Central Highlands Regional Council has formed two controlled entities. The financial
results of these entities at 30 June 2015 are not consolidated into Council's financial
statements and are reported by way of note below, as they do not materially affect the
financial position of the consolidated entity, or the results for the year.

The Central Highlands Development Corporation (CHDC)  was formed in 1997 by the
former Emerald Shire Council and is a public company limited by guarantee. Each year
the Council provides a contribution towards its operations of which the Mayor, Deputy
Mayor and CEO are Directors. The Company has a General Manager.

The primary objectives of CHDC are to facilitate projects and initiatives across the region
and be proactive in providing advice, statistical information, workshops and networks to
support business, industry, government and community.
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Note $ $

34 Controlled Entities (continued)

The draft unaudited financial results of the CHDC, at 30 June 2015, are as follows:
Operating Revenue 1,354,048 1,339,273
Operating Expenditure (1,400,547) (1,328,110)
Total Comprehensive Income (46,499) 11,163

Equity
Retained Surplus 535,804 582,302
Total Equity 535,804 582,302

Represented by:
Assets 645,780 694,533
Liabilities (109,976) (112,231)
Net Assets 535,804 582,302

The Central Highlands (QLD) Housing Company Limited was incorporated on 21
February 2012. The Company's principal object is to contribute to the public good, and in
particular to the relief of poverty and economic hardship by providing affordable housing.
The Mayor, Deputy Mayor, CEO and a Councillor are Directors of this Company with
representation by three invited community members.

The draft unaudited financial results of the Housing Company, at 30 June 2015, are as
follows:

Operating Revenue 77,156 77,551
Operating Expenditure (1,154,347) (98,894)
Total Comprehensive Income (1,077,191) (21,343)

Equity
Retained Surplus 926,999 2,004,190
Total Equity 926,999 2,004,190
Represented by:
Assets 944,203 2,010,811
Liabilities (17,204) (6,621)
Net Assets 926,999 2,004,190

35 Minor correction for assets not previously recognised
During the year Council became aware of some assets in Property Plant and Equipment
(PP&E) that were not previously recognised, as well as some  PP&E assets previously
recognised, that should not have been recognised:

The asset classes affected are disclosed separately in the notes indicated:

Summary details of assets not previously recognised:
Gross value of property, plant and equipment 19 1,023,361
Less: Accumulated depreciation 19 (62,007) -
Gain from assets not previously recognised 961,354 -

Summary details of assets previously recognised incorrectly are as follows:
Gross value of property, plant and equipment 19 5,197,987 -
Less: Accumulated depreciation 19 (2,765,519) -
Loss on assets previously recognised incorrectly 2,432,468 -

Net result of recognised/derecognised assets 10 (1,471,114) -

This correction was not retrospectively applied due to the adjustment in question being of
a trivial amount.
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CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2015

36 Financial Instruments
Central Highlands Regional Council  has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

- credit risk
- liquidity risk
- market risk

This note provides information (both qualitative and quantitative) to assist statement users evaluate the significance of financial
instruments on the Council's financial position and financial performance, including the nature and extent of risks and how
the Council manages these exposures.

Financial risk management
Central Highlands Regional Council  is responsible for the establishment and oversight of the risk management framework,
together with developing and monitoring risk management policies.

Council's management approves policies for overall risk management, as well as specifically for managing credit,
liquidity and market risk.

The Council's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced, to set appropriate limits
and controls and to monitor these risks and adherence against limits. The Council aims to manage volatility to minimise
potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Council.

Central Highlands Regional Council  does not enter into derivatives.

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss if a counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations.
These obligations arise principally from the Council's investments and receivables from customers.

Exposure to credit risk is managed through regular analysis of credit counterparty ability to meet payment obligations.
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

Investments in financial instruments are required to be made with Queensland Treasury Corporation (QTC) or similar state/
commonwealth bodies or financial institutions in Australia, in line with the requirements of the Statutory Bodies Financial
Arrangements Act 1982.

No collateral is held as security relating to the financial assets held by Central Highlands Regional Council .

The following table represents the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the carrying amounts of financial assets at
the end of the reporting period:

Note 2015 2014
Financial Assets $ $

Cash and cash equivalents - Bank 13 98,435 3,372,814
Cash investments held with - QTC 13 106,431,914 78,255,352
Cash investments held with other
approved deposit taking institutions 17 20,759,480 30,485,742
Equity investments 27,135 26,315
Receivables - rates and water 14 12,976,775 12,546,496
Receivables - other 14 10,803,873 12,872,670

Other credit exposure
Guarantee 30 847,238 1,027,512
Total 151,944,850 138,586,901

Cash and cash equivalents
The Council may be exposed to credit risk through its investments in the QTC Cash Fund and QTC Working Capital Facility.
The QTC Cash Fund is an asset management portfolio that invests with a wide range of high credit rated counterparties.
Deposits with the QTC Cash Fund are capital guaranteed. Working Capital Facility deposits have a duration of one day and
all investments are required to have a minimum credit rating of "A-", therefore the likelihood of the counterparty having capacity
to meet its financial commitments is strong.

Other financial assets
Other investments are held with financial institutions, which are rated AAA to AA- based on Standard & Poors agency ratings
and whilst not capital guaranteed, the likelihood of a credit failure is assessed as remote.
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36 Financial instruments - continued
Trade and other receivables

In the case of rate receivables, the Council has the power to sell the property to recover any defaulted amounts.  In effect this
power protects the Council against credit risk in the case of defaults.

In other cases, the Council assesses the credit risk before providing goods or services and applies normal business credit
protection procedures to minimise the risk.

By the nature of the Councils operations, there is a geographical concentration of risk in the Council's area.  Because the area
is largely agricultural and mining, there is also a concentration in the agricultural and mining sectors.

Ageing of past due receivables and the amount of any impairment is disclosed in the following table:

Not past due Past due Less Total
31 to 60 61 to 90 Over 90 Impaired

days days days
$ $ $ $ $ $

Receivables:
2015 17,024,889 153,739 3,573,644 3,201,198 (172,822) 23,780,648

2014 18,745,138 4,578,098 68,781 2,464,104 (436,955) 25,419,166

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Council will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial
 liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

Central Highlands Regional Council  is exposed to liquidity risk through its normal course of business and through its borrowings
with QTC  and other financial institutions.

The Council manages its exposure to liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash deposits and undrawn facilities, both short
and long term, to cater for unexpected volatility in cash flows.
These facilities are disclosed in note 23.
The council does not have any overdraft facilities at the reporting date.

The following table sets out the liquidity risk in relation to financial liabilities held by the Council. It represents the
remaining contractual cashflows (principal and interest) of financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period,
excluding the impact of netting agreements:

0 to 1 year 1 to 5 years Over 5 years Total contractual Carrying
cash flows amount

2015 $ $ $ $ $
Trade and other payables 11,100,753 - - 11,100,753 11,100,753
Loans QTC 6,825,696 26,868,283 65,121,766 98,815,746 68,595,236

17,926,449 26,868,283 65,121,766 109,916,499 79,695,989
2014

Trade and other payables 7,029,592 - - 7,029,592 7,029,592
Loans QTC 5,573,848 22,061,774 51,475,302 79,110,924 54,267,274

12,603,440 22,061,774 51,475,302 86,140,516 61,296,866

The outflows in the above table are not expected to occur significantly earlier and are not expected to be for significantly
different amounts than indicated in the table.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, will affect the Council's income or the value
of its holdings of financial instruments.
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CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2015

36 Financial instruments - continued

Interest rate risk
Central Highlands Regional Council  is not exposed to interest rate risk through investments.

The Council has access to a mix of variable and fixed rate funding options through QTC so that interest rate risk exposure
can be minimised.

Sensitivity
Sensitivity to interest rate movements is shown for variable financial assets and liabilities based on the carrying amount
at reporting date.

The following interest rate sensitivity analysis depicts what effect a reasonably possible change in interest rates (assumed
to be 1%) would have on the profit and equity, based on the carrying values at the end of the reporting period. The
calculation assumes that the change in interest rates would be held constant over the period.

2015 Net carrying Change in profit & (loss) from: Change in equity from:
Financial assets and liabilities that are amount 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease
held at variable interest rates total: $ $ $ $ $

QTC cash funds 106,431,914 1,064,319 (1,064,319) 1,064,319 (1,064,319)
Loans - QTC at fixed and generic * (68,595,236) - - - -
Net total 37,836,678 1,064,319 (1,064,319) 1,064,319 (1,064,319)

2014
QTC cash funds 78,255,352 782,554 (782,554) 782,554 (782,554)
Loans - QTC at variable (54,267,274) - - - -
Net total 23,988,078 782,554 (782,554) 782,554 (782,554)

In relation to the QTC loans held by the Council, the following has been applied:

QTC Generic Debt Pool* - the generic debt pool products approximate a fixed rate loan. There is a negligible impact on interest
sensitivity from changes in interest rates for generic debt pool borrowings.

The sensitivity analysis provided by QTC is currently based on a 1% change but this is subject to change.

Fair Value
The fair value of trade and other receivables and payables is assumed to approximate the value of the original transaction,
less any allowance for impairment.

The fair value of borrowings with QTC is based on the market value of debt outstanding. The market value of a debt
obligation is the discounted value of future cash flows based on prevailing market rates and represents the amount required
to be repaid if this was to occur at balance date. The market value of debt is provided by QTC and is discussed below and
disclosed in note 23.

QTC applies a book rate approach in the management of debt and interest rate risk, to limit the impact of market value
movements to clients' cost of funding. The book value represents the carrying value based on amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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37    National Competition Policy

(a)  Business activities to which the code of competitive conduct is applied
This requires the application of full cost pricing, identifying the cost of community service obligations (CSO)
and eliminating the advantages and disadvantages of public ownership within that activity.

The CSO value is determined by Council, and represents an activities cost which would not be incurred if
the primary objective of the activities was to make a profit. The Council provides funding from general revenue
to the business activity to cover the cost of providing non-commercial community services or costs deemed to
be CSO's by the Council.

The Central Highlands Regional Council  applies the competitive code of conduct to the following activities:

 - Aerodrome

 - Quarry

 - Sewerage

 - Water

 - Waste

 - Saleyards

(b)  The following activity statements are for  activities subject to the competitive code of conduct:

Aerodrome Quarry Saleyards Sewerage Water Waste
2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015

$ $ $ $ $ $
Revenue for services provided to the Council - 3,179,904 -
Revenue for services provided to external clients 7,921,160 1,339,970 993,617 7,291,795 15,444,848 6,964,199
* Community service obligations 762,000

7,921,160 4,519,874 993,617 7,291,795 15,444,848 7,726,199
Less : Expenditure 5,135,023 6,231,769 854,271 6,308,870 16,549,783 6,060,274

Surplus  (deficiency) 2,786,137 (1,711,895) 139,346 982,925 (1,104,935) 1,665,925

  (c)  Description of CSO's provided to business activities during the reporting period.

Activities CSO description Actual

Waste 762,000Required to support Waste Facilities provided to the community
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CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGIONAL COUNCIL

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2015

MANAGEMENT CERTIFICATE
For the year ended 30 June 2015

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared pursuant to sections 176 and 177 of the
Local Government Regulation 2012 (the Regulation) and other prescribed requirements.

In accordance with section 212(5) of the Regulation we certify that:

(i) the prescribed requirements of the Local Government Act 2009 and Local Government Regulation 2012
for the establishment and keeping of accounts have been complied with in all material respects; and

(ii) the general purpose financial statements, as set out on pages 2 to 47, present a true and fair view, in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, of the Council’s transactions for the financial year
and financial position at the end of the year.

_____________________________________  ______________________________________
Mayor Chief Executive Officer

Name:.............................................................. Name: ................................................................

Date: ______/______/______ Date:______/______/_______
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CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGIONAL COUNCIL

For the year ended 30 June 2015

Current Year Financial Sustainability Statement

Certificate of Accuracy - for the Current Year Financial Sustainability Statement

Independent Auditor's Report (Current Year Financial Sustainability Statement)
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CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGIONAL COUNCIL

Current-year Financial Sustainability Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2015

Measures of Financial Sustainability

(i)    Operating surplus ratio
Operating surplus (Net result excluding all capital items) divided by total operating revenue (excludes capital revenue).

(ii)   Asset sustainability ratio
Capital expenditure on the replacement of assets (renewals) divided by depreciation expense.

(iii)  Net financial liabilities ratio
Total liabilities less current assets divided by total operating revenue.

Council's performance at 30 June 2015 against key financial ratios:

Operating
surplus ratio

Asset
sustainability

ratio

Net financial
liabilities ratio

Target
between 0%

and 10%
greater than

90%
not greater than

60%

Actual 11.82% 93.48% -52.58%

Note 1 - Basis of Preparation

Certificate of Accuracy
For the year ended 30 June 2015

This current-year financial sustainability statement has been prepared pursuant to Section 178 of the Local Government
Regulation 2012 (the regulation).

In accordance with Section 212(5) of the Regulation we certify that this current-year financial sustainability statement
has been accurately calculated.

_____________________________________ ___________________________________
Mayor Chief Executive Officer

Name: .............................................................. Name: ............................................................

Date: ______/______/______ Date:______/______/_______

The current year financial sustainability statement is a special purpose statement prepared in accordance with the requirements of
the Local Government Regulation 2012 and the Financial Management (Sustainability) Guideline 2013. The amounts used to
calculate the three reported measures are prepared on an accrual basis and are drawn from the Council's audited general purpose
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2015.
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CENTRAL HIGHLANDS REGIONAL COUNCIL

Long-Term Financial Sustainability Statement
Prepared as at 30 June 2015

Measures of Financial Sustainability
(i)    Operating surplus ratio

Operating surplus (Net result excluding all capital items) divided by total operating revenue (excludes capital revenue).

(ii)   Asset sustainability ratio
Capital expenditure on the replacement of assets (renewals) divided by depreciation expense.

(iii)  Net financial liabilities ratio
Total liabilities less current assets divided by total operating revenue.

Council's performance at 30 June 2015 against key financial ratios:

Operating
surplus ratio

Asset
sustainability

ratio

Net financial
liabilities ratio

Target between 0%
and 10%

greater than
90%

not greater than
60%

Actuals at 30 June 2015 11.82% 93.48% -52.58%
Projected for the years ended: 30 June 2016 9.50% 240.30% -25.50%

30 June 2017 6.10% 160.40% -9.20%
30 June 2018 4.80% 114.30% 6.40%
30 June 2019 7.10% 70.60% 0.50%
30 June 2020 6.70% 95.50% 1.90%
30 June 2021 5.40% 75.80% -1.80%
30 June 2022 4.50% 90.40% -6.00%
30 June 2023 4.50% 103.70% -11.70%
30 June 2024 5.70% 88.30% -18.30%

Financial Management Strategy

Certificate of Accuracy
For the long-term financial sustainability statement prepared as at 30 June 2015

This long-term financial sustainability statement has been prepared pursuant to Section 178 of the Local Government
Regulation 2012 (the regulation).

In accordance with Section 212(5) of the Regulation we certify that this long-term financial sustainability statement
has been accurately calculated.

_____________________________________ ___________________________________
Mayor Chief Executive Officer

Name: .............................................................. Name: ...........................................................

Date: ______/______/______ Date:______/______/_______

Council measures revenue and expenditure trends over time as a guide to future requirements and to make decisions about the
efficient allocation of resources to ensure the most effective provision of services. Council ensures that its financial management
strategy is prudent and that its long-term financial forecast shows a sound financial position whilst also being able to meet the
community’s current and future needs.

The table above summarises how Council performed against set targets.
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Central Highlands Regional Council
Postal | PO Box 21, EMERALD QLD 4720

Phone | 1300 242 686  

International Phone | +61 7 4982 8333

Email | enquiries@chrc.qld.gov.au 

Website | www.centralhighlands.qld.gov.au
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